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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) (the “Director(s)”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the Company’s website at http.//www.aplushk.com/clients/8166chinaeco-farming/
index.htm/ and the “Latest Listed Company Information” page of the GEM website for at least 7 days from the
date of its posting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (“Mr. Liu”), aged 34, is an executive
Director and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Liu was educated
in Canada. Mr. Liu has over 9 years of working experience in
legal, finance and management. Mr. Liu has been acting as
as a director of Blue Sky Solar Energy Management Limited,
a company mainly engaged in one-stop solar power system
installation service, since November 2018. Mr. Liu was an
executive director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); stock code: 1087)
from August 2020 to April 2022 and an executive director
of CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange;
stock code: 1520) from November 2016 to June 2019. Mr.
Liu also acted as a director of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
from 2019 to 2021. Mr. Liu joined the Group in February
2022.

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (“Mr. Tin”), aged 45, is an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Tin
holds a Bachelor's degree of Business Administration from
Oxford Brookes University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Tin
is currently the consultant of Value Convergence Holdings
Limited (“Value Convergence”) (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 821) and he
was the executive director of Value Convergence from July
2011 to September 2020. He also acted as the executive
director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
stock code: 996) from December 2020 to May 2021. Mr. Tin
has over 10 years management experience in Hong Kong
listed companies. His duties included group management,
strategic planning, investment evaluation and investor
relationship. Mr. Tin jointed the Group in February 2022.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EXRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (BRZE X% 4%), aged 37,
is an executive Director. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree in
surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is @ member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So started his
career in the investment department of Savills (Hong Kong)
Limited and then worked in a company that specialized in
China property investment prior to joining the Company. He
has extensive experience in investment in China and Hong
Kong. Mr. So joined the Group in January 2014.

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (“Mr. Ng") (R .5%4), aged
61, is an executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Ng graduated from the University of Alberta,
Canada, with a Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce, majoring
in Accounting. He also obtained a Master of Commerce
degree in Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales, Australia and is a Certified Public Accountant
in Australia and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of
management and accounting experience.

Mr. Ng was an executive director of U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (“U-RIGHT") from July 2011 to December
2017 (stock code: 627), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, which received petitions from the Hong Kong
Court against the company and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Uni-Capital Limited filed by Detusche Bank A.G., Hong Kong
Branch on 6 October 2008, before Mr. Ng's tenure of office.
The winding-up petition against U-RIGHT was subsequently
dismissed pursuant to the order of the Hong Kong Court
dated 16 September 2013.

Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2014 redesignated as
an executive Director in September 2016 and was appointed
as Company Secretary in March 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick"”) (BEELE),
aged 38, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yick
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and is currently working as a solicitor with emphasis
on corporate finance practice at a local law firm. Mr. Yick
principally engages in Hong Kong listing projects and assists
in legal compliance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Yick was an independent non-executive director of
Mengke Holdings Limited (stock code: 1629), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
November 2016 to December 2018. Mr. Yick joined the
Group in September 2014.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EXRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 64, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, members of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds
a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the Beijing Normal
College and a Master of Laws Degree from the Renmin
University of China.

Mr. Zhang was an executive director of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 821), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from June 2018 to
December 2019.

Mr. Zhang was the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Junefield Department Store Group Limited (stock
code: 758), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from August 2016 to August 2018.

Mr. Zhang possesses over 20 years' experience in the banking
industry through his work with the China Construction Bank
Corporation Group. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in March
2015.

Ms. Yuen Wai Man (“Ms. Yuen”), aged 50, is an
independent non-executive Director. She is also the
chairman of audit committee, and members of remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Ms. Yuen graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a degree in Business Administration in 1994. She is the
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and overseas member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Yuen
has worked in accounting and auditing area for over 25
years.

Ms. Yuen is currently an independent non-executive director
of Solomon Worldwide Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8133). Ms.
Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Chinese
Strategic Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8089) (delisted on 4 May
2022) from July 2008 to June 2021. Ms. Yuen joined the
Group in September 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in the business of one-stop value chain services,
property investment, trading of grocery food products,
trading of consumables and agricultural products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$73,267,000 (2020:
HK$35,196,000), representing an increase of approximately
108.2% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$51,270,000 (2020: HK$58,845,000).
The basic loss per share of the Company was approximately
HK53.10 cents (2020: HK63.10 cents (restated)).

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the property
investment segment reported revenue of approximately
HK$Nil (2020: HK$266,000). The decrease was due to
decrease in rental income from commercial office. At
31 December 2021, the Group held properties in the People’s
Republic of China (PRC) and Hong Kong for investment
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BHE_E”—F+°“HE=+t—HILEFE"
AEEHEBNZFELT3,267,0008 T (T
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108.2% c A NEBE)HEB ANEMEAFERBLY
51,270,000 7T (Z 2 - Z 4 : 58,845,000
7T) e A B BIREAREELNA53.108M (2
TTFFE 631081l EEF)) o
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266,000787T) © &R /L Th R E A E AR
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REBPAEARENER (FE) REBFE
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purpose amounted to approximately HK$16,869,000 (2020: T4 118,367,000/ 7T) c EAHAGWHEET NG
HK$18,367,000). The portfolio’s rental yield was shown in KRYN TR
the table below.
Key performance - data of property investment BRI — Y EREEE
2021 2020
—E - T -THF
Average occupancy level TG RKTE -% 14.3%
Average monthly rental income FERK (AR B
per square metre (sg.m) BHEEEWA HKS$NIlZ & HK$ 15777
Definition and calculation: Average occupancy level, being TEFE&stE @ FHEEAKERBERGEHAE
percentage of floor area occupied by tenant. Average HEBHNBEDE-FFHRKNAHBHEEFTWA

monthly rental income per sq.m. being average rental income
charged to tenant per sq.m. of floor area leased.

AEREFHRKEEZEEERE S WER T
HEEZWA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue
of approximately HK$3,252,000 (2020: HK$3,002,000),
representing an increase of approximately 8.3%, as
compared to the last year.

the one-

In order to improve the performance of this business, during
the financial year 2020, the team of this business segment
put a lot of efforts and resources to find new customers.
However, due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, many
companies have cut their budget on information technology
(IT) related services.

Facing this predicament, the Directors started to search for
new business opportunities. They seize the opportunity and
diversify the One-Stop Value Chain Services Business into the
gaming industry to sell gaming related products during the
second half year of 2020.

Key performance - data of one-stop value chain
services

EBHE (&)

— it X EEERT

HE_S - F+ZA=+—HLFE > —
ih B EERE DS EMINEEAY3,252,0008
7T (CZEZ”Z 4 1 3,002,000587T) > BRAFEE N
#98.3% o

REELBEEF ZRF RSP RE
E ZEFDHMZEBERARETFREIR
USHMER 7AW AR IREH B K E
B A2 REEH AN ERRKAERRFER
BE-

EHHNRAE EERESKTEK R _FT-F
FTHF EFEMERS B EEE
IR EBETZIEEER EABERITE H
EEEEEEmD-

F# 2 T — — b TUIE (B SR AR 75 9 B 15

2021 2020
—E—F T _THF
Gross profit margin EFE 3.2% 1.4%

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Consumables and Agricultural Products
During the year ended 31 December 2021, this
business segment reported a revenue of approximately
HK$53,597,000 (2020: HK$14,375,000),
increase of approximately 272.8%,
last year. This business segment is mainly composed of re-
usable bags trading business, bulk commodities trading in
resin plastics (ABS) and polyethylene (PE) and recycle of used
plastic products. After engaging the re-usable bags trading
business, the Group gain more understanding about the
raw materials of re-usable bags and regard that the business
opportunities in the plastic recycling industry of turning
the used plastic products into functional recyclables would
produce synergy effect to the re-usable bags trading business.
It will also broaden the income stream of the Group and
enhance the social responsibility of the Group. Therefore, the
Group has stepped into the recycle of used plastic products in
this first quarter of 2021. Certain revenue was generated but
due to relatively high factory overhead in the startup stage,
this part of the business is yet to provide a positive margin.
The Directors believe that there will be gradual improvement
on the performance of this segment.

representing an
as compared to the

BEEEwmR O
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EHDIRHWEHA53,597,0008 7T (ZF
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Key performance - data of trading of consumables and iR — R EEDSE S EiE
agricultural products
2021 2020
T C"IETTITHF
Gross profit margin EFE (1.0)% 10.5%

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products

In the trading of grocery food products segment, the Group is
the sole and exclusive distributor for the sale and distribution
of ramen and udon products under the brand of “Nittin”
(HT)in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The trademark
licence agreement and the sole distributorship agreement for
ramen and udon were renewed for a period of 3 years on
25 March 2019. Details of the renewal was disclosed in the
announcement of the Company date at 25 March 2019. The
agreements have expired in February 2022 and the parties are
discussing the future direction of this cooperation.

The Group has been devoting more resources to improve
the performance of this segment, and it is from time to
time looking for suitable opportunities to expand the variety
of products and client base in this industry. The lockdown
measures caused by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
makes frozen foods became popular. Therefore, the Directors
decided to grip this chance to expand the product mix in this
segment and entered into the frozen food industry. Starting
from the second half year of 2020, after careful analysis
on current market situation and environment, the Group
introduced new products including imported frozen seafood.
The Group obtained authorised distributor certificates for
distribution of frozen seafood such as king crab, shrimp,
lobster, fish, crab, and surimi stick. The frozen seafood
products are from the production bases of all around the
world including but not limited to Thailand, Vietnam and
Norway. Also, the Group has sourced more dairy products
such as bread and pastry so as to diversify its grocery food
portfolio. To further enhance the business, apart from sale
of grocery food products in supermarkets, the Group has
made more use of online platform and social media. In the
second half year of 2020, the Group started online sales
through social media and launched its online sales platform
on HKTVmall operated by the Hong Kong Television Network
Limited (stock code: 1137) to promote the products and
directly reach out more potential customers. It helps the
Group to further diversify the customers base and save the
intermediate sales cost.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the segment reported a revenue
of approximately HK$16,201,000 (2020: HK$14,738,000),
representing an increase of approximately 9.9% as compared
with the last corresponding period.

Key performance - data of trading of grocery food
products
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2021 2020
T CZETIZTHF
Gross profit margin EFE 6.6% 8.4%

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Provision of money lending services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
money lending services segment reported a revenue
of approximately HK$217,000 (2020: HK$1,381,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 84.3% as
compared with the last corresponding period. With majority
of the loans were secured by un-listed company shares,
the Group has put its effort in maintaining, developing and
expanding its money lending business. The Group’s money
lending business is operating by its wholly-owned subsidiary,
China AF Finance Limited (“China AF Finance”).

Key performance - loan interest data
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BT (CETEH 11,381,000 7T) » BEER
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BENRMSEER AEBEBHERF EBK
BEREEE - AEBZREXEHEAHEEZE
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BETF)) EE-

R 23— Bk 7B 2L #5

2021 2020
- C"ZTTITHF
Interest rate earned BEREF S 2.3% 15.2%

Definition and calculation: Interest rate earned, being
percentage of interest income divided by loan amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE SRR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)
Business model

(i)

(ii)

China AF Finance mainly provides loan financing to
individuals customers. Customers are mainly solicited
by the staff management or by referrals of business
associates or clients;

Directors of China AF Finance have over 5 years of
experience in operating the money lending business
supported by back office staff including finance and
accounting departments.

Internal control procedures
The Operation Manual of China AF Finance has set out the
internal control guidelines for the money lending business.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In light of the credit risk, the company will also
consider as additional factors in credit assessment
including but not limited to (i) the background of
the potential customer including its job nature; (ii)
the credit history such as previous loans and the
repayment durations; and (iii) the bank history in the
bank statement;

according to the Operation Manual of China AF
Finance, loan terms are determined with mainly
reference to the market rates, financial background of
each client and value of collaterals (if applicable);

China AF Finance will assess the identity, beneficial
ownership of collaterals (if applicable) and the amount
wishes to borrow of the potential customer. After the
assessment and based on the information provided,
the Company will review the application and conduct
preliminary due diligence. Upon the loan assessment,
the loan officer will approve the loan application and
need to ensure that the customer meet the eligibility
and approval criteria for the loan, If the applicant is
considered fail after the assessment, the application
will be denied. The application together with the
relevant results from the credit assessment are
approved. The applicant will sign the loan agreement
with the Company and the loan will be draw to the
applicant thereafter;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)
Internal control procedures (continued)

(iv)

China AF Finance will maintain a loan register to keep
track of loan and interest repayments. It will also
remind clients before due date by telephone calls and/
or sending relevant debit notes;

If there were overdue loans, follow up telephone calls
will be made to remind clients for repayment. If clients
still fail to repay, China AF Finance will issue demand
letters. After a final reminder and no response from
customer, legal proceedings may be considered to
institute to recover the outstanding loan and interest
receivable.

Major terms of the loan receivables

The total outstanding principal amount of loan receivables as
at 31 December 2021 was HK$8.33 million bearing interest
at the rate ranging from 8% to 36%, maturing from one
month to one year, with unlisted shares as collaterals.

There are only 3 borrowers. The outstanding principal
amount of the largest borrower is HK$4.79 million which
account for approximately 55% of the total loan receivables.

Provision of impairment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Provision of impairment were made, among others,
(a) after considering whether the loan was overdue;
(b) assessment of collaterals; and (c) repayment history
of clients. Executive directors of the Company are
fully aware of all loans when they became due and
receivable;

The amount of impairment was determined by using
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model conducted by an
independent valuer as at year end date during annual
audit.

Reversal of provision of loan and interest receivables
amounted to HK$0.81 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: provision of HK$0.54 million).
The movements in impairment provision were results
of settlement received.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of financial services

Due to unfavorable market conditions, no income was
generated from financial consultancy services.

Securities investments

The Group had equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in aggregate of approximately
HK$16,041,000 as at 31 December 2021, representing
approximately 6.72% of the Company’s total assets (2020:
approximately HK$28,114,000, representing approximately
10.41% of the Company’s total assets).

The Company’s investment strategy is to invest in securities
that have growth potential, with the aims to capture capital
appreciation and diversify the Company’s investment
portfolio (as detailed below) in order to reduce concentration
of investment risks in one industry and maximise value
for the Shareholders. The composition of the investment
portfolio may change from time to time during the coming
year. In order to mitigate the possible financial risks related
to the equities, the investment portfolio will be monitored
regularly and appropriate actions would be taken whenever
necessary in a prudent manner in response to changes in
market situation. Below is additional information in relation
to the significant investments with market value exceeding
HK$10,000,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020:

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

EHME (8
e & AR

BRI TR 2 R 55 50 AR 5 00 4 A R R AR
WA o

EERE

B —F+ZA=+—8B > FrEEER
TEsFAHME2ARGE 2 ERTAERER
TEFABEGDZEMEEG 416,041,000
B BEAABBEEEN672% (ZEZE
1 4928,114,0008 0 A A BIBEEDN
10.41%) ©

FAATNKRERBARERAEREBENNE
FoERIBEERNEEREEFAATKRES
B EFBETX UL ERKERE—1T
FHNEBKRBERRRBERKC - RERE
MHENEMB RN EREFEL - BRERER
RAERARYB] SE R 5 AL > T FInS E HABR E IR
BHEAT N U ERFRERIGEETHLUERE
MRt - R_T_—F+-_HF=+—H
kRZEBZZF+_A=+—H BEHEBR
10,000,000 TR E R EBRHAVERINE KL
LI



Sk

RE

=
=}

BIEfE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- = 8/5' 607 %101 %eL9 711'82 17091 9€5'2C €9l 128 [esoL
- = (00£'1) (019) %6'C %%0°'€ 1L8'L 192t 1£5'6 1L8'L
- = (00£'1) (019) %6'C %¥0°'€ 148'L 192, %667 %66'% 000'0S¢'LL  0000SZ'LL  1/S'6 LL8'L (30N (275 &4 5= 5
(T 78S THEY %) «paULN fuedwod
ORERRUBHRY EE Juawdojardq Wstinoy. uenfBuluieq Inyuy
¥IBH awodul 3AIsuayaIdwod Jayo
ZEBHEEYEY L L% ybnoiyy anjen ey e sjuswnisul Aynb3
- = 8LT'L 6L0'€ %61'L %89'€ 37414 08L'8 S96'TL 19L's
- = 8LT'L 6L0°€ %6v'L %89'€ 37414 08L'8 HEV VN HBS VN BES YN BB VN S9%67L 19L's (LE[) BE (1 310N) S18Y10
50| 10
FERTZTEY 28475  Woid ybnoay) anjea Jiej je sjasse [epueuly
LgA gt Lg st Yt
000,$H 000,$5H 000,$9H 000,$H
Arewxorddy Aprewxosday Arewixosddy Aprewxolddy Arewixosddy Aerewxouddy
g—+= H-+4= &—+4= H8—+4= H-4+= H—+= H-+= H—+4= B—+= H-4+= B—+= H—4=Z BH—4= H—+=
H=+ H=4+ E-+ H=4+ B+ H=4+ =+ B+ B+ H=4+ 5=+ B+ B+ H=4
$ET&T $-T&T $&TET B-T&T HETET H-T&T FETET $-T&T FETE&T F-TET $E&TET F-TET HETET H-T&T
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
00T 120t 0207 120t 0207 120t 0207 120t 0207 120t 0202 120t 0207 120C
JBqwasg |§  Jequiedaq L§  Jequisdeg |§  Jaquiadaq L§  Jaqwisdag |§  Jaquiedag LE  Jsquisdag |§  Jaquieddq L§  Jequisdaq |§  Jaquiedaq LE  JeqWedaq L€ Jequiedaq LE  Jequiedaq L€ Jequiadaq LE
1e sy je sy 1e sy je sy 1e sy jesy 1e sy je sy 1e sy jesy 1e sy je sy 1e sy jesy
¥ BEYHANEER LY NEEZEHESYNEL By HEEHE BRYHEL SNy WERTY HZLETHER fueduios saysanul

panIdal SpUBPIAIQ

sUIBYIP dbueYdXd
pue anjea Jiey ut abuey)

sjasse [e}0) s,dnoup ayy

0} anjeA JaxIew o 9%

anjeA jayel

BETH—+=H-+FTE&"&£"S
BNEAHFTH—+=H"T4+FT——"&°"=R

(B) EogeRe
() EREER

Buipjoyaieys Jo 9

pIaYy saieys Jo Jaquiny

1502 JUBLUISAAUI
40 saleys saduejeg

J0 dweN

020T 1oquiddaqQ LE

popua Jeal pue Lzoz 19qwad9d LE popud Jeah ay) 1o4
(panuuod) s1UaWSIAUI S3I111INJ3S

(penunuod) MIINYINO SSANISNG

17

EBAERAT
T —FFHK

China Eco-Farming Limited FE = 4
Annual Report 2021



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R D

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Securities investments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and year ended
31 December 2020 (continued)

Notes:

These are all listed companies on the Stock Exchange.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, together with
their subsidiaries are mainly engaged in sales of alcoholic
beverages, the provision of financial services, the provision of
blockchain services, the provision of loan financing services,
the provision of auction of alcoholic beverages business,
provision of QR codes on product packaging and solutions
and online advertising display services, the manufacture
and sale of packaging products, investments and trading
in securities, money lending, properties investments,
securities trading, trading business and dealing in, advising
on securities and asset management, futures and options
broking, EPC and consultancy operations, financing and
solar power generation, provision of secured financing
services and microfinance services, shipping and logistics,
design manufacture, supply and installation of passenger
vehicle leather upholstery, supply and installation of vehicle
electronic accessories.

Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development Company
Limited* (Z#ABBEIKIEE BN AERAFE), a company
listed on Shanghai Equity Exchange in the PRC until 28
February 2018, which is principally engaged in development
of tourism resources business. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 19 July 2016 and 31
August 2016.

*  For identification purposes only

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

EBHE (&)

EHRE (@
HE_E-_—F+-A=+—HLEEXK
BE-ZT-THF+-A=+—HLEEFE @)

MIEE

1.

HE_E_—F+_B=+—HILEE>
ZERAHNARBR EMNAT ERE
EHNHB AR T BN T BB RIEE 213
SRR IRMERERY  RHEERRE
RFE N RHEBRRHEERE REERE
HEETNZHISRBASTRURGB LESRE
THRE - FERHEQEER HENE

R - BEVMERE BHERXRB RBEH
MREBHREFIMESRERR EEEER
HAEHARE A S EPCAIBHERE BERK
[FEEEEE N IRHIE R B RB R/ NEEER
B EBHAYR R RE - RBERERN
B PER 24 S E B TRV IEM 2

o

ZHABREREZERRNDABRLR —KRN
- N\FZAZ+N\HZAETELE
RERERZ T OBEHNAT TE2RER
BERASEER ELFHB FHEELART
HREA -—Z—RELtA+NABRZZ—R
FNRB=+—HBKRm-

* (EHBR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group's direction in this
respect.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group’s main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.
The Group also values good conduct of the employees
and has set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to
regulate the acceptance of benefits by the employees. On
the corporate level, the Group continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM (“"GEM Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), such as
disclosure of interests, corporate governance, Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
and “Inside Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal
and financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2021,
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

there was no material breach of or non-compliance
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill by providing training offered by external
organisations. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the employee voluntary turnover rate of the Group was kept
at a low level. During the year, no violation of labour law
was recorded. The key customers of the Group include the
long term trading customers and tenants of the investment
properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the suppliers
of the trading business. The Group has established long
term and solid business relationship with the suppliers which
ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$73,267,000 (2020:
HK$35,196,000), representing an increase of approximately
108.2% as compared to that of last year.

Cost of sales for the year under review was approximately
HK$72,411,000 (2020: HK$29,365,000), representing an
increase of approximately 146.59% as compared to that
of last year. The increase of cost of sales was mainly due to
increase plastics and frozen foods volume.

Administrative expenses for the year under review was
approximately HK$32,458,000 (2020: HK$54,386,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 40.3% as
compared to that of last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to decrease in consultancy fee, staff salary,
exchange loss, loss on written-off of other receivables and
share-based payments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$6,279,000 (2020: HK$8,455,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 25.7% as compared to that of last
year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in interest-
paid and payable for borrowings.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company in the amount of approximately
HK$51,270,000 (2020: HK$58,845,000). Basic loss per share
of the Company decrease from HK63.10 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to HK53.10 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowings during the
year under review. At 31 December 2021, the bank balances
and cash of the Group was approximately HK$2,850,000
(2020: HK$2,951,000).

At 31 December 2021, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$129,180,000 (2020: HK$175,135,000)
and the net current liabilities was approximately
HK$34,643,000 (2020: the net current liabilities
HK$2,665,000).

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2021, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$109,533,000 (2020:
HK$94,990,000), which mainly comprised of trade and
other payables, contract liabilities, borrowings, margin
loans payables, lease liabilities, financial guarantee contract,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, income tax payable
and deferred tax liabilities. These liabilities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United State Dollars,
Australian Dollars and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$238,713,000 (2020: HK$270,125,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, turned to 0.46 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: 0.35).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended
31 December 2021 by business segment is set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 52 (2020: 36)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$18,237,000 in
total (2020: HK$18,219,000). The Group determines the
remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based
on individual performance and expertise. Apart from basic
remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual contribution.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital was HK$1,059,552.43 divided into 105,955,243
shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) (2020: HK$9,325,524.30
divided into 932,552,430 shares of HK$0.01 each).

Placing of new shares

On 2 September 2021, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with a placing agent. It is proposed that
the placing agent would propose to offer for subscription of
186,500,000 placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.034
per placing share. A total of 127,000,000 Placing Shares
have been successfully placed and the net proceeds raised
after deducting the placing commission and other relevant
expenses were approximately HK$4.1 million. Further details
of the placing are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 2 September 2021 and 28 September 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE kD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Placing of new shares (continued)
The net proceeds from placing were used as follows:

BA#5 Ol RE (&)
EEE%F[HY{Q (ME)
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amount used

SARIEFERL LN A ERA -

Remaining
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Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal of
investment properties

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC by additional acquisition of further
equity interests a subsidiary

On 17 July 2017, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("YWML") and Skyline Top Limited (“STL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the YWML has agreed to
sell and the STL has agreed to purchase the sale shares (the
“Sale Shares”), representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Delightful Hope Limited (the “Target Company”) for cash
consideration of HK$55,000,000. The Target Company is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is owned
as to 50% by each of YWML and STL. Following completion,
the Target Company will be wholly owned by the STL and will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal of
investment properties (continued)

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC by additional acquisition of further
equity interests a subsidiary (continued)

The principal assets of the Target Company consist of
properties comprise 8 commercial units of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,690 sg.m. in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, and a residential house in
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC of a total
gross floor area of approximately 315.23 sqg.m. According
to the audited consolidated account of the Target Company,
the book value of the properties was approximately
HK$110,236,000 as at 31 December 2016.

The consideration payable by the STL to the YWML for the
Sale Shares is HK$55,000,000 and shall be satisfied by the
STL's payment in cash to the YWML or its nominee in the
following manner: (a) as to the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000, within 14 days after the date of the
Agreement; (b) as to the balance of HK$35,000,000, upon
completion.

On 31 July 2017, a supplemental agreement was entered
into between the parties that the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000 shall be paid on or before 28 August
2017 or such later date as the parties may agree in writing.
HK$20,000,000 of the above payment has been paid.

On 17 January 2018, the parties had entered into a second
supplemental agreement whereas the timing of payment
of the balance of HK$35,000,000 was extended from 17
January 2018 to 17 January 2019. On 19 March 2019, the
parties had entered into a third supplemental agreement
whereas the Long Stop Date has been extended from 17
January 2019 to 31 March 2020 and further extended to 30
September 2020, and payment of the remaining balance shall
be paid by one or several instalments on or before the Date
of Completion. As at the date of this report, the amount of
HK$10,760,237 remained outstanding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal of
investment properties (continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 30 December 2021, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline”) as
vendor, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with the purchaser,
pursuant to which Skyline has conditionally agreed to sell to
the Purchaser, and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to purchase from Skyline, the sale shares, representing the
entire issued share capital of the Konson Global Investments
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Skyline, at the
consideration of HK$8,000,000.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30
December 2021, 14 February 2022 and 14 March 2022 for
details.

On 31 December 2021, All Ready Holdings Limited (“All
Ready”) as vendor, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into agreements with the purchaser,
pursuant to which All Ready has agreed to sell to the
purchaser, and the purchaser has agreed to purchase from
All Ready the entire issued share capital of Ease Chance
Investments Limited and Sky Success International Investment
Limited, both companies were wholly-owned by All Ready, at
the consideration of HK$1 for each company respectively. The
disposals were completed on 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Litigation

Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang Technology Company Limited
(Shengshi Fugiang), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, has received a claim for lost of assets at the sum of
approximately RMB1,964,000. The Plaintiff commenced civil
proceedings against Shengshi Fugiang and filed a statement
that they cannot retrieve the furniture and equipment from the
premises owned by Shengshi Fugiang and was leased to the
Plaintiff, and therefore Shengshi Fugiang should compensate
for the Plaintiff's lost. Shengshi Fugiang has made a counter-
claim against the Plaintiff for outstanding rent and delay
in deliver vacant possession at the sum of approximately
RMB980,000. The case was first heard in Court on 26 February
2021. After second court hearing, according to the written
judgement of the court, the Plaintiff will be responsible to pay
to Shengshi Fugiang an amount of RMB596,000 for claims and
legal expense and Shengshi Fugiang will be responsible to pay
to the Plaintiff an amount of RMB594,000 for damages and
valuation fee. The Plaintiff has made an appeal and Shengshi
Fugiang is currently seeking legal advice for the appeal.

Charges on Group's Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the listed equity investments
listed in Hong Kong with the fair value of approximately
HK$5,922,000 (2020: HK$13,986,000) have been pledged
to financial institutions to secure the margin loans payables
of approximately HK$6,090,000 (2020: HK$6,514,000) and
term loans of HK$6,900,000 (2020: HK$6,900,000).

Further, the investment property located in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$9,730,000 (2020:
HK$12,300,000) has been pledged to a financial institution
in Hong Kong to secure a term loan of HK$9,000,000 (2020:
HK$10,000,000). The investment properties located in PRC
with the fair value of approximately HK$7,139,000 (2020:
HK$6,067,000) have been pledged to a PRC company to
secure a 3-year loan of RMB13,000,000 granted to an
associate of the Group.

Unlisted investment which are classified as equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income were
pledged to a PRC company as to secure a 3-year loan of
RMB4,550,000 granted to a private company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

At 31 December 2021, the Group has provided financial
guarantee to Gold Wide Holdings Limited, which is classified
as an interest in associate in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, for a term loan with a principal
amount of RMB13 million, bearing interest of 8% per annum
for a period of three years up to 14 January 2022. (2020:
RMB13 million). Since the team loan has not been repaid, the
financial guarantee shall continue in force.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$47,628,000 (2020:
HK$58,566,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

All of the Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or United State Dollars, Australian Dollars or New Taiwan
dollars. The Directors do not consider that the Group is
exposed to any material foreign currency exchange risk.
Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have been
implemented.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details are set out in note 55 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, apart from social unrest at some parts
of the world, the global economic activities will continue
being affected by the COVID-19 pandemic for some time.
However, as more COVID-19 vaccines and medicines to treat
the disease are being developed and people are getting
vaccinated, local economy is expected to recover slowly as
business activities pick up. The Group will continue allocating
its resources carefully in different segments as to optimize its
investment returns.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

One-stop value chain services

The economy of Hong Kong has been hit hard by the
COVID-19 pandemic during the start of 2020 until now.
Financial performances of many companies have been
affected and they have minimised their budget on IT related
services, which led to decrease in revenue in this business
segment. In order to maintain the Group’s revenue and
competitiveness in this segment, the Directors spare no
effort in discovering new potential customers and provide
more varieties to attract customers. Following the gradual
stabilisation of the pandemic recently, the Group has used
its best endeavours to develop this business segment,
including but not limited to maintain good relationship and
communication with current customers and actively seek for
new customers. Management believes that the Group’s one-
stop value chain service will be gradually resumed after the
recovery of the pandemic. In addition to the experience and
connections of the team in this market, it is expected that
business in this segment will improve.

Other than the one-stop value chain services in relation to
IT, the management has diversified into the gaming industry,
so as to sustain its business during this tough atmosphere in
Hong Kong. The entering into of the gaming industry was
originally the temporary thought of the Company. However,
the Directors noticed that this industry is indeed a profitable
industry even during this difficult period. The Company will
develop further in the gaming industry in the future and
may devote more resources in developing gaming related
products. Overall, the Directors believe that after the recovery
of COVID-19 pandemic, the economy of Hong Kong is
expected to turnaround, and performance of this business
will be improved.

Property investment
The Group originally has few property investments in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group is cautious of the tension
between USA and China, as well as the pessimistic global
atmosphere. The Group will carefully monitor its property
investments portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of consumables and agricultural products

The Directors considered the Consumables Trading Business
demonstrates a steady growth in the past years and is
optimistic about its future contribution to the Group in terms
of revenue and profit.

The experience of taking part in the bulk commodities trading
business in resin plastics (ABS) and polyethylene (PE) has led
the Group into the recycle business of used plastic products.
Plant and equipment were leased for this development, and
management is looking forward to the potential growth in
this business.

Although there is economic downturn due to COVID-19
pandemic and this business segment was affected, the
management still strived its best to develop and maintain the
business. By providing value-added customisation services to
the products, it is believed that the sale of re-usable bags is
able to maintain a steady growth.

Also, the Group believes that there is a trend of increasing
consciousness and desire for environmentally friendly
products. The Group will use its best endeavours to develop
opportunities to work with other private companies and non-
governmental organisations for recycling and mitigate the
pollution problems brought by the plastic wastes.

The Group has contributed to the society continually by way
of donation to charity organisations and sponsor various
campaigns in relation to environmental protection. Hence,
the Group will endeavor to promote its brand through online
marketing, sponsoring various environmentally friendly
campaigns and participate in more brand building activities in
Hong Kong and China.

With the help of these multi-dimensional advertisements and
promotions especially through online marketing, the Group
will be benefited from having more market shares in the
field, expanding its customer base in Hong Kong, as well as
building up reputation and goodwill in Hong Kong. Most
importantly, the revenue this segment is expected to be in an
upward trend.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of consumables and agricultural products
(continued)

In the near future, the Group would like to expand the
Consumables Trading Business to the PRC by advertising
through social media and sponsoring various events to be
held by local reputable environmental friendly organisations.

Trading of grocery food products

Demand for frozen or fresh fish, livestock and poultry has
increased the most in 2020 and continued in 2021 no matter
for non-supermarket shops or supermarkets. The Directors
believed that this was due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic which most people prefer to stay at home to
prevent infection. Apart from udon and ramen, the Directors
decided to widen its food products portfolio in the second
half year of 2020 to cater the needs of the market and
introduced different varieties of frozen seafood.

As the fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic is sweeping Hong
Kong, the Directors believed that people’s consciousness on
health will remain for a period of time, such that demand
for frozen or fresh fish, livestock and poultry will remain
stable. Even after the pandemic is totally under control, it
is believed that the demand will not decrease significantly,
as they still share a big proportion among all goods in non-
supermarket shops or supermarkets. Therefore, the Directors
will from time to time source more varieties of frozen seafood
to expand market share in the frozen food sector. Also, the
Directors will source more dairy products such as bread and
pastry to diversify the risk the Group’s food product portfolio.

The Group will also put more use of online platform and
social media to enhance the business. The Directors target to
explore the foreign grocery food market. They will discover
more online platforms in other countries so as to broaden its
customer base to all over the world.

The Directors have been in active discussion with food
importers and brand owners for distributing certain brands of
food and beverage. It is expected that the food and beverage
will be launched in supermarkets and online sales platform of
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of grocery food products (continued)

With the experienced procurement and sales team of the
Group, the Group is optimistic that the Grocery Food Trading
Business, no matter online or offline, will progressively pick
up in the future and revenue of this business will be improved
after introducing more varieties of food products and
broadening of customer base.

Provision of money lending services

Under the current economy environment, the Directors
believe that there will be increase demand of money lending
of individuals or corporate customers. However, at the
same time, risk of default may increase as it may be hard
for the customers to repay the loan at this difficult time.
The management will further enhance the loan approval
procedures and carefully filter and screen out customers with
high risks in order to protect the interest of the Group. The
Directors are more cautions in the development of the money
lending business. The Group will continue to maintain sound
credit control policy to balance the finance income against
credit risk from respective borrowers.

Provision of financial services

The performance of the Financial Services Business was not
satisfactory. In addition to the global economic downturn
and uncertainty of the Hong Kong economy brought by the
fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic, the geographical threats
deteriorated as war broke out between Russia and Ukraine.
Further to the United State sanctions imposed to Hong Kong
on August 2020 and the tension between United State and
China, Hong Kong financial institutions face the unknown
threats that might harm the Hong Kong economy.

In view of the abovementioned, the Directors considered the
financial service industry is unfavourable in the long-term
and decided to scale down the financial services business in
relation to the asset management and advising on securities
in the future. The Group will, depending on the market
conditions, reallocate its resources from the financial services
to develop other businesses that the Group expected to have
a brighter prospect.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

MATERIAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN UNAUDITED AND
AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS

Since financial information contained in the Unaudited
Preliminary Announcement was neither audited nor agreed
with Asian Alliance as at the date of the publication
and subsequent adjustments have been made to such
information, shareholders and potential investors of the
Company are advised to pay attention to certain differences
between the financial information of the unaudited and
audited annual results of the Group. Set forth below are
principal details and reasons for the material differences in
such financial information.

;g%aa.@%wﬁr% REIZEX
RSB AR REEZD T AMHAEZ
MHEENBECERTERERKBE BH
@ﬂﬁ%éﬂﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂki
BERBEEEIAEBERCEEZREEZ
Eﬁ% AZMBERNBZETER - T&RHE
JERMMBENERERZ TBFIFRIER-

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND g dE L B D TIN5
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE - A=+ —HIFFEE
2021 2021
-8 “ET-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  NOTES
TAT FERT FhET W
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Differences)
(&%) (RICE1Z) (Z58)
Revenue Wis
Goods and services 3 mn R AR 73,050 64,640 8,410 1
Leases HE - - -
Interest under effective interest method IR BFEF R %5 EMF 8 217 217 -
Total revenue Fllog 73,267 64,857 8,410
Cost of sales HERE (72,411) (64,014) 8397) 1
Gross profit EH 856 843 13
Other income, gains or losses H A Wm 3518 1,842 2,418 (576) 2
Impairment losses under expected EHREEEBENETH
credit loss model, net of reversal REEE (G0 &) (10,629) (2,449) (8,180) 3
Loss from changes in fair value of RENENATEEEEE
investment properties, net L (1,678) (1,256) (422) 4
Gain from changes in fair value BATESAERZER
of financial assets at fair value BEEATEENG
through profit or loss 3,019 3,019 -
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill ~ #L 7 2 HEZAIRIEES 18 (725) (725) -
Impairment loss recognised on HEAREEANHESE
deposits paid (5,445) - (5,445) 5
Selling and distribution expenses E&Ez Al (870) (870) -
Administrative expenses TERY (32,458) (32,278) (180) 6
Share of results of associates ﬁfﬁ = UNEIES 247 (118) 365 7
Finance costs BB A (6,279) (6,279) -
Loss before tax BrIAIES IR (52,120) (37,695) (14,425)
Income tax (expense) credit Fifsin (i) &% (500) (684) 8 8
Loss for the year AEERR (52,620) (38,379) (14,241)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEEEwmR O

FeETREMEZEERKER (B
BE T - H=+—HIFFEE

2021 2021
“Z--F B —f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  NOTES
AT FTET TEmT M
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Differences)
(&%) (REBER) (Z%)
Other comprehensive income (expense):  Effi 2@ E (%)
Item that will not be reclassified W EEM I EE BT
to profit or loss: EH !
Fair value loss on investments in equity — FAFEt AEMZEWE
instruments at fair value through ZEGTERENATE
other comprehensive income BiE (812) (812) -
Items that may be reclassified RENEMAEEBm
subsequently to profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on MERNERESE Y
translation of foreign operations ERELR 1,611 1,842 231) 6
Release of cumulative exchange reserve & BINEF BRI R 5t
upon disposal of foreign operations (E R 1,043 1,155 112) 6
2,654 2,997 (343)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMZENRE
for the year, net of income tax MERFIEH 1,842 2,185 (343)
Total comprehensive expense for the year Z~EE 2 H R 4% (50,778) (36,194) (14,584)
Loss for the year attributable to: ElEAFERE !
Owners of the Company AAREBA (51,270) (37,039) (14,231)
Non-controlling interests R REER (1,350) (1,340) (10)
(52,620) (38,379) (14,241)
Total comprehensive expense BEAEE2EMSEE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company VN/N=IEZ 7= (49,819) (35,245) (14,574)
Non-controlling interests Ele e L (959) (949) (10)
(50,778) (36,194) (14,584)
LOSS PER SHARE BkEE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR#EE (B (53.10) (38.36) (14.74)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE SRR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2021

= A
mah

FEAR LR

R-FE-_—F+"H=+—H

2021 2021
B _EB_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  NOTES
TERT TAET FAT M
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Differences)
(R&E1) (RECEZ) (%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment B & K& 810 810 -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 382 382 -
Investment properties REME 16,869 17,297 428) 4
Goodwill G - - -
Intangible asset Eﬁﬁiﬁé 758 758 -
Interests in associates N A=UN=IPA 3 30,137 29,886 251 7
Equity instruments at fair value through Tﬁ’&—‘l—fﬁ quKEﬂﬂiﬁ
other comprehensive income WazERT R 7,261 7,261 -
Deposits paid [SADE & 108,996 114,527 (5,531) 5
Other receivables Hith BB - - -
Loans to associates AHENBEHER - - -
165,213 170,921 (5,708)
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 78 2,716 2,716 -
Trade and other receivables FEWER PR L FE W F00E 39,141 48,647 (9,506) 3
Loan and interest receivables EWERRF S 1,935 1,935 -
Loans to associates mE=E N B EHER 3,826 3,826 -
Financial assets at fair value through BATESA BT
profit or loss SREE 8,780 8,780 -
Restricted bank balance ZIRHIRITHE SR 705 705 -
Bank balances and cash RTEGRES 2,850 2,850 -
59,953 69,459 (9,506)
Assets classified as held for sale NEAREHEEE 13,547 13,432 115 6
73,500 82,891 (9,391)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables FEfT AR R E (S TR 1B 42,201 42,372 (171) 6
Contract liabilities CEOLE 2,504 2,504 =
Amounts due to non-controlling FE(T IR R R T IB
interests 3,645 3,645 -
Borrowings B 41,040 41,040 =
Margin loans payable EARESER 6,090 6,090 =
Lease liabilities HE&RE 506 506 =
Financial guarantee contract MBEREH 12,102 12,102 =
Income tax payable EAFER 55 38 17 8
108,143 108,297 (154)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE RO

mEMRBERRE (&)

At 31 December 2021 R CE T —FF _/A=+—H
2021 2021
—E-—F T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  NOTES
FTERT FET THT I
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Differences)
(=) (REE7Z) (E%)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MEBEFE (34,643) (25,406) (9,237)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS WEERARDER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 130,570 145,515 (14,945)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Deferred tax liabilities RILRIEEE 1,390 1,593 (03 8
1,390 1,593 (203)
NET ASSETS BEFE 129,180 143,922 (14,742)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B K HE
Share capital fEZN 1,060 1,060 -
Reserves (=i 87,214 101,946 (14,732)
Equity attributable to owners of the KREHER AEIEER
Company 88,274 103,006 (14,732)
Non-controlling interests R EER 40,906 40,916 (10)
TOTAL EQUITY gk ] 129,180 143,922 (14,742)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R D

Notes:

The difference was the result of recognition of sales and
associated costs completed on or before 31 December 2021.

The material difference of other income, gains or losses was
mainly due to written-off of other payables aged over 7
years and adjustment of overstated interest income on other
receivables.

The difference was the result of update of impairment
assessment of the Group’s financial assets and financial
guarantee contract after reassessment by valuer.

The difference was the result of update of assessment
of fair value of the Group's investment properties after
reassessment by valuer.

The difference was the result of update of impairment
assessment of the Group's deposits paid after reassessment
by valuer.

The difference was a result of upon finalisation of financial
statements of the Group's foreign operations.

The difference was mainly arising from the finalisation
of financial statements of the Group’s PRC associated
companies.

The difference was mainly arising from the reversal of
deferred tax in relation to the fair value change of the
investment properties in the PRC and provision for current
tax.

The difference was mainly arising from release of cumulative
exchange reserve upon disposal of foreign operations.
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The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 50 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 101 to 102
of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 9 to 36 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
315 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers accounted for approximately
73.1% (2020: 58.1%) of the Group's turnover, and the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 68.9% (2020:
56.4%) of the Group's purchase, for the year ended 31
December 2021. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2021, any
Director or his associates or any shareholder (who owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned customers or suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2021 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
40 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 105 to 106 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM")

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:00 p.m.
on 9 June 2022

10 June 2022
To 16 June 2022
(both dates inclusive)

Book close date

Record date 16 June 2022

AGM date 16 June 2022
In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars
Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong before the
above latest time to lodge transfers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 6 May
2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme was in force for a period of 10
years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible participants the Directors may at its
absolute discretion select as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants include any
employee (whether full-time or part-time, including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), shareholder, customer, supplier of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest; any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support, any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of the Group or any Invested Entity; and any
other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 7 December 2020, the Company granted 55,800,000
share options as to 9,300,000 share options to a director
and, 46,500,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme to 5 consultants of the Company, who are not
directors or employees of the Group (the “Non-employee
Participants”). Exercise price of the share option was
HK$0.0554 to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.01
each of the Company. Closing price of the Shares of the
Company was HK$0.0550. These Non-employee Participants
provide consultancy services, business development support
to the Group, including but not limited to provision of advice
in relation to the business expansion in the grocery industry
and technical consultancy, and sourcing potential business
development opportunity to the Group.
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Number of Number of
Business segment Services Provided/ Providing share options consultants
ES B/ REMRMEZ RS FBREHR ER#E
Business development Trading of consumable products 9,300,000 1
EBER HERES
Business development Business expansion in the grocery market 9,300,000 * 3 3
EHKER and technical consultancy = 27,900,000

R H™IS R BN EHER

Administration Business Administration and legal, financial 9,300,000 1

and risk advice

T

ITHEENRER SRKERES

The Board considered that the share options granted to the
consultants can help retaining and motivating these Non-
employee Participants to generate growth in the Company’s
value. The share options were granted to these consultants to
provide incentives to continuously make contributions to the
long term growth of the Group and to maintain an on-going
relationship with them.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules 23.09(3) that the total
number of share options available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was nil since the Share Option Scheme lapsed
on 5 May 2021, representing 0% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of the Annual Report, which
does not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

EFERXn BTZEEBNBRERNN
BRERABZFIFRERESRE  LENAF
NEEER MZFREBKTDERE  LUNE
REFEREIEENRPERFLER I
B SRR BRI H

RIBGEM LR AISE23.093)1% > B FERE ST
BN B —FHEBABRMUR REERE
RIESTEI P HETHBREBISZ X
FHREAMERATEETRMNBI0%  KBBEX
NEREEHITRMBEAIZ0% -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and accepted and
remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was
5,580,000 after the Capital Reorganisation of the Company
which became effective on 22 October 2021 (2020:
55,800,000 before the Capital Reorganisation), representing
approximately 5.27% (2020: 5.98%) of the Company’s
issued share capital as at that date.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Chun Fai (appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy (appointed on 14 February 2022)
Mr. So David Tat Man

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Chung Hee (retired on 10 June 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party to
the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective service agreement. Each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company and
performance of the Directors.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr.
Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man, an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2021.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, were
as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:

EERESTHRAEBRAABHEM
1REEE Z B BRARRID R (G55 2 1

8%

RN_EZ—F+ZHB=+—H xR E
EFRRSITHAERBRESESKBEEERG
(MEEH R HRE A1) FEXVELE 7R84 2B
BARB KGR (BIEREE S RAEEG
PERERXPERRANEFERE RN
KB) WIRER F KRG RGIE3521%B5E A
KABFEZRREERMZ AR HEER
BE LR (ExREBFEPERAESEXVE) 2
B ABRRMS RESZERIRA  HIRIE
GEM ET#RAIES 468 EH5.67KBRES
ETRESRPZHATANGARE KRBT
ZHRERIKABUWT

BRBRBARTINR _E——F R B/NHMRK
M ERES BRI A ABERE HES
FFERUBYRZWMBIRAITETR) BIRRR
RIFE -

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant per Share  Exercisable period 2021 the year the year the year 2021
(HKS)
W-8_-% o
SRRl -B-H ) t2R=+-8
iz RiA% IR 78 HAITE ERRL ERiT ER%H HRITH
(Em)
So David Tat Man 7 December 2020 0.554 7 December 2020 - 9,300,000 - - - 930,000
By ZE_EF+°AtH (Note) 6 December 2025 (Note)
(#) —Z-BETALRE (fst)
“BTRE+7ARA
Note: After Capital Reorganisation of the Company which became et . ARBEAEEANR_Z_—F+AZ+Z

effective on 22 October 2021, the exercise price was
adjusted to HK$0.554 and the outstanding share options
granted to a director were consolidated to 930,000.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above,
at no time during the Reporting Period, there subsisted
arrangements to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is a party, being arrangements whose subjects are, or one
of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors or the
chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors of the Company, their spouse or
their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2021, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company:

ETERR (&)
RAAT R RAMRN ZFA

Approximate
percentage of
the Company'’s

Number of issued share
Name Capacity Shares capital
EEAT
BkEz
W/ e g1 LR 4= BAFRLT
So Chi Ming (“Mr. So”) (Note 1) Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 16,167,600 15.26%
g (et (M) interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
BB M EBERETERZEER (M=E2)
Yeung Sau Han Agnes (“Ms. Yeung”) Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 16,167,600 15.26%
BEMe L (MBrt)) interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
BB M EBEREZERZEER (M=E2)
Ever Better Holdings Limited ("Ever Better”) Interest of controlled corporation 14,635,200 13.81%
REREE RS (Note 2)
(Fi#5E2)
A 'S Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 14,635,200 13.81%
("A'S Investment”) EnBEEA (Note 2)
(Fi#5E2)
Notes: Mk -
1. Mr. So is uncle of So David Tat Man, an executive director of 1. BAEAARRRAHITERHRIEX M o
the Company.
2. Mr. So and Ms. Yeung are spouses. Based on the disclosure 2. BRERBRTARB RIBEHILERIG
of interests forms both filed on 1 September 2020 by Mr. TR ZEZEFNLA—HHEBREZ#
So and Ms. Yeung, Mr. So has an interest of 1,190,400 mIFE RN BRI AEFN,190,400/2 B8 17 A
Shares as beneficial owner, and Ms. Yeung has an interest EED FABaBEAAN) BB LER
of 342,000 Shares as beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, 342,000 HEE#TD (FABERESR
Mr. So is deemed to be interested in the Shares owned by AN) o IREBEF S REAERE BREERRA
Ms. Yeung and Ms. Yeung is deemed to be interested in the Rz tHEBZRNPEE#E=mBEBZ T
Shares owned by Mr. So. A S Investment has an interest of WRARBRCERE ZRMDTPES R
14,635,200 Shares as beneficial owner. A S Investment is A S Investmenti?14,635,2008% f& 15 R A
wholly-owned by Ever Better. Ever Better is owned as to 50% m (EABmBEBA) °A S InvestmentH
by Mr. So and 50% by Ms. Yeung. Ever Better®2 & A o Ever Betters) Bl F &k 4t
E R L HERS0% R o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company: (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products
On 4 February 2016, Chan Kee and Right Ocean
entered into the Sole Distributorship Agreement
whereas Chan Kee has agreed to appoint Right
Ocean as its sole and exclusive distributor for sale
and distribution of the Products within the territories
of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (the “Sale
Transactions”).

Right Ocean is indirectly held as to 51% by the
Company and 49% by Ms. Yoo, Chan Kee (90%
held by Mr. Chan, the spouse of Ms. Yoo) is therefore
connected person at subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Sale Transactions contemplated under the Sole
Distributorship Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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EEEHRS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BHE AT 5 (&)
1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. BEAEX S —HERSIHERES
distribution of grocery food products (continued) =)
The Master Agreement TEGE
The Sole Distributorship Agreement B — i
Date: 25 March 2019
HER: —_E-AF=BZ+HhaH
Parties: (i) Chan Kee
T4 (i) [GE
(ii) Right Ocean
(i  EE
Duration: Commencing from 4 February 2019 and continue for a period of 3 years
FEREER - BB NE-ANAEG BEAEE
Subject matter: The Sale Transactions
FEFIE: HERS
Annual Caps: The Sale Transactions will be subject to the following annual caps:
FELR: HEXZRATE NIFEE LR !
The aggregate amounts payable by Right Ocean to Chan Kee for the Sale
Transactions shall not exceed HK$12 million, HK$15 million and HK$18 million
for the years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021, respectively.
WE-2-—AF+-A=+-B “B-BF+-A=+—AR-B—
F+A=T—HLFE FERBHEERZEN FHELNBEEE > 2HF
BHEBEEeEEET - 1SEEEATRISEE ST
Transaction amount: For the year ended 31 December 2021: approximately HK$2.2 million
RAHEE RBE_ZE_—F+_RA=+—HILFE AN2288%F T
Terms: On normal commercial terms and at rates no less favourable from independent
(G2 third parties in respect of the transactions similar to the Sale Transactions.
Detailed payment terms are specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.
B—REEGRARRERERBILIE = FMHERZEMURZNEE 4
S ERR SRR ERXZNER TR
Details were set out in the Company’s announcement HFBEENAEAEHBERARZZE—NEF=
dated 25 March 2019. BZ+hHMRM
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

RER 5 (48)

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. BEAEX S —HERSIHERES

distribution of grocery food products (continued) (#8)

Definitions &

"Chan Kee” Chan Kee Holdings Limited

IR EC B R EBBRAF

“Products” various products being packaged ramen and udon noodles
sold by Chan Kee and purchased by and to be distributed by
Right Ocean

(%% Bl B HECHERBRESBEERDENZEBOENERSEI
7

“Right Ocean” Right Ocean Asia Limited

T8 15 BB NBRAE]

“Sole Distributorship Agreement”

the agreement entered into between Chan Kee and
Right Ocean dated 25 March 2019 in respect of the Sale
Transactions

Rl BMIHER BT LNBBA-_ZE—NLFE=A
—+EHBNHE

The above transactions have complied with the
requirements for continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 25 March 2019.
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FHRFERERZ RERRZERE
HEZXZ DN AERLEEREEER
BIZWETIL (IR EE B R ERN AR
RAEBGTEIE=ANHEBILSE
= ARMZARRETIL (IR BEREZS
REZERBRERBRRATFEERTE
FRBRHEZREREN m 2 RRETIL
RIVIRBER RS EBEA-E-—NEF=
BZ+HANAM TEBHERES
EBRe

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

49



50

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
E i

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and

distribution of grocery food products (continued)
Definitions (continued)
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s
auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised)”Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in
with respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rule 20.54. A copy of the auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business or interest that
compete with the business of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
44 1o the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s environmental,
governance practices are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section of this report.

social and

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

BhEERE
BEAREZHITEEBRELEERZR
fl AR ZABTMATEEFELEE
RS o

tTEEAR
BREAKNABTEERR
MPEEARRE I —HI

MZEHFBRNA®RS

RIE-HERER
ERARBRE -HEREABHENFBER
RAEREMRIZ- L EREBRSI—H-

#r Bl B SR
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁEFMﬁMﬁMEmﬁ
NAFHFWNEEERBEARE -BEKE

_LO

EENHFMEHEIRRFNEESHNEEET
GZEFE I EARTREEREE

ARBDERMNBRIESE FANEERS
B EEBIHE > AR R HEHEIN EX
MERREST R — B AR S MBI R 430

B ARERE
BREARABELAFAERERENENTIEE
EFH ARABRBE_Z-_—F+ZA
—t+—HEFERBEARSBH #iF
GEMEMRAIERNEH AR

?—JHXEO

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

51



52

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
E i

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors; namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman), Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (“Asian Alliance”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company on 30 November 2018
and subsequently re-appointed at the general meetings
held on 23 May 2019, 5 June 2020 and 10 June 2021. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 by Asian Alliance. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Asian Alliance as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 May 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company did not appoint a chairman. The Company
has appointed two executive directors on 14 February
2022 as Chairman of the board and chief executive officer
respectively.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the chairman of
board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present. As the
Company does not have the Chairman, no such meeting was
held in this regard for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises seven Directors, four executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Chun Fai
(Chairman appointed on 14 February 2022)
Mr. Tin Ka Pak, Timmy
(Chief Executive Officer appointed on 14 February 2022)

Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Non-executive Director
Mr. Leung Chung Hee (retired on 10 June 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
5 to 8 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company'’s corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

EXg
EXEERFHETtRERMEN MREARITE
B2 RZABEIUFNTES

REE_E_—F+_A=+—HILFEK
BEEAREABCESTHES !

BITES
BEEit

(R ZEZZHFZH+IIHEZTATFE)
HRB&LE

(R —E - —F AV EZ S
TTIEAE )
BRENSLE
SREMEE

FRITESR
RPERE (W ZFE-—FNA+HEF
BIFRITESR

ZREBE

RERAEE

REBRE

EXEREFBHNABREFEEFE-FIA
HTEFHONAEREH TR ERE RO
H-BRHITEFHEBFERUMBZESN
R AN BRNERMATHRG -EFF
Pk B 2 8 b S R % ©

KRBDEROIEHEFEMES TIE UkES
RABWEERE - ARBRBR EFEME
BEZTEXEIRREZTTERRBRESHN
ER - EERSVBEEBRERSEE—ENE
AEETABFFRR KA REENIRER
B EFECRMNEFENESTIEER B
PHEINERNSEFEMESTIENHEH -BF
EHEMHIUBARA BRA LEZEA
EREUTHENBAEFTEHNESZ TIEN
Fla BIEBARRINMER - F6 - XEREE
AR ER BELR R ME KRBT
Hio



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
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Attendance of
HFE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
EX5EEE RRAE

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. So David Tat Man BRENSLE

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith SaNEE
Non-executive Director EHITES

Mr. Leung Chung Hee RRESE
Independent Non-executive Directors BiIFERITES
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SRERE L

Mr. Zhang Min RESLE

Ms. Yuen Wai Man RE#XL

BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team are
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings and ensure compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings and general meetings
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group's
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to the Company.

All of the Directors have either attended seminars organised
by external professionals relevant to the business or directors’
duties or read professional materials publicated by regulators
or professional bodies for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not
appoint a chairman or a chief executive.

The Company has appointed two executive directors on
14 February 2022 as chairman of the board and chief
executive officer respectively.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Ms. Yuen Wai Man and Mr.
Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board's
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
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Committee of the Company held one meeting to review NEHFMNEE LB — I ZiE ) LSS
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior BEESEREHREEBNFNGTE ZHE 2D
management. Details of the attendance of the meeting are as BEEBWOF
follows:

Attendance
Name of members RE % HE R
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) FEBERSE (£/E) A
Ms. Yuen Wai Man RESLZ T 1/1
Mr. Zhang Min RESE 11
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS g A
The nomination committee of the Company (the AT ZRLEFEES (BLEES ) RN

“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man. Mr.
Zhang Min is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. Details of the
attendance of the meeting are as follows:
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Attendance
Name of members RE%E HERE
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) RELE (/) 1/1
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REHZT 11
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey ZREESTE 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man, Mr. Yick Ting
Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min. Ms. Yuen Wai Man is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

BEZEEY
AREN_EZ—FtA=+—HRUBEZ
Z5g (EREET)) LBTGEMLEHRA
SUEHRESEE BEREZEENIERE
HERMAEEAER Y HRREFURA
REERANEEEIERG AR E A B
ZEER-LBUFNTESREN BER
B Rt - FEBEERRRAEE -REHK
IRBEREEEERE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
of the Company held six meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
to the Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit
Committee of the Company was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

Details of the attendance of the Company’s Audit Committee
meetings are as follows:
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Attendance
Name of members RE%TE HERE
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman) RERL T (FE) 6/6
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey RS E 6/6
Mr. Zhang Min RESLE 6/6
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with its written terms of reference as set
out below:

a) to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Q) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the
corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$870,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,232,000) was charged to the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2021. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company, Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$870,000 (2020:
HK$970,000) and HK$Nil (2020: HK$262,000) for the
provision of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2021. A resolution for re-appointment
of Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Board concurs with the views of the Audit
Committee in determining the re-appointment of auditors of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's account for each financial period to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. In preparing the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan,
Keith was the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Ng has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of two months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists: (a) to give to shareholders of
the Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; (b)
to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website provides an effective
communication platform between the Company and its
investors.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
(continued)

During the year of 2021, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
("Dividend Policy”) on 30 November 2018 pursuant to
E.1.5 in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules’ Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report with
effective from 1 January 2019.

The Policy sets out principles to determine the amount that
can be distributed to the Shareholders as dividend. The Policy
and the declaration and/or payment of future dividends
under the Policy are subject to the final determination
of the Board that the Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the
Shareholders and the Company. The Board will use their best
endeavours to maintain a balance between the Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy.

The Company has always strived to enhance the
Shareholders’ value. The Directors believe that distributing
dividends to the Shareholders is an important method to
create value for them.

The Policy includes the following parameters/factors to be
considered by the Board for declaration of dividend from time
to time:

l. Circumstances under which the Shareholders may or
may not expect dividend

Il. Financial parameters/factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

Il Internal and external factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

V. Utilisation of retained earnings
V. Multiple classes of Shares

The Board will review the Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize
the risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system, improve the
ability of risk prevention, so as to ensure the Group is
operating in a safety and steady environment, the operation
management level could be increased and the Group’s
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The
current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board resolved to delegate its responsibilities (with
relevant authorities) of risk management and internal
control to the Audit Committee. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee included the followings: (i) review
the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; (ii) discuss the risk management
system and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control systems; and (iii) to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management'’s response to these findings.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems (continued)

The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control policies
and procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. These policies and procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary. All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place, with understanding
enhanced by staff communications and training.

The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems,
at least quarterly, through the Audit Committee.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management
and internal control systems, executive Directors and
management would meet on monthly basis to review the
financial and operating performance of each department.
The management of the key operating subsidiaries is
also required to keep executive Directors updated of
material development of the department’s business and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the
Board on regular basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks (continued)

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks (continued)

The Board has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Group has engaged an
independent professional adviser (the
Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The scope of review
included revenue and receipt cycle, expenditure cycle, cash
management and treasury cycle, and financial reporting
cycle for the Company and two of our operating subsidiary.
Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. All
recommendations from Internal Control Adviser would be
followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment and that
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate.

“Internal Control

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

An inside information disclosure policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 6 May 2022
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The purpose of this Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report’) is not only to communicate
the sustainability strategies, management approaches
and performances of China Eco-Farming Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group” or “we")
with the stakeholders, but also strengthen the Group's
understanding towards their ongoing activities in sustainable
development of the society and the environment as a whole.
This ESG Report summarizes the efforts and achievements
made by the Group in corporate social responsibility and
sustainable development.

Sustainability Approach

We embed sustainability into the Group’s core principles
by operating with transparency and integrity, fostering our
Group’s culture, building a resilient business, operating
responsibly and creating shared value with our stakeholders.

Across the Group, we work proactively and diligently to
monitor and reduce our environmental footprint, to ensure
effective and ethical governance and to invest in ways that
promote sustainable economic growth. Being a responsible
corporate citizen, we strictly comply with all applicable laws,
take into account the environmental, social and governance
factors and risk management strategies in our operations and
fulfill our social responsibilities with good practical deeds.

Scope of the ESG Report

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our Hong
Kong business of trading of grocery food products, trading of
consumables and agricultural products, property investment,
provision of money lending services, one-stop value chain
services and provision of financial services for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting
Period”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard

This ESG Report is prepared in compliance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
The four reporting principles, namely materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency, form the backbone of this ESG
Report.

For further information regarding our corporate governance,
please refer to the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” in this Annual Report.

Reporting Principles

o Materiality — Materiality assessment was conducted to
diagnose material issues during the Reporting Period.
Materiality of issues was reviewed by the board of
directors of the Company and senior management of
the Group.

° Quantitative — The standards and methodologies
used in the calculation of relevant data, as well as the
assumptions used were disclosed in this ESG Report.

o Consistency — The preparation of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year.
Explanations were provided regarding data with
changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.

o Completeness — Covered the relevant scope and
information for material topics, for readers of this ESG
report to have a good understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance during the Reporting
Period.
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RIE-HEKRESHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Principles (continued)

To ensure the quality of the content in this ESG Report, we
observed the principles of balance, comparability, accuracy,
timeliness, clarity and reliability. The data has been obtained
from reports generated from our internal systems and we
have relied on internal data monitoring and verification
to ensure its accuracy. The ESG data and information are
reported in good faith and have not been verified by an
independent third party.

Board Statement on ESG Governance

The Board takes the overall responsibility for the Group's
sustainability strategy and reporting, evaluation and
determines the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensures that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place.

Feedback

We will continue to improve and refine the content and
format of our ESG Report. We welcome your feedback and
suggestion. Please send your feedback to us via post at 20/F,
Wanchai Central Building, 89 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We believe understanding the views and opinion of our
stakeholders is of paramount importance to the long-term
success and growth of the Group. Sustainable development
embraces not only our own ESG performance but also our
relationship with stakeholders. As such, we are devoted to
maintaining close and harmonious relationships with our
stakeholders.

It is crucial to maintain communication with our stakeholders
and obtain valuable advice. We continue to adopt the
following communication channels with stakeholders to
ensure we learn their opinions and suggestions timely
and accurately, so that our business could be improved
and developed in a continuous manner. Stakeholders
communications and expectations can be summarized as
follows:

Stakeholders Communication channels
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Expectations and concerns

FnE BEAN B RRIEEE
Employees e Internal meetings e Employees’ compensation and benefits
3= WNEF g% EEmEKRET
e Performance assessment ¢ Health and safety working environment
BRETH BERZZWNITIFIRE
e Company activities e Career development opportunities
NEEH HEERERS
e Training
=3l
Customers e Business communication e High quality product and service
ey (SR BE EmKRIR
e Customer service hotline e Protect the rights of customers
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e Email
BB
Suppliers e Business communication e Fair and open procurement
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o Visits e Win-win cooperation
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e Email
BB
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Stakeholders
FinE

Communication channels

BEARN

BRFMHENEE (8

Expectations and concerns

M KREEE

Shareholders

IR

Community
AR

Government and
regulatory bodies
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e Shareholders’ meetings
AN

e Regular reports and announcements
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o Official website
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o Official website
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e Charitable activities
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e |nformation submission
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e Email
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e Return on investments
KE B

¢ Information disclosure and
transparency
BRI BERIERE

e Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders
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* Involvement in communities
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e Business compliance
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e Environmental protection awareness
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e Compliance with laws and regulations
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e Promote regional economic
development and employment
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand stakeholders’ opinions and expectations
on the Group’s ESG performance, the Group engaged its
stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey.
Both internal and external stakeholders were selected based
on their influence and dependence on the Group. The
selected stakeholders were invited to express their views and
concerns on a list of sustainability issues via an online survey.
As a result, the Group was able to prioritise the issues for
discussion. The result from the materiality assessment survey
has been mapped and presented as below.

RI-HERERKRS

EEMTMG

=T BT RSN EHAEBESGRIENE
RERE AEBZAFNHEET—HEE
M EBEE AEEUFNENRERNT
ERRBEREESER  HEDANIBRINBR
NEETEZUHTLHRE - EENFHES
BELBENHN AT FELERNEE
RESRKRRELEE B AEB R RBBZ
HEEEZEFAR BEEUTERAEER
SN EFR o

Materiality Assessment

BEEMFME
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@ 24 21 9 19 10 18
3 6 23 g 8
o4 700 T B
L 1 11 7
wn &
Sy 6.00 ) ° )
v 13 2 17
[¥)
S i 12
R
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£
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Significance to business
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HEREARS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) BEEMITME (@)

NUMBER  LIST OF MATERIAL TOPICS

AR EEREBRE

1 Employee diversity and equal opportunities
BEZTIERTERSE

2 Turnover rate
MARE

3 Occupational health and safety
BEREREAZS

4 Training and development
Bl k&R

5 Child labour and forced labour
BT ko@B%T

6 Employment relationship and communication
B IERAF BB

7 Employee remuneration and benefits
e B B e @ F

8 Sewage disposal
5K ERIE

9 Greenhouse gas emissions
BERAEPER

10 Air emissions
& R

11 Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
BRIEAEREZEEY

12 Energy and water conservation
B REEAIK

13 Natural resources (includes water and energy)
BHRABR (KRR

14 Supplier environmental and social assessment

HEBIRE R ETE

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

NUMBER  LIST OF MATERIAL TOPICS

RI-HERERKRS

EEMTE (@)

R EEREBRE

15 Carbon trading system
WRBE R 4R

16 Supplier selection process

HEREERE

17 Anti-fraud and corruption
R EREE R JB
18 Business continuity plan

EERESE

19 Product and service quality
Em&RRBEE

20 Complaints handling
KifrERIE

21 Intellectual property
RN oA EE

22 Customer privacy
ERME

23 Research and development
bz

24 Community participation
HE2R

25 Donations
=B

The Group built a two-dimensional materiality analysis matrix
and prioritised the 25 issues accordingly. With respect to this
ESG Report, the Group identified quality of work environment
and product and service responsibility as issues of the highest
importance to its stakeholders and the Group. This review has
helped the Group to prioritise its corresponding sustainability
issues and highlight the material and relevant aspects so as to
align them with stakeholders’ expectations.’

REFERUT _HBEEMSFERE LA
FE3th ¥ 2518 TR (F H ST BF 5 - TAARESGER &
S AEEHN TFREEENERKR
BEHEBRHRFNERTEEMERAEEN
FE- BEABRNEBEHAERRHYBHARE
LREABETARFFRREEZREEER
EERT UAKHENRERE—2-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKRESHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT

As a responsible corporation, we are aware of the shared
responsibility to protect and preserve our planet. We
endeavor to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Due to our business nature, apart from emissions
and use of resources for electricity and water, our operation
does not have other significant impact on the environment.

Emission Management

Our greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions primarily stem from
petrol consumption from the use of vehicles (Scope 1),
indirect emissions produced by externally-purchased electricity
consumed in offices (Scope 2), and indirect emissions (Scope
3). We have implemented various initiatives to reduce the
amount of GHG emissions, as further explained in the
subsection headed “Energy Management” of this ESG
Report.

The Group’s objective is to achieve a 15% reduction of
emission per production unit by 2025 from the base year of
2020 (scope 1, 2 & 3). Accordingly, a Group Sustainability
Committee has been established aiming to manage and
monitor the upgrade of production facilities.

BEIRIR

ER—REBENRTE > FHPIKEREHIK
WHESE - RMPBHETEBIREREN
ERER TR ARERUBRERNA
R A ~ BRI BE TR ARl L BE FR W) o R P R AFIRY
EBHEERA BB REREIRKER
S P EEH IR EAMERT &

M ER

ZARERE (DEERE)) SIREERIR
PEFE RS EBFTIE R RYISUHH FE (BE) - i}
RENINEE S @E2) UnEEER (BE
3) cHFIEEMZIEEMLUR R E R
ME > E—FFBEINARESGRE BEREIE)
DEe

UZE"ZFREEF (BE12K3) T &
ENERAI S _AFERGELESN
BYBER DR 15% © R » ARE B AL T B F5
BEREZEE sEEEKREEEEREY
FHiR e

Air emissions 2021 2020 Unit
B HER —E-—&F TECEF B
Nitrogen Oxides (“NOx") 2159 (TNOx ) 2.8 4.1 kg
Sulphur Oxides (“SOx") a1 (Fsoxy) 0.1 0.1 kg
Particulate Matter (“PM") e (TPM ) 0.2 0.3 kg
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

RI-HERERKRS

EEIRIF ()

Emission Management (continued) HERERE (8
GHG emission’ 2021 2020 Unit
BEREHR & TECTE B
Total GHG emissions RERBHRES 35.9 47.6 Tonnes of COze
(Scope 1, 2 and 3) (EBE1~2K3) —EtmESE (M)
Direct emission (Scope 1) HiZEE (EEN) 22.1 27.5 Tonnes of COze
SR EE (M)
Indirect emission (Scope 2) EEE R (EEE2) 13.1 17.2 Tonnes of COze
—ffbREE (W)
Other indirect emission? (Scope 3)  HthfEZHEHC (FEE3) 0.7 3.0 Tonnes of COze
—SEREE (M)
Intensity of total GHG emissions AEREEHENZE 0.1 0.2 kg of COze /m?
W8,/ 75 K)
Energy Management REREIE
The energy consumption information is shown as follow: BEFEE R :
Energy consumption 2021 2020 Unit
BE —T”—F T B
Total energy consumption HERERE 99,416.4 117,441.8 kwh FFLBF
Intensity of total energy BREFERE 297.4 2384 kWh/m?
consumption (per floor area) (BEEER) BYARTRE
Electricity consumption? FEEE? 18,536.0 19,112.0 kWh T B
Petrol pab:i 80,880.4 98,329.8 kwh FE K&
Note 1:  As the scope of total electricity consumption excluded M1 : AR EESS2SHEAROELVEMREAT
those usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries, HANERRASESE  HETEH
which the electricity consumption data were included EEMADNEEBEERENMEAER
in the management fee paid and unable to be obtained EE  WMMEERREERBERE S
for the occupied areas, the GHG emission data has not EHEAWANEEESo
included the electricity used by those shared office.
Note 2:  GHG calculation for air travel were made reference to the MEE2 © MERITHEE R B ERREFRERR
International Civil Aviation Organization Carbon Emissions B4R AR HE Gt B2 0
Calculator.
Note 3:  The scope of total electricity consumption excluded those M3 : BEESSHEFACELHWEARMEA

usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries, which
the electricity consumption data were included in the
management fee paid and unable to be obtained for the
occupied areas.

WHAMAREREBE HESEHEE
MAENEERBEETERGRERE

7=|
1<°
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKRESHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Energy Management (continued)

As GHG emissions are positively correlated to electricity
and energy consumption, the Group tries to reduce the
consumption of both aspects in its daily operation through
the following specific measures:

o Adopt natural lighting where possible, while energy-
efficient light bulbs are used to reduce electricity
consumption

o Modify the set temperature of air conditioners in the
offices based on the season

o Consider with higher grading of energy efficiency
when selecting electronic devices

o Encourage our employees to switch off idle equipment
(such as computers and lighting equipment) when the
equipment is not in use or employees are getting off

work

o Office copy machines will be automatically switched to
energy saving mode when left idle for a set period of
time

o Encourage our employees to replace business travels

with telephone conference or video conference when
appropriate to reduce related GHG emissions caused
by the transportation required for business travels

o Encourage employees to schedule visits or offsite
meetings within one trip to reduce the frequency of
travel

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Water Use and Sewage Discharge

Due to our business nature, we do not consume a large
amount of water resources or generate a large amount of
sewage in our operation. Sewage produced by the Group is
mainly generated from the daily water usage from its staffs
during working hours in office, which is further discharged
to the municipal wastewater treatment plant through the
sewage pipe work. We encourage our employees to build
up the habit of saving water through the following specific
measures:

o Post notice in office pantries and washrooms to
encourage water conservation

o Remind employees to turn off water taps when they
are not in use

o Any leakage or dripping found in office should also
be reported promptly to prevent unnecessary water
consumption

As we operated in leased office premises in Hong Kong
of which both the water supply and discharge were solely
controlled by the respective building management. Hence,
the water usage data was unable to be obtained by us as an
individual occupant. As our business is located in Hong Kong,
there is no issue in sourcing water.

RI-HERERKRS

EEIRIF ()

IKR1E AR B35 7k BE R

MR RANEFEEER RANEERL
RHEBRENKER TREERES K
B REBEENSKEBREBETLEH
AREANEEAEK LEB5KEELRE
E—SHREMBUSKEER - RMDA 8
BT AREMSEIFTA 8 T&MEAAK
B BRI FEKE

. EMAERAFERMBES B EA

K

. 1RIE R BT~ AKERARAKBESE

. REREMAENLHIENERRER
BB > LA LE R i R A K

MR RMAEESENEERAETEEER  H
HARBIKEIBEZENAEEERREERE
fll e EUE  ERBAERE  RMEEESH
KEBHE - AR HFINEFURER > MR
ERKERDERAME-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKRESHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principles and
strives to properly manage and dispose wastes produced
by our business activities. Our waste management practice
has been compiled with laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection. Due to the business nature, our
operations do not directly generate hazardous waste. The
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s operations
are mainly consist of paper and domestic garbage generated
in office. The wastes were collected and handled by building
management. The total paper waste generated during the
Reporting Period was 0.6 tonnes (2020: 1.2 tonnes) with
an intensity of 2.2 kg (2020: 4.4 kg) per square meter. We
seek opportunities to reduce resource consumption and
waste generation, reuse and recycle materials in an aim of
minimizing overall quantities of waste. As paper is mainly
consumed by the Group in its offices, the Group has adopted
the following practices to reduce the consumption:

o Encourage both-side printing and the use of recycled
paper for printing and copying

° Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via
email) as much as possible

o Provide bins and trays in offices to collect waste paper
for further recycling

o Encourage staff to reduce paper consumption and to
share tips and information on how to adopt a more
environmentally-responsible lifestyle

The Group strongly advocates green office, strengthens
daily operation and management, integrates low-carbon
environmental protection concepts into the daily work of
employees by implementing energy-saving office environment
reforms, promoting paperless office management, raises
employees’ awareness of energy conservation, and
cultivates the environmental habits of employees. With the
implementation of the measures above, we believe the
objectives of saving energy, reducing waste and preserving
the environment can be achieved.

The Group's objective is to achieve a 15% reduction of non-
hazardous wastes per production unit by 2025 from the base
year of 2020.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Packaging Material Use

Due to the business nature, the Group does not produce any
finished product and does not have any industrial facilities. As
the suppliers would arrange delivery to our customers directly
for the trading business, we do not consume a significant
amount of packaging materials in our daily operations.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations
related to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group did not have any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

Climate Change

Climate change and global warming are the major
environmental concerns in the world. Despite having no
significant impact on the Group’s businesses, the Group still
strives to put forward environmental conservation and raise
the environmental awareness of the employees.

Due to the business nature, climate change does not have
significant impacts on the business directly. With a higher
temperature in the future, the Group may need to allocate
more spending on cooling.

On the other hand, the Group may experience productivity
loss due to increased extreme weather, like typhoons and
heavy rain. The Group will review the existing measures for
adverse weather conditions and ensure the safety of the
employees.

RIE-HERERHRS

EEIRIF ()

BEMEHER

MREFHEER FEBNEEEATRMN
fr TMEAR TERE AR HERMEZHE
EARMANEFXVEZES  ZMEAE
BERNEHERENBEME

am

RBREHME ZEBTANEBEAAEST
BREHEINE(ERSREGFA) -FE
EBIEE358F (KT HRERIRG) - EBENE
3AE(BEYMRE R REMARERARE
REEFI FFRA KR L EERELERE
MEEHEREONRERNEH EEY
RIERBABRIBENERTE -

RIREME
RIESLERENERER2KEEMNIRIFR
EoBENAEENEFIEEATE  £&
ENBAOREERFR BRAEINRESH -

AREFBHEE RIEBEATERHEBES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKRESHRS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Our dedicated and skilled workforce is our biggest asset. We
are committed to providing training, equal and development
opportunities for our people to enable them to reach
their potential in a healthy, safe and respectful working
environment.

Equal Opportunities

The Group believes that it is important to provide employees
with equal opportunities based on the principles of fairness
and fairness. We provide fair opportunities for recruitment,
compensation, training, transfer and promotion to our
employees regardless of their gender, ethnic, background,
religion, colour, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability or pregnancy.

In addition, the Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude
towards gender, ethnicity, disability discrimination, and
workplace harassment. We respect human rights and
prohibits discrimination, harassment, child labor and forced
labor in the workplace.

We have established whistleblowing policy, which provides
our staff a private channel to voice out any concerns
about possible discrimination or harassment. We keep the
whistleblowers and their report contents confidential, and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of whistleblowers,
thereby encouraging employees to report violation and create
a good business environment.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Employee Remuneration and Benefits

We offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to enhance our staff morale and satisfaction. In
addition, the Group conducts staff performance assessments
regularly in accordance to changes in macroeconomic factors
(e.g. national policies and price levels), market trend and the
overall effectiveness of the Group, and makes corresponding
adjustments to staff remuneration. Outstanding employees
will get promotion as reward and recognition. Apart from
competitive remuneration packages, we also grant share
options and special bonuses to eligible personnel, depending
on their performances and our financial conditions, in
order to attract and retain the most talented people. Our
employees also enjoy the statutory holidays, annual leaves,
maternity leaves and compassionate leaves regarding to
the relevant laws and regulations. Our employee handbook
outlines the standard working hours, paid leaves, rest periods
and dismissal policy in protection of the rights of our staff.
We disseminate the handbook to all our staff to keep them
well informed of our principles and policies.

Recruitment and Dismissal

To attract high-calibre candidates, the Group offers fair
remuneration and benefits based on the individuals’ past
performance, personal attributes, job experiences and career
aspiration. We follow the principles of fairness, equality,
competitive and non-discrimination to hire outstanding
talents, and devote to protect human right and privacy
of employees. We recruit employees based on a number
of factors, such as professional experience, educational
background and capabilities, and they are not discriminated
against because of their age, sex, sexual orientation, race,
disability, marital status, pregnancy, religion, political factions
and referrals, so as to maintain employment equality.

All employees of the Group have entered into written
employment contracts and such contracts include dismissal
term where the Company has the right to terminate such
contract with an employee who willfully violates local laws
and regulations and the Group's policy.

RIE-HERERHRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HEREARS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued) BEKREIER @&

Recruitment and Dismissal (continued) BERRERE (8

The Group had a total number of 52 employees as at 31 HE_ZE-_—F+_-_BA=+—H c~EFLZL
December 2021. The employee compositions by gender, age Bo2L RE o MR 4R R EE D>

group and geographical region were as follows: BEAAKRWUNT :
Number of Percentage of
employees employees
as at as at
Employee Structure BE&E 31.12.2021 31.12.2021
RZZEZ E 75’3_ z _—E
+ZB=F—8 +-B=F—
MEEﬁE WEEEQ&
Total number of employees BEEEH 52 100%
Bl' ender Male 32 62%
M
Female 20 38%
pegis
By age Aged below 30 5 10%
B FHe 30 AT
Aged 31-50 26 50%
31E505%
Aged over 50 21 40%
5055 4 £
)f em Io ment type General Staff 35 67%
R EELER| EEET
l\/I|dd|e Management 12 23%
PRSI
ggnlor Management 5 10%
Hical SR EEE g 979,
By geographical region Hong Kong 4 ()
BHE =5
Ta|wan 1 2%
=0 ]
PRC 3 6%
FRE

The following table sets for the turnover rates of the Group’s ~ AEENR R ESHABNES MAREIINT :
employees for the Reporting Period:

Number of
employees
resigned in Turnover
Summary of Employee Data EEHEHE Year 20%15 rates
E Rt AY
EE#E MK E
)f ender Male 5 16%
el SH
Female 1 5%
pegis
By age Aged below 30 0 0%
BEW 30 AR
Aged 31-50 5 19%
31E505%
Aged over 50 1 5%
L L 505% 2
By geographical region Hong Kong 5 10%
BHE =75
Taiwan 1 50%
=0
PRC 0 0%
FRE
86 China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Promotion of work-life balance

We believe a culture of healthy work-life balance supports
us to build an energetic and more collaborative team. By
providing five-day working week and organizing a wide
variety of recreational activities for our staff, we believe it can
uphold the excellent work performance of employees and
benefit the growth of the Group.

Training and Development

We believe our sustainable growth is largely derived from
the continuous development of our staff. We place a great
emphasis on career development of talents and are dedicated
to providing our employees with abundant opportunities for
career development.

We provide and encourage employees at all levels to
participate in various internal and external courses, including
technical and vocational training seminars, forums, on-job
and continuing training courses. We also offer educational
subsidies to our employees to attend academic and
commercial course. These not only enhance their job-
related skills and knowledge, but also provide them equal
opportunities for learning, training and promotion.

A total of 52 training hours were conducted in the reporting
period, and training hours (categorized by gender and
employee category) are shown below:

RIE-HERERHRS

BERS TER (&)

e TIFELEBR T

I8 R BT AY T 1F B2 4558 F 7 X B e 3R AP
RUBI—BFRMmENREBHEEDN
FeoBBRREAMARNIFBERSETE
MEBRETE BB/ E T ABILEFRT
HENTIERERE EMANREEENER-

AR ER
FABREHMANIFEERERRAEE LR
BREMEINFKEER HMAFZTERA
THEESER RN REERETENEE
952 =i

BMASRESREIZBRESETEN
P E8 R S BR ERAZ » B HE B g Ao B ZE 15 I D
FESKE ~ AR R g IR I ERAE - B M7 m 2 m
BMkEERENEERHEHSHEU -ZF
BREAMERS T RFRITFEARERM
# TMANFRERE Bl RSN TFH

@ o

PR S HIB G HETT T 52E I R 8 5
R 8 (R R EELER 2R 7R ¢

Occupational Training Data B 2 o)l S Year 2021
I —FE
The percentage of employee trained by Gender Male 100%
BERBSHNZIET TS CRis
Female 100%
gl
The percentage of employee trained by General Staff 100%
Employment type ZEET
RERBREISNZIEIG S Middle Management 100%
iR BEIEfE
Senior Management 100%
EREEE
Average training hours of employees by Gender  Male 1.00
IR E 5 B F I8 S 15 0 B 8 S
Female 1.00
gl
Average training hours of employees by General Staff 1.00
Employment type ZEET
KiEREERE SN TEEES NG Middle Management 1.00
iR EIEfE
Senior Management 1.00
BREEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKRESHRS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)
Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485
of the laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group pays great attention to the physical, mental
and occupational health of its employees. We aim to offer
and maintain a safe and healthy working environment for
employees to protect them from work-related accidents or
injuries.

We are committed to achieving this goal by implementing the
measures including but not limited to:

Provide personal medical insurance and business travel
insurance for all employees

o Provide sufficient first-aid kits and personal protective
equipment at workplaces

o Prohibit smoking in all enclosed areas within our
offices without exception

o Perform regular checking and maintenance of
machines, equipment and fire extinguishers

During the Reporting Period, there is no workplace accidents.
In case the accident occurred, it will be investigated and
reported to the relevant authorities and measures have been
put in place to prevent the recurrence of the same. During
the past three years, the Group did not record any work-
related fatality of employees, nor any last days due to work
injury.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY (continued)
Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with The Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. We also did not receive any reports
on work-related injuries or causalities during the Reporting
Period.

LABOUR STANDARD

In strict accordance with applicable local laws and
regulations, we adopt a zero-tolerance approach to unethical
labour practice including but not limited to child labor and
forced labor. Once any breach of regulations is discovered,
the labour relationship will be terminated immediately. All
recruitment procedure and promotion are managed by the
Human Resource Department to ensure no child labour
or forced labour is employed. If use of child labour or
forced labour is discovered, the Group will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is
needed.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment of
Children Regulations made under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) or other relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child or forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We value mutually beneficial and longstanding relationships
with our suppliers. Our major suppliers are suppliers of
grocery food products, consumables and agricultural
products, external business consultants and general office
supply. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria
such as quality, cost, business scale and reputation, with
preference given to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment. Full compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations is a must for our suppliers.
When a supplier is found to be inconsistent with our policy
or contractual requirements, we will terminate future
cooperation until the situation got improved.
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RIE-HEKRESHRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)
During the Reporting Period, 8, 17 and 2 of suppliers sourced
in China, Hong Kong and other countries, respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware that
any key suppliers had any significant actual and potential
negative impact on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices, nor any of them had any
non-compliance incident in respect of human rights issues.

CARING FOR CUSTOMER

The Group attaches importance to quality, safety and
environment, and endeavors to fulfill social responsibilities
and facilitate sustainable development of the food industry.

Product Responsibility

As one of our principal business is trading of grocery food
products, we have always endeavored to provide safety
food products to our customers. We have registered as
food importer and food distributor under the Food Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong). We
have registered as a food importers/food distributors under
the Food Safety Ordinance. In order to demonstrate that
we are committed to selecting cooking oil suppliers with
adequate and appropriate records, we have registered
as registered supplier to the Hong Kong Cooking Oil
Registration Scheme under Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency (“HKQAA") on voluntary basis. Regarding to
product recall, we attach great importance to the food alerts
issued by Centre for Food Safety as well as related market
information. Once we noticed our product is involved with
quality and safety issues and necessary to be revoked, we
will fully collaborate with related regulatory authorities and
recall the relevant products as required. Recall arrangement
will be announced and the recalled products will be handled
appropriately. During the Reporting Period, no product recall
has been incurred.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR CUSTOMER (continued)

Privacy Protection and Intellectual Property

In accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group handles the
personal data of our customers carefully by collecting only
necessary personal data and ensures that the information
obtained is protected from unauthorised or accidental access.
Our employees are constantly reminded the importance of
respecting the privacy of personal and business data.

No significant issue related to intellectual property rights was
noted for the Reporting Period. However, the Group is aware
that relevant steps should be taken to follow all relevant
regulations in order to protect intellectual properties which
belong to itself or any other third parties.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 456 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Food
Safety Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling) Regulations
(Chapter 132W of the Laws of Hong Kong), Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other relevant laws and regulations that constitutes a
significant impact on the Group in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We regard honesty, integrity and fair play as core values that
must be upheld by all directors and staff at all times. The
Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-money laundering.
Any misconduct related to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-
money laundering are strictly prohibited within the Group. To
ensure full compliance with the Group's anti-fraud and anti-
bribery policies, the Group had conducted anti-corruption
briefing and training sessions for its employees.

We have established reporting channels where employees can
report illegal and non-compliance conducts that they have
noticed by in-person, phone, email or letter. The reporting
content will be confidential and never be exposed to third

party.
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RIE-HEKRESHRS

ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations and there was no legal cases
concerned with corrupt practices were brought against the
Group or Directors or employees.

CARING FOR SOCIETY

We are committed to participating in community events and
the improvement of community wellbeing and social services.
We support and encourage staff to actively participate in a
wide range of charitable events outside working hours, raise
awareness and concern for the community, last but not least,
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made contributions
to various charitable organization, such as Ten Percent
Donation Scheme Foundation and The Hong Kong Federation
of Youth Groups with approximately of HK$6,000 (2020:
HK$43,900).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

/Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
PERELERBRAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 101 to 314, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$51,270,000 and had approximately HK$13,521,000
net cash used in operating activities for the year ended 31
December 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$34,643,000. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAZRREN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESHMAHARET FRETRE

Impairment assessment on other receivables

FAE fth FE WU RR TR B iR (B T

As disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2021, the Group's gross other
receivables amounted to approximately HK$21,545,000,
and an allowance for credit losses of other receivables of
approximately HK$8,825,000 were included in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.
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The impairment loss on other receivables included in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$8,030,000.
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The allowance for credit loss of other receivables represents
the management'’s best estimates at the end of the reporting
period of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments’ Expected Credit
Loss model.
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HRFw @ T A AREEBEENHEREEEEN
HRERRNREMDST o

Management assesses whether the credit risk of other
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their expected credit losses.
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Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s assessment on allowance for

credit loss of other receivables included:
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- for the historical information, discussed
with management to understand
the management’s identification
of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired receivables,
corroborated management’s explanation

with supporting evidence;
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understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit
losses measurement, assessed the
reasonableness of the model selection
and key measurement parameters
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAINEA NI HARES FRETRE

Impairment assessment on other receivables (continued)
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The measurement models of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgement and assumptions, primarily
including the followings:
EHEEEENIERXN I REBBERAE RER T2
BEUTARE !

- selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure at
default;

- WEBERAKETHBAIEFNE28 BIFENH
BEM BN TEIERENR RO ;

- criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
— EEEERREARNBEMNESENNRE ; K

- economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and

weightings.
— AEMHABENEEERUAREEBERREEZEMNE
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We consider impairment assessment on other receivables as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant estimates and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance on the other receivables.
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- for forward-looking measurement,

assessed the reasonableness of economic
indicator selection, economic scenarios
and weightings application, assessed
the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data;
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- challenged the management the

sufficiency of impairment loss based on

the specific facts and circumstances; and
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- checked major data inputs used in the

expected credit loss model on sample
basis to the Group's record.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

BIZHEN RS

A E 5T & M I IR AR

B1E (@)
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RPN EREENZBEMRE B PR
BRI EFTRE - A RARFIEIIF
MEEEN SEETEFELE-

. HEGREMBRRNERIIE SN G
BRAT SENE UKGEEHHR
BERERBAERRZZMNER-
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EE ENRTE BENFHESZ U
HREMBRRERER -BAMEEE
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SAERAEREEE-.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAAZEENIRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Cheng Ting Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P06598

8/F, Catic Plaza

8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

6 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mREMEERER

n‘T\

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—F+_A=1+—HLHFE

2021 2020
B —EZ_TF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FAET FET
Revenue g 5
Goods and services & & IR 73,050 33,549
Leases GiEN= - 266
Interest under effective interest BERAEEHEN
method R 217 1,381
Total revenue 4B 73,267 35,196
Cost of sales THE AR (72,411) (29,365)
Gross profit EF 856 5,831
Other income, gains or losses HAWA ~ I 3518 7 1,842 10,061
Impairment losses under expected credit FBHAEEFIBELETH
loss model, net of reversal REEE (NBREE) 9 (10,629) (10,781)
Loss from changes in fair value of KREMEN LT EES
investment properties, net B8 528 18 (1,678) (11,673)
Gain from changes in fair value of BAFESTABTRZ
financial assets at fair value through TMEERNTE
profit or loss BN 3,019 7,278
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill FriEsR & mEE 8 19 (725) -
Impairment loss recognised on FrAEsR S B E A B S
interests in associates B R E RS 18 - (855)
Impairment loss recognised FRFER B e
on deposits paid AEETE 23 (5,445)
Selling and distribution expenses & K D R 2 (870) (1,174)
Administrative expenses THREX (32,458) (54,386)
Share of results of associates DMEEE AR FEE 21 247 (9,258)
Finance costs ELE=N 8 (6,279) (8,455)
Loss before tax PRIRAIES 18 (52,120) (73,412)
Income tax (expense) credit gt (B H% 10 (500) 14,528
Loss for the year KFEEEE 11 (52,620) (58,884)
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
n‘T\ & s{&éﬁ”&ﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
T CZETIZTHF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FHET
Other comprehensive (expense) income: EMZ®E (i) W -
Item that will not be reclassified to TP EEF D EERam 2
profit or loss: EH -
Fair value loss on investments in equity IZAFEFFAEMEE
instruments at fair value through other W@z #m TEKERN
comprehensive income NFEEE (812) (2,206)
Items that may be reclassified HEoER o EEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINERELEZ
translation of foreign operations bE R ERR 1,611 11,834
Release of cumulative exchange reserve & /BN EFERFRIR R 5t
upon disposal of foreign operations PE R A 1,043 -
2,654 11,834
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEW
for the year, net of income tax FRETISIRE 1,842 9,628
Total comprehensive expense AEEXEBZLELE
for the year (50,778) (49,256)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEIEARFERIE .
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZZS DN (51,270) (58,845)
Non-controlling interests JEEER IR (1,350) (39)
(52,620) (58,884)
Total comprehensive expense TT£$5EF57£\@F¥§§
for the year attributable to: 40z
Owners of the Company KABEB A (49,819) (48,322)
Non-controlling interests R I SRR (959) (934)
(50,778) (49,256)
(Restated)
C==p 1)
Loss per share: SREE !
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B AR #E CGa1) 15 (53.10) (63.10)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= A
:zw\lﬂzﬂx

R IR

At 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+Z8=+—H

2021 2020
T CZTTEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
s FAET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Plant and equipment 5= Fe 52 16 810 1,387
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 382 1,010
Investment properties KEME 18 16,869 18,367
Goodwill kS 19 - 725
Intangible asset mILEE 20 758 758
Interests in associates N YNGR T 21 30,137 43,436
Equity instruments at fair value BAFESAHMEE
through other comprehensive Wmz#mTAR
income 22 7,261 7,871
Deposits paid BT 23 108,996 86,152
Other receivables Huh W aIa 25 - 12,459
Loans to associates AEEABEHER 27 - 7,075
165,213 179,240
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Inventories 58 24 2,716 69
Trade and other receivables FE W BR 7R R ELAth
&R IE 25 39,141 34,900
Loan and interest receivables FEWREZ TS 26 1,935 2,876
Loans to associates ABEABEHER 27 3,826 29,836
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESAERZ
profit or loss TRIEE 28 8,780 20,243
Restricted bank balance ZIRGIIRITAS BR 29 705 10
Bank balances and cash IRIT4EGRRIEE 30 2,850 2,951
59,953 90,885
Assets classified as held for sale DEARFEHEEE 31 13,547 -
73,500 90,885
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade and other payables P& BR AR E At
FE(TFRIE 32 42,201 30,857
Contract liabilities aH88aE 33 2,504 1,246
Amounts due to non-controlling FET IEIERG AR R
interests R IE 34 3,645 2,745
Borrowings EEls 35 41,040 41,318
Margin loans payables FERBEER 36 6,090 6,514
Lease liabilities MHESRE 37 506 517
Financial guarantee contract MHBEREHN 38 12,102 10,306
Income tax payable FEIFT1RAR 55 47
108,143 93,550

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBIRRER
At 31 December 2021
R_E_—F+"H=+—H

2021 2020
B _—EZ_THF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FET
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEFEE (34,643) (2,665)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRHER
LIABILITIES 130,570 176,575
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 37 = 506
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 39 1,390 934
1,390 1,440
NET ASSETS BEFEE 129,180 175,135
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRHEE
Share capital & 40 1,060 9,325
Reserves ] 87,214 129,250
Equity attributable to owners of KABHER NELER
the Company 88,274 138,575
Non-controlling interests JEITERG RS R R 40,906 36,560
TOTAL EQUITY HER4EER 129,180 175,135

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 314
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 6 May 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

So David Tat Man

BRiEX
Director

EF
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Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

BI01E34ENGEMBREABESTEN
T TFRRANBHERERETIE K

FINLE

Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
2ER
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEmEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

n‘7F

KAFRA RS
Invesiment
Contributed revaluation  Share options Translation Accumulated Non-controling
Share capital ~ Share premium surplus resene resene reserve  Specialresenve  Other resenve losses Subtotal interests Total
BBER BRE FER
iz kiraE N i e ARG il U ZitbE At Pt a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR Fin FiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn TEn TEn TEn FiEn FiEn
Note (3) Note (b)
GEC] FiE)
At 1 January 2020 ®Z%I25-5-H 9325 6,909 650,98 (28,946) - (16,594) 6,026 (746) (440,155) 186,117 36474 222,591
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - (58,845) (58,845) (39 (8,884
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEEMAE (%) i
for the year:
ltem that wil not be reclssifed to profitor loss: - HFEEHHEZER 2R
Fair value loss on investments in equity RATEIAEMEENEL
instruments at fair value through other BRIARENATERR
comprehensive income - - - (2,208) - - - - - (2,206) - (2,208)
lem that may be subsequenty recessifed o RETENHEEEZHEL
profit or loss:
Fichange differences arising on transation of ~ BEENEBELCEREE
foreign operations - - - - - 12729 - - - 12,729 (895) 11834
Other comprehensive (expense) income REEEMAE (B3 K&
for the year, netof income tax MER - - - (2,206) - 12729 - - - 10523 (895) 9628
Total comprehensive (expense) income FEERE (B3 WaLE
for the year - - - (2,208) - 179 - (58,845) (48322) (934) (49,256)
Recognition of equitysetled share based BANEREERURABERN
payments (Note 43) 1131 (H343) - - - - 1800 - - - - 1,800 - 1800
Acquisiton of nterestn subsidares without  WERMEATERELEESZ
change of control (Note 47) 8 (37) - - - - - - - (1,020 - 1,00 1000 -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZRE+IE=1-8 9325 6,909 650,298 (31,152 1,800 (3,865 6,026 (1,766) (499,000) 138575 36,560 175,135
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘m * \ﬁ@:j%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGNS
Investment
Contributed ~ revaluation  Share options  Translation Accumulated Non-controlling
Share capital  Share premium surplus reserve reserve reserve  Special reserve  Other reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
REER R ) R
% iR BARER L] L] BHEE RRIEE it RithH gt ks A
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fin Fin Fin Fin Fin FEn FEn Fin Fir Fin Fin Fin
Note (3) Note (b)
M) Hizk(b)
A1 January 2021 rZ2-5-5-H 9,325 6,909 650,298 (31,152 1800 (3.865) 6,026 (1,766) (499,000 138575 36,560 115135
Loss for the year EERR - - - - - - = = (51.270) (51,270) (1350 (52620
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEHMAE (%) W&
for the year
ltem that will not be reclassifed to profit o loss: - B E;
Fair value loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value thiough other RATERENLTEER
comprefensive income = = = (812) = = = = = (812) = (812)
tems that may be subsequenty recssifed to - EATEHHEEERA
proft or loss:
Exchange differences aising on transation of ~ EBNERELVEREE
foreign operations = = = = = 1220 = = = 1220 39 1611
Release of cumulative exchange resene wpon — HEBAEBERREHERER
disposal of foreign operations - - - - - 1,083 - - - 1,043 - 1,083
= . = = = 263 - - - 26 £l 2654
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEEEMRE B3 hE
for the year,net of income tax (et
. . . (512) = 28 s 5 5 1451 £ 180
Total comprehensive (expense) income FEERE (B3 hikE
for the year - - - (812) - 2063 - - (51,270) (49,819) (959) (50,778)
Placing of new shares (Note 40(a)) EENRN (H5400) 1210 3,088 = = = = = = = 4318 - 4318
Transaction costs atirbutable to placing of EEN W’? AN
new shares - (245) - - - - - - - (245) - (245)
Capital reorganisation (Note 40(3) BREA (H:H400) (9,535) (9712) - - - - = = 19,47 = = B
Deemed disposal of partal inteest in subsidaries %ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂﬂ” L
(Note 47) (k47 = = = = = = = (4,555) - (4,555) 5,305 750
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-E+ZF=t+-8 1,060 - 650,298 (31,964) 1,800 (1,602) 6,026 (6,321) (531,023) 88,274 40,906 129,180
Notes: 5T
(@) The special reserve represents the difference between the (a) B Rl#EEIER QBRI E AT RS EE K
nominal amount of share and share premium of the former RO REHEARBE S _FEEEAME
subsidiary of the Company and the nominal amount of the THARABROEBEZENELE
Company's shares issued pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 2002.
(b) The other reserve has been set up and dealt with in (b) Ht#EEDLRERN —ENB AR A #

accordance with the accounting policies for the changes in
ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control. Details of changes in ownership in interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in loss of control is set out in

Note 47.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIRE4LXEF/R AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HAEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
-8 CZEZ=TH
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Loss before tax PRI AT RS IR (52,120) (73,412)
Adjustments for: P EIIBEFHAE !
Finance costs BB A 6,279 8,455
Depreciation for plant and equipment  BRR= K& R HiTE 990 1,294
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEINE 557 786
Share-based payments MU0 #ERR TR - 1,800
Loss from changes in fair value of KEYERTEE
investment properties, net 518 B8 1,678 11,673
Gain from changes in fair value of BATESAEBGDZ
financial assets at fair value through THMEELTEED
profit or loss & (3,019) (7,278)
Impairment loss, net of reversal AEETE > 0 ERESE]
— goodwill —BE 725 -
— right-of-use assets —fEREEE Al -
— deposits paid —BfEsE 5,445 -
— interests in associates —REES AT RIS - 855
— financial assets and other items —EREEKRTERR
under expected credit loss model EEBEEAT
HEMIER 10,629 10,781
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB RS E (121) (3,327)
Gain on disposal of plant and HE R k& EN K
equipment (100) (117)
Loss on written-off of plant and WEE R B e 5% 5 18
equipment - 26
Loss on written-off of other receivables #i8 ELthrEWRIE >
518 - 2,934
Gain on settlement of loan and interest #5&EEWNE R H BHY
receivables Wz - (3,962)
Loss on settlement of loans to EEEBEABEH
associates BRBEE 6,303 133
Share of results of associates DIEBE N B EE (247) 9,258
Interest income ] E WA (1,347) (1,821)
Dividend income from financial assets AT {Et ABEN
at fair value through profit or loss THEENKRERA (12) -
Operating cash flows before AREEBESEHAIZ
movements in working capital REWPERE (24,289) (41,922)
(Increase) decrease in inventories F& (gm e (2,647) 839
Increase in trade and other receivables  F& UK BR 70 R ELfth FE U 3k 18
&0 (332) (27,851)
Decrease in loan and interest receivables F&UWT & TR F B D 1,753 341
Increase in restricted bank balance 2 R EIERITAS BRIE 10 (695) (10)
Increase in trade and other payables FE(T AR H A FE (T FRIE
0 11,500 11,050
Increase in contract liabilities BHREEE 1,258 1,246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
- CZTEZ=H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT TFET
Cash used in operations EBFRARE (13,452) (56,307)
Income tax paid B PRSI (69) (103)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEEFRARE R
ACTIVITIES (13,521) (56,410)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEE
Proceeds on disposal of financial assets HE&EZAFEF ABRHN
at fair value through profit or loss TMEENFEMIE 18,633 714
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEIZAFEFAEBTH
through profit or loss TMEE (4,151) (5,994)
Proceeds on disposal of asset classified HEDEAIFTIEHEZ
as held for sale BEENMERE - 57,297
Proceeds on disposal of investment HEREMENFIENRIE
properties - 29,917
Proceeds on disposal of plant and HERE R&EEN
equipment P18 I8 100 318
Interest received BWF 2 3 3
Dividend income from financial assets & AF{Est ABTEN
at fair value through profit or loss TMEENRKEWA 12 -
Loan advance to an associate BNFT—HEBHEQT 2
am - (6,188)
Purchase of plant and equipment BERERLE (413) (358)
Payments for right-of-use assets FEREEENRIE = (17)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from disposal HEMBAT ZRE
of subsidiaries (i) AP EE (41) 836
Proceeds from disposal of partial interest & [ & /A 5 2 5 # & Y
in a subsidiary FriSmRIE 750 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING KRETHELREPE
ACTIVITIES 14,893 76,528
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REES
Advance from non-controlling interests ~ JE#ER% IR BR E TR AU BA R 900 -
New borrowing raised MERER 1,150 6,900
Repayments of borrowings BEEN (2,000) (30,045)
(Decrease) increase in margin loans FEfiREEER (L)
payables A0 (424) 502
Repayments of lease liabilities BERESE (602) (966)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHR(D Z FT1S R IE 4,318 S
Transaction costs attribute to placing of BC & ¥ 15 FE(L 32 57 A2
new shares (245) =
Interest paid BAFHE (4,734) (4,000)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING R EBIFTRIRE R
ACTIVITIES (1,637) (27,609)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH R&RBESZER/\VFEE
EQUIVALENTS (265) (7,491)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT E{IzRERIRE%E
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,951 2,416
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEREEFZTE
changes 164 8,026
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXZIR&EKRE&S%EE
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash LURTT4E 8RR IRET)T 2,850 2,951
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIR £ L EHRATE 109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law
of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 5 February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company
is 20/F, Wanchai Central Building, 89 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
(the "Directors”) do not consider any company to be
the ultimate holding company and parent company of
the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, trading of consumables and agricultural
products, trading of grocery food products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB") and New
Taiwan dollars ("NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, Hong
Kong Accounting
Standards
("HKAS") 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”)
of the International Accounting Standards Board
issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity
should include as “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

2.

2.1

Impacts on application of the agenda
decision of the Committee — Cost necessary
to sell inventories (HKAS 2 Inventories)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its
agenda decision, clarified the costs an entity
should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net
realisable value of inventories. In particular,
whether such costs should be limited to those
that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale should not be limited to
those that are incremental but should also
include costs that an entity must incur to sell
its inventories including those that are not
incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the
Committee’s agenda decision was to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only.
Upon application of the Committee’s agenda
decision, the Group changed its accounting
policy to determine the net realisable value
of inventories taking into consideration both
incremental costs and other cost necessary to
sell inventories. The new accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda
decision has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
The amendments:

° update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued
in October 2010);

° add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within
12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity's own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) (continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2021, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s
liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may
require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements
or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

2.

in e BT ER R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
FEREERRBHREED (TFEH
IS ER ) ZEFT A (48)

ERMERHKERNMIEBMBRS
R EETE (8

BB ERFIRREEHMBREE
RIEFSIRE B2 Z 65T & 5t KK EE
(&)
ERAMBREENEBRSHB2RF
HEBAEHE) (EHRE)) TFEE
510 LUGR PR — I B BR W0 AT T0 25 % 5F
BMERAERZ AR S BERKRER
HETER— RSt RN EN S HRM
BHRERECBEN -BHHRSCEMIE
EERRER -

BRZSET BRI EHAERRM
BRAXKBEEEATE BRI
EXEERTEEAHRZIKE -BRIE
TEWAH RREEERERNGS
MBIARP T LUINE

EHE B ERF8IE (155T7) B &t 1451
HIE 7%

ZET AR EsHAFT EERS FHEFE
THRMAENMBREZ GBS, -
CEHRAEREMBRERNIAEE R
B ERHBARN S A E D
S BRI EREERMEERIIE
BEEMATUEANEERRHGtE-
RUEBERT > —EBEERERGSHEE U
ZEH G BRI ER BRI
SHERBERFEENENERER
FIER SRR ©

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

117



118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates (continued)

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the
tax deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities
(please see Note below), the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities as
a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant
assets and liabilities are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated with the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amounts of rights-of-use assets and
lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to approximately HK$382,000 and
HK$506,000 respectively. The Group is still in the
process of assessing the full impact of the application
of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the
following standards:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of
assessing whether modification of terms of original
financial liability constitutes substantial modification
under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only
fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the example
the illustration of reimbursement relating to leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to remove any
potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by
removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS
41 to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group incurred a loss attributable to owner of the
Company of approximately HK$51,270,000 and
had approximately HK$13,521,000 net cash used
in operating activities during the year ended 31
December 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$34,643,000. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Although the Group has been continuously incurring
losses in these years, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its operating cash flows as and when they fall
due for the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period given that:

(i) the Directors will continuously review the
cost structure of the Group and formulate
appropriate cost saving measures to improve
the performance and the cash flows of the
Group's operations;

(ii) the Directors are also considering streamlined
the Group's asset base by realise some of its
investment properties, selling the Group’'s
equity interests in PRC and interest in associates
in PRC to strengthen the Group’s cash flows
and utilise the existing standby facility granted
to the Company whenever appropriate; and

(i) the Directors have also proposed to raise
further funding by way of rights issue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
on a going concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements do not provide for further liabilities which
might arise, and do not include any adjustments
relating to the carrying amount and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary should
the Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3. RAEMBRRGREEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company:

° has the power over the investee;

o is exposure, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstance indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“"HKFRS 9") or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control, are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units ("CGUs") (or group of CGUs) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group
of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU
within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of
and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described in “interests in
associates” below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate.
Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEZEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after the
sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment in an associate,
the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from
the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEZEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of offices that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability, less any lease incentives receivable, based on
the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
REMBRRENEBEREARSY
TR (48)

EREFEE (B

fHE (&)

FEEEZEABA (B)

HEEN

B HIBUTER  AEBRRBEEELF
AHBUEEARR

. EEBMAER—BEN MU L
HREEZENEAEERE ;
K

. HERBEM BNz EEEE
REEBRBAHEZEBERK
ARBRBESNZERBRM
HZBBEBERETZENEE
R o

PMALIFARDBEBEE ZHEETM
B AERRELEETHENHEERR
EREFNERWEEERENFERER
B sFEAARERETERBHIK
BT REIRRARIREETTAHE K o

AEEBBHNARCAREEETE
BRE LHEERRETENTE-
EREGHNEsHERND Uk —E
NZERRINMEEHIFEEL DR A&
ERBEEEE D HAEE B ERRIF
B2 HBIBILER BB SN

FHRESIEEREEERD

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 O =

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
For changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient
to remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting the
revised lease payments using the unchanged discount
rate and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets. A lease modification is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if, and only
if, both of these conditions are met:

o the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark
reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease

payments is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the modification).

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
3. REUBHRRGNEERERE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the date
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserves (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2015 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants (continued)

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received
and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement
benefit plans in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEZEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the date of grant without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve. For share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair values of the goods or services received, except
that where fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the services received are
recognised as expenses.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
3. REUBHRRGNEERERE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale, which is always presumed to be
recovered entirely through sales.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the
leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
3. REUBHRRGNEERERE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

stEUR (48)

EREFEE (B
BERZE

BERzERARBmIRBHNEE
HHEE HITHENNELEE KR
RRmIbEMRARER R ITERE
BESRERBE WA REaHHR

MERARR

FEERES  WENEGEERMET
EREHRAMEEERANRERE L
StRIEAFI REMITED AR ER
SHIRES MESt 2 EREHNTE

M FRHAEAE ABR ©

B R sz TR B S H & R s i TR AR R
ERFECAREETERRKL
M) i BRF BUH FE ST o tH E S IRBE R 5 ’e 3R
WEEMS | N2 EMRmEE JHi%
EREEZHEMSMEBERKEEZ

ERAREETE > W iB PSS

RENZE

REMERFERNES R HFE

KIEEZYZE-

REVMENGRMASTE BRENE
BEGSTH o IRAIa SRR B HF

MHAFEEe

BEMEATESBEE 2B Ot

AHELEHEZEmA-

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

153



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment at least annually and
whether there is an indication that it may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEZEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of
CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU or a group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

3. RAEMBRRGREEZEREKRE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to
their original condition, as required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate of
the expenditure that would be required to restore the
assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted
as appropriate for new circumstances.

Contingent assets/liabilities

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other
unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the Group
and they are not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the Group recognises the asset
and the related income in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in which the
change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising
from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected
to be met by other parties is treated as a contingent
liability and it is not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
3. REUBHRRGNEERERE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Contingent assets/liabilities (continued)
Contingent liabilities (continued)

The Group assesses continually to determine whether
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
has become probable. If it becomes probable that an
outflow of future economic benefits will be required
for an item previously dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except in
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBS IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

(iii)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income
("OCI") and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Dividends are included in the
“other income, gains or losses” line item in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other income, gains or losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, loan and
interest receivables, loans to associates, restricted bank
balance and bank balances) and financial guarantee
contract which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

ina Eco-Farming Limited FEIB¥£EEEFIRAT
nual Report 2021 ZZ = —F &%

MAEMBRREREERERY
stECR (48)

EREFEE (B

EHTAR (#)

EMEE (B
FFEEBMHREEAEISREERH
BEfENEREEKREMBERRE
HRMEEBYHREERBSRAE
HERENEMEE (BEE S RME
WRRIE s ERR BT mEE AT
FHER  ZRFETHEGRRIBTE
) RMBERAREH AEBRRER
EEEE (FRREEBE) BNEST
RESG-REREEAH RREEE
BERAOGEN > UK B GHEDE
WIEERREE-

EHRPEEHEENEBTIAZTE
SHEMAFBREREZENSEMH
RELEZRAEEBRE R2Z 128
BfaEERE (128 ABEER
B ERANKRSAHR12EART
BEELEZENEHMBEEZNDE
HRAEERE M REAERBE
EEBRERET TMEARHEA B
REEBRIUKRENREEHZER
BRRIAR Z KRB R MEFREZ 5T
HERZEERRFLAR-

AEE-BENE S RERIRIERS 21
TRHIEERIR

AR TAMS  AEEGFEZES
BEBERZEN12E/SAREERE
FRIEB VP HERNEEERREEZEM
FIBERTAEESRERDBEMEAME
BB -HRNELEIENRREES
B BRTETER BV S EREEE
B Z I BEME B R B KB IE N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

in the financial

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

0] Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

(ii)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial

asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes-off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written-off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

4 A
1 O =

3.

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder,
the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks that
are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account
by adjusting the discount rate instead of
adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

(continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes
into consideration the following characteristics
when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and loans to associates
where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, borrowings,
margin loans payables and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the Directors, at a
particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
Please refer to Note 3 in relation to the going concern
assumptions adopted by the Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of
discount rate, a material impairment loss or further
impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the estimated
cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year
due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of goodwill was HK$Nil (2020: HK$725,000), net
of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$23,594,000 (2020: HK$22,869,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which are
set out in Note 18.

In relying on the valuation report, the Directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including
the potential risk of any market violation, policy,
geopolitical and social changes or other unexpected
incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic
environment, travel restrictions implemented by many
countries, or other unexpected incidents would result
in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The Directors have performed internal assessment on
the risks of change in macroeconomic environment
through performing sensitivity analysis in relation to
the Group's investment properties.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
the Group’s investment properties is approximately
HK$16,869,000 (2020: HK$18,367,000).

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of deposits paid for
acquisition of properties

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties are stated
at costs less accumulated impairment, if any. In
determining whether a deposit paid is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing whether an
event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the value of the underlying asset. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the potential risk
of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result
of change in macroeconomic environment, travel
restrictions implemented by many countries, or other
unexpected incidents, could materially affect the value
of the underlying asset.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
deposits paid for acquisition of properties subject
to impairment assessment were approximately
HK$64,756,000, after taking into account the
impairment losses of HK$5,445,000 in respect of
deposits paid for acquisition of properties that have
been recognised. Details of the impairment of deposits
paid for acquisition of properties is disclosed in Note
23.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's unlisted
equity instruments amounting to approximately
HK$7,261,000 (2020: HK$7,871,000) were measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgment and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and
the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See
Note 42(c) for further disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
EAGHE REF T RERR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the
Group's historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables are disclosed in Note 42(b).

Provision of ECL for deposits and other
receivables and loans to associates

Provision of ECL for deposits and other receivables
with significant balances and loans to associates
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision rate
are based on internal credit ratings and taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group's deposits and other receivables and loans to
associates are disclosed in Notes 42(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables
The Group estimates the estimated loss rates of loan
and interest receivables based on historical credit loss
experience of the debtors as well as the fair value of
the collateral pledged by the borrowers to the loan
and interest receivables. At every reporting date, the
management assesses the collateral and credit quality
of each borrower based on borrower’s background
information, financial position, past experience and
relevant factors.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group’s loan and interest receivables are disclosed in
Note 42(b).

Provision of ECL for financial guarantee contract
The determination of the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs requires an estimation
of discount rate. The discount rate is based on
management best estimate of the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group's financial guarantee contract are disclosed in
Note 42(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

REVENUE

5. W=
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EEREASHNRENSE
with customers
Trading of
consumables
One-stop and  Trading of  Provision of
value chain  agricultural  grocery food financial
services products products services Total
it HERR w )
EEERE RERES BRES RUSHERS f:ct
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TE T# T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z--F
+ZA=+-HLEE
Geographical markets B s
Hong Kong &% - 50,020 16,201 - 66,221
Australia ARG 3,252 - - - 3,252
PRC FE - 3411 - - 3411
Korea 5] - 166 - - 166
3,25 53,507 16,201 = 73,050
Timing of revenue recognition gt ikt
At point in time HERRS 3,252 53,597 16,201 - 73,050
Sales channel/type of customer HERE /EREY
Wholesale #E 3,252 53,597 16,091 - 72,940
Retail £33 = - 110 - 110
3,252 53,597 16,201 - 13,050
Trading of
consumables
One-stop and Trading o~ Provision of
value chain agricultural — grocery food financial
services _products products services Total
! HEME b B ‘
EEERE RERZS EnBs RUESRERHE st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiEn TEn TR TER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-S-EE
TZAZ+-ALEE
Geographical markets Bl
Hong Kong 4 2,031 14375 14,738 1434 32,578
Australia BARE N - - - 97
3,002 14,375 14,738 1,434 33,549
Timing of revenue recognition Wz Fe SRR B
At point in time HERR® 3,002 14,375 14,738 1434 33,549
Sales channel/type of customer HERE /BREY
Wholesale 1" 3,002 14,375 14,455 - 31,832
Retail TE = = 283 - 283
Corporate ¥ - - - 1,434 1434
3,002 14,375 14,738 1,434 33,549

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBZ4XEH/RAF
Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
5. REVENUE (continued)

0]

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT

5. W (88
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EERSHINENSE (&)
with customers (continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the TXH#HIE LS U ED IR
revenue from contracts with customers with the BRI ENSRENEHIE
amounts disclosed in the segment information.
Segment revenue
7 BB =
2021 2020
—E—F CEEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
One-stop value chain services ~— — UGB ESEARTS 3,252 3,002
Trading of consumables and HERMERERES
agricultural products
— Reusable bags —IRR&= 6,397 6,149
— Recycle plastics — Bl EB R} 47,200 8,226
Trading of grocery food fEHEmE
products
— Ramen and udon —H B A B 3,211 5,247
— Frozen foods and others — S REmKREM 12,990 9,491
Provision of financial services RIS RARTS = 1,434
Revenue from contracts ER &8
with customers 73,050 33,549
Leases ME - 266
Interest under effective interest FZEEFIZAFHEHNIFIE
method 217 1,381
Total revenue “E 73,267 35,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Provision of one-stop value chain services
The performance obligation is satisfied when
services are rendered and the credit period
granted to the customers is normally due upon
completion of the service.

Sales of reusable bags and recycle plastics

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods. The Group typically
receives a deposit on acceptance of orders and
the balance payment is generally due within
0 to 90 days from delivery. When the Group
receives a deposit before the delivery of the
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract until the goods have
been delivered to the customer.

Sales of ramen and udon

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payment is generally
due within 30 to 60 days from delivery.

Sales of frozen foods and others

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payments is generally
due within 0 to 90 days from delivery.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5.

(i) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)
Provision of financial service
The performance obligation is satisfied upon
completion of the service. The Group typically
receives a deposit ranged from 33% to 50% of
service fee on acceptance of the engagements
and progress billing is generally due when the
stated milestones in the contract are reached.
When the Group receives a deposit before
the provision of services, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract,
until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

(iv) Leases

I &= (,.E)

(ii)

ERANNENET (@)

e E MR

BHEBR THRBERZ5E
T mEEBERRERORU
BN F33% E50% R E 1A
Be BEREENRRIEREN
EEANTAI BRI -
1@2-?%.3’3%1#)%&?% W B 3%
& BIILRHIB IR B 45T L EE
ERBERA S PR SE
BRreeRIAENENEaR.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the (i) XEBORERBRSHZHAT
remaining performance obligation for BHEE
contracts with customers
All revenue contracts are for period of one HRFTERBESYNANEA
year or less. As permitted by HKFRS 15, the —EGUT - HEBUBREE
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied BIEE1558 2 B E » W B oA
contracts is not disclosed. ZARBHENZ X Z B
(ivy #E
2021 2020
- IZEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
For operating leases: ERKERE
Lease payments that are fixed — [EE &7 EE = 266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of Directors (the
“Board”), being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable

segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a. One-stop value chain services

—IATVBEERTS

b. Property investment

MERE

C. Trading of consumables and
agricultural products

HERMRRERE

d. Trading of grocery food products
EHEmES

e. Provision of money lending
services
R BERTS

f. Provision of financial services

RMHET RS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
6. KERH

RETERIE R D EXRRETER
Exg((E5g) AEEEEREKE
(TEZEERERE)) RENERE
BRI RAMERHNE m R RV AR
Ale IERAEENT2RDEET > =
BEERREBLEBANNKEE D
BREEAR o

LTHEHZ AEBEREEBMHHREER
SEeIEE DRI 2RO ECUT :

provision of total solution services including trading,
packaging and logistics solutions

REEERRDERS (BEES QERYARBERS

]

%)

generated rental income from operating leases of Group's
investment properties

FEEREVECSHEEENES A

processing and trading of consumables and agricultural
products

HERRRERNIRES

trading of grocery food products

EhemE

provision of money lending services

1R 15 B AR S

provision of financial and investment advisory and

corporate financial services

REM B RIGEZH AR EERERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

6. REEDE (R

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents
the profit earned (loss from) by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, certain other income, gains
or losses, interest income, gain from changes in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, dividend income
from financial assets at FVTPL, share of results of
associates, impairment loss recognised on goodwill/
interests in associates/deposits paid/loans to associates/
financial guarantee contract, loss on settlement of
loans to associates, loss on written-off of plant and
equipment, certain impairment loss/loss on written-off
of other receivables, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

53 BB Wik B R4 ()

e DB S 5t R B N 3P LAY 25
EREETBERAER - 2 EEA (518 15
BBV (518 » FEEDE R R
THAA -EFMWE B TEHMUA
W s e F B AR AT EFA
BmzERMEEATEEH W@ RA
FEFABZZEMEENRBUA
DIEBE AT EE B EREEE
BE/MBEATNER BUEE
/S ABEABSFHER MHERE
W ERBBERRIFHEREE
TR R 2 e s 1 2 S R ~ i EL A FE LY
RIEZETRERE EBE - HENES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued) 6. SER (48)
Segment assets and liabilities SIMEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and M T AKNEEIKRD] L3R L &S5 ZRE
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: DEEBEBED
2021 2020
-5 —"ZTTZEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Segment assets PEEE
One-stop value chain services — b BB AR TS 919 830
Property investment MEKE 24,406 27,089
Trading of consumables and HEMKREERES
agricultural products 22,626 14,750
Trading of grocery food products EHEmMES 5,467 6,058
Provision of money lending services RIEBERT 1,935 2,876
Provision of financial services IRIEERARTS — 47
Total segment assets PEPEELEE 55,353 51,650
Unallocated corporate assets RO ABEE 169,813 218,475
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHENEE 13,547 -
Consolidated assets EeEE 238,713 270,125
Segment liabilities PEEE
One-stop value chain services — b BB ARTS 947 1,146
Property investment MERKE 2,494 1,648
Trading of consumables and HEMKREEREB S
agricultural products 20,204 7,717
Trading of grocery food products fEHEmE 2,751 3,482
Provision of money lending services R BERT 341 107
Provision of financial services RIEERARTS 170 933
Total segment liabilities NE B EAEEE 26,907 15,033
Unallocated corporate liabilities A W/NCIE=N 82,626 79,957
Consolidated liabilities mead 109,533 94,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment, certain
right-of-use assets, goodwill, intangible asset,
interests in associates, equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income,
deposits paid, certain other receivables, loans
to associates, financial assets at FVTPL, certain
bank balances and cash and restricted bank
balance; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables, certain
amounts due to non-controlling interests,
margin loans payables, borrowings, certain
lease liabilities, financial guarantee contract and
deferred tax liabilities.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

6. REEDE (R

DEHEERER (B
MEEEDBERERAZDBOEE
RME -

. FREBEENNRELEDHN
ETHBER®E -ETEAEE
E-BE - BILEE-KBER
BlZEm AT ESAREME
HRmNEz TR -BA%E
ETHMEWRIE - @EE QT
TEHBIEMR R ATES AR
ZEMEE A TIRITER KRR
B R RHERITEERRRIN 5 K

. FRERERENEELENHE
FHMENRIE B TR IFE
iRREDNIE B REEZE
TERCETHEER® MB
BRENRELERBE BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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i B BT AR R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

REDER (1)
&
AEBMNEHANES  FERAE

FEBERBIBZEFVPARRENE
HihgER#te 25 - AEBIFASE
ENREEMEMEZS]

Revenue from

Hong Kong A
The PRC e
Australia BAR
Korea BH

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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external customers Non-current assets
REINIER 2 Wi FRBEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
- TEITF ZEI-HF  TTIFHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TR TR
66,438 33,959 86,057 103,833
3.411 266 71,895 48,002
3,252 971 - -
166 - - -
73,267 35,196 157,952 151,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group is as follows:

REDE (&)
ERTERRNEHR

HEFEREBER ZW@GAEERS

WmEBiB10% 2 E R T

2021 2020

—E - T THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A1 ZAA 9,996 6,362
Customer B 2 = B2 = 4,418
Customer C ! Z2HRC N/AFFE A3 3,824
Customer D 2 ZAD2 = 3,466
Customer E 2 B EE? 22,097 N/ARE R 2
Customer F 2 ZRR 9,999 -
Customer G 2 Z2HGE? 7,536 -

! Revenue from trading of grocery food products.

2 Revenue from trading of consumables and
agricultural products.

3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

W REEHRMBES 2 Wi o

10% °

REHFERMREMBE S Z W e

BRSO AEERBE D TBS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B BT AR R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES 7. Hthg A~ WzE sk iEsHE
2021 2020
T CZTIZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Interest income: FEUWA -
— bank deposits —iR1TFEN 3 3
— other receivables —HthE U RIE 964 901
— loans to associates —EEEABMEHBER 380 917
Dividend income from financial assets ZAF Bzt ABmHIEREE
at FVTPL BBz B A 12 -
Sundry income B A 222 180
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBABNWE (i5t46)
(Note 46) 121 3,327
Gain on disposal of plant and HERE k& EN RS
equipment 100 117
Gain on settlement of loan and EEERRERF BN G
interest receivables - 3,962
Loss on written-off of plant and WEE R B K 5 RS 18
equipment — (26)
Government grants (Note) SR (MI5E) 40 680
1,842 10,061

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised government grants of HK$40,000
(2020: HK$20,000) in respect of participation in
export promotion activities, which relates to SME
Export Marketing Fund provided by the Hong Kong
government.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group recognised government grants of
approximately HK$655,000 in respect of Covid-
19-related subsidies, which relates to Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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PDRMESR-—F+-A=+—8

IFFE  AERRSEEORES
EhRE SR B /8 Bh40,0008 T (CE
T 1 20,0008 7T) » BEBETIR
HHFNEEMIBEEE SRR

REE-_Z-_TF+-HA=+—H
FEE - AEERFT TR EBEH
Bb P SR U 48 B £9655,00078 77 » £
EBBFRENRMESBFE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. FhEMA
2021 2020
B —ET_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on borrowings Eelis! 2,873 4,762
Reimbursement of finance costs borne &4 & Fr&AE Z BB R A&
by lenders (Notes 35(a) and 35(b)) (M3 5£35(a)F035(b)) 1,719 1,579
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEfE 85 322
Interest on margin loans payables FEGREBEERMAE 590 723
Interest on balancing payment for the WHEHBABIE S =R
acquisition of further interest in BR NI ZF R
subsidiaries (Note 23(a)) (fF5E23(a)) 861 861
Others Eh 151 208
6,279 8,455
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT 9. TEHEEEHEEXETHRES
LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL 18> 0BR[]
2021 2020
T —F E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Impairment losses recognised U T ZIERED (B E) /Y
(reversed) on: AR
— Trade receivables — B 5 EEIE 1,073 259
— Other receivables —HAhEUEIa 8,030 640
— Loan and interest receivables —BEFREKRFE (812) 543
- Loans to associates —BBREQBEHER 848 386
— Financial guarantee contract —BEREN 1,490 8,953
10,629 10,781
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note A EAEEIEE Y T EE42(b) ©
42(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CREDIT) FriSfMx (K%)
2021 2020
B _—EZ_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current tax: EHIRIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax FANER
— Current tax —KEE 17 14
— Under-provision (over-provision) in ~ —BFFEEERE
prior years (FBREEHE) 60 (108)
77 (94)
Deferred tax (Note 39): REFRTE (F15E39) ©
— Current year —RFE 423 (14,434)
500 (14,528)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% from both years. No EIT is provided for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group did
not derive any assessable profit subject to EIT.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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RIBFERMAST S EREBEREF
#8.25% MR ERLEF] E2,000,0008
TCEANTRIE 5 I A 3216.5 % B R 2R 40 A
2,000,000 7t U EiEFIBIIRIE o R FF
EHERNMAFHERNERSTEN G
MU E 1216 5% M4 — R X EAR
HoRHIL A BSEBRBRENEENSE
ML E2,000,00058 T2 fH 5t ER R &
F)3%8.25% 5t & » 2,000,000 T
21T BRI A FB)1Z16.5% 5t &

BEREAREMBEEERERZE

(TEEFIBIEL) RIEEFIBREE
HelRp) > REIM B AR B ZmEFEE
IR EIT525% o AN AL E I EEF
PR (b PRSI E M EERBUEF) -
BHIERBE_ T _—FKR_FT_F
F+-RA=+—HLFEEREEEM
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CREDIT) (continued)

The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income
Tax is provided for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 as the Group did not derive any assessable

10.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_B=1—HLEE
FRiFIAB (%) ()
SEENEXMERERBEZMEFE
B fE st R ENZ17% 2 8 X5t
Ho N AL B & ZE & R BHNE
FIB PTG BRI AT > SR
BE-_S-—ER-_T-T&H+-H

profit subject to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax. —+—HIEEEAH RS EEFRER
Bt
The tax expenses (credit) for the years can be ZEFERNRERS %) okl
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated SER[EEMEE UG R EPRTR B E
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive IEHERINT
income as follows:
2021 2020
—B_—F —E°F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before tax BRI2 ARS8 (52,120) (73,412)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate FAMPTISIRE16.5%
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZEBEZEHF 1 165%)
STENIRE (8.600) (12,113)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ REJHIMRAZ R E
for tax purpose 2,233 2,984
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMNBANIRELE
for tax purpose (358) (680)
Tax effect of share of results of DMEBE AR EENRBLE
associates (41) 1,528
Tax effect of deductible temporary RSB AR ERERE
differences not recognised MEE 72 68
Tax reduction FRIEHR (37) (37)
Under-provision (over-provision) of BEFEMSRAZEERE
income tax expense in prior years (HBEE#1E) 60 (108)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KHEBIRIBR BRI E 8,534 278
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 4cRT R FESE 2 IR TE A8
recognised - (1,063)
Effect of different tax rates of REMENEEREEN
subsidiaries operating in other (SIEYNEIESENER S =4 -
jurisdictions (1,363) (5,385)
Income tax expense (credit) Fri8fm sz GE%) 500 (14,528)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B BT AR R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 11. ZISHEEE‘;'?E
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: KREEBEENRIOBRTYRIEREYL
2021 2020
—E—F T _THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Directors’ emoluments (Note 12) B2 (MEE12) 2,976 3,276
Other staff costs Ht8 TaA
(excluding directors’ emoluments): (FEEESEZME) !
— Salaries and other benefits —¥re REMER 14,475 14,494
— Retirement benefits scheme —RREH FT B
contributions 786 449

Total staff costs (Note a) BT A48%E (fista) 18,237 18,219

Auditors’ remuneration: Z BN £ -

— Audit services — 2R 870 970

— Non-audit services —IEIZBBRTS = 262
Cost of inventories recognised as an ~ FEBAML 2 FEM A

expense 72,148 28,540
Depreciation of plant and equipment = K&&EEITE

(Note b) (MF5ED) 990 1,294
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TEREEERNE

(Note c) (MF5EC) 557 786
Impairment loss recognised on FriEs3 A S ERERE

right-of-use assets 71 -
Loss on written-off of other receivables i #4 & th fE UL R IERI 518 - 2,934
Loss on settlement of loans to EERBEABEHINER

associates BES1E 6,303 133
Share-based payments to consultants 23 FEERIBI LIRS 2

HIEZ AR - 1,500

Notes: MI5E -

(a) Staff costs amounted to approximately (a) BT 4492,950,0008 7T (ZE2=
HK$2,950,000 (2020: Nil) and HK$15,287,000 T4 L E) &15,287,0008 T (B2
(2020: HK$18,219,000) have been included in cost T 118,219,000 7T) BN BIEHA
of sales and administrative expenses respectively. HER AN RITHES ©

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (b) ME--BERBEITELN21,000%
amounted to approximately HK$21,000 (2020: Nil) T (CEZEE . E) £969,0005 7T
and HK$969,000 (2020: HK$1,294,000) have been (T2 ZF4 1,294,000 B9
included in cost of sales and administrative expenses R AN E R AR ITHES ©
respectively.

(© Depreciation of right-of-use assets amounted to (0 EREEENTELS57,0008 7T (=
approximately HK$557,000 (2020: HK$786,000) has =~ E 4 786,0005870) B AT
been included in administrative expenses. BH%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 12. é%ZMﬁ
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six BE_ SR EBE_EF+_ )%
(2020: six) directors and the chief executive of the =t+t—HIFFEEAXRAB NI (ZEZ
Company for the years ended 31 December 2021 and BE N EFRTHAEZZBEEN
2020 were as follows: SNEMEN ST
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—_E-—F+-"B=+—HLHE
E
Retirement
benefits
Other Waived Net other scheme
Fees | emoluments salaries | emoluments  contributions Total
RIKER
e Hitii < BENEE | HthiEFE SRl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive directors HITESR
So David Tat Man BN = 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith 28R - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 1,218
Sub-total NG - 2,600 (200) 2,400 36 2,436
Non-executive director kHTES
Leung Chung Hee (retiredon 2 (M2 —£F
10 June 2021) ~ETBER - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BIIFHITESR
directors
Zhang Min &R 180 - - - - 180
Yuen Wai Man REM 180 - - - - 180
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffery SRR 180 - - - - 180
Sub-total gt 540 - - - - 540
Total emoluments ] 540 2,600 (200) 2,400 36 2,976
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

4 AR

g

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 12. EEREZNE (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ET-_EF+°-HB=+—HLHF
E
Retirement
Other Net other  benefits scheme Share-based
Fees emoluments  Waived salaries emoluments contributions payments Total
RIRER W%
ik Ethi & WENEE | EtMe3E Bl ERHOET st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEn FAT TR TR

Executive directors BTES

S0 David Tat Man ErEX - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 300 1518

Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith EE) - 1,300 (100) 1,200 18 - 1,218

Sub-total g - 2,600 (200) 2,400 3 300 2,736

Non-executive director FHTES

Leung Chung Hee (appointed on ~ 2FHE (RZE-Z4

6 July 2020) tﬁx\a?%f}) - - - - - - -

Independent non-executive BUdTES

directors

Zhang Min RE 180 - - - - - 180

Yuen Wai Man REH 180 - - - - - 180

Yick Ting Fai, Jeffery FEE 180 - - - - - 180

Sub-total g 540 - - - - - 540

Total emoluments ik 540 2,600 (200) 2,400 36 300 3276

Notes: BT

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above (a) XA TEECHEMEES
were for their services in connection with the KRB RFAEEEBEEMEHZ
management of the affairs of the Company and the ARFE L (T o
Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’ (b) EXFATREIIERITEE ZMER
emoluments shown above were for their services as WEETARBDZEEMEHRZR
directors of the Company. AN

() No chief executive of the Company was appointed (0) BE_ZT _— KT TF+Z
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. B=+—BULHEEE xABHMES

EATEARE, ©

(d) For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. So (d) BHE_Z_—F+"_HB=+—HL
David Tat Man and Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith agreed FE BREXTRERRENEER
to waive their emoluments of HK$100,000 and R EREDRIZ7100,0008 7T K&
HK$100,000 respectively (2020: HK$100,000 and 100,000 T E (CEZ2F . 5
HK$100,000 respectively). 51]75100,00078 75 52 100,0007& 7T) ©

(e) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and (e) REBEE_Z-_—FRIZZERF

200

2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2020: two) were Directors whose
emoluments are included in Note 12 above. Details of
the remuneration for the years of the remaining three
(2020: three) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
Llus=iHMES
AEBLUESHFMALH Wi (Z
ETF M) AES REWEEH
ALEXHEFE12 - ZRFELIF/ETATE
ERERSTHABZEGR I=% (ZTFZ
TFE =) manES ZFHMEE
mE:

13.

2021 2020

—BE—F EZEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Basic salaries and allowances BEXR#E R, 4,170 4,364
Retirement benefits scheme BRIREA ST

contributions 48 36

4,218 4,400

The number of the highest paid employees who are

FMERUTHREANTIFERENR

not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the S EE AW T
following bands is as follows:
2021 2020
T —F TETEF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 31,000,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 E2,000,00078 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00178 7t 23,000,000/ 7T - 1

During the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals (including the Directors) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2020:
Nil).

RBEETE-—FR-E"EBF+T
A=+—BHImEBEFEAR > FXERILE
mEsHEMAL (BEES) (IEM
M E RN AR EREA AR Z 8%
B S fE RERAS (B o
14. KR
BE_ZE_—F+__A=+—HLHF
B> BiERA AR ERRRERIKIEE
EXMEARE > BERSHARERE
BREINEARE CEZF  H)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 O =

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

15.

LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

15.

BikEHE
EABDEBEANBLEERERNKREEE
BIERUTEIESE -

2021 2020
S5 —"ZTZEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable to KRB NEIEAFEEIE
owners of the Company (51,270) (58,845)
2021 2020
- CZEZ=H
(Restated)
Gl
Number of shares hE - 4=]
Weighted average number of ordinary & 38 A& 0 A& 15 84
shares for the purpose of basic and (MEREBEAKREEEIR
diluted loss per share ms) 96,560,722 93,255,243

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share
has been adjusted for the share consolidation on 22
October 2021.

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted loss per share in 2020 has been restated to
reflect the effect of the share consolidation during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options because
the exercise price of those share options was higher
than the average market price for shares for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

16.  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BERSBE
Computer,
Furniture, network
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and and related Motor
improvement machinery equipment equipment vehicles Total
BIRER  BH BER
HENERE  BERES B RS HE Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER TER TER TR TER
CosT B
At 1 January 2020 RZBZZ£—F—H 3,045 - 2,59 361 3,702 9,707
Additions RE 348 - 10 - - 358
Disposals e - - - - (1,144) (1,144)
Written-off filsH @17) - 217) (243 - (877)
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ EBKERBAZES
(Note 45) IR RIE (Hs4s) - - - - 250 250
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HERBAR (Hz6) (238) - (497) (80) (500) (1315)
Exchange adjustment ERBE 52 - 61 2 16 131
At 31 December 2020 RZB_%%
+-B=+-H 2,790 - 1,956 40 2,324 7,110
Additions HE - 375 - - 38 413
Disposals HE - - - - (980) (980)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HEMBAF (H5k46) - - (72) (25) - 97)
Exchange adjustment ERAEE 2 - 25 1 - 47
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%
+ZA=1+-8 2,811 375 1,909 16 1,382 6,493
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt
At 1 January 2020 RZZZZE—-F—-H 2,077 - 1,771 335 2,576 6,759
Provided for the year FREE 495 - 443 21 330 1,29
Eliminated on disposals R ER S - - - - (943) (943)
Eliminated on written-off Gk (391) - 217) (243) - (851)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HERBAR (Hz6) (38) - (381) (78) (175) (672)
Exchange adjustment ERBEE 51 - 56 2 27 136
At 31 December 2020 RZIB-%%
+-A=+-H 2,194 - 1,677 37 1,815 5,723
Provided for the year FREE 487 20 232 3 248 990
Eliminated on disposals RHE R - - - - (980) (980)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) HERBAT (H5H46) - - (72) (25) - 97)
Exchange adjustment ERAE 2 - 25 1 - 47
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%
+-B=+-H 2,702 20 1,862 16 1,083 5,683
CARRYING VALUES IREfE
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F
+ZA=+-H 109 355 47 - 299 810
At 31 December 2020 RZB_ZE
+ZA=+-A 59% - 279 3 509 1,387
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B BT AR R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16.

The above items of plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of the

BB R s (48)
EXFRtZ BB KB EE R E AL
B8 R R AR IR AR B AR R DU 3T

E3

HEYEEE RAEE#RE20%

term of the leases, or (LR AT & A %)
20%

Plant and machinery 20% R B R s 28 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% RENEE 20%

equipment et
Computer, network and ~ 20% Eﬁﬁ“ a4 20%

related equipment AR R
Motor vehicles 20% A 20%

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. (EHRESE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 December 2021 R-E_—F+ZH=+—H
Carrying amount REE 382
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF+-A=+—H
Carrying amount AREfE 1,010
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T-—F+-A=+—HLHFE
Depreciation charge ?ﬁ’igfﬁi 557
Impairment losses B 18 71
For the year ended 31 December 2020 §"J.55 EIEF+ZRA=+—HLHFE
Depreciation charge ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ 786
2021 2020
TEZI—F CEITF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Expense relating to short-term leases  #2H#AfEAIBE (MF5%)

(Note) 5,362 698
Total cash outflow for leases HENIRESREH 3,613 1,169
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE - 1,111
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46(b)(ii)) HEM B AT (FsE46(b)ii)) = 2,857

Note: Expense relating to short-term leases amounted to
approximately HK$5,189,000 (2020: HKS$Nil) and
approximately HK$173,000 (2020: approximately
HK$698,000) have been included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses respectively,

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Company leases various offices
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 1 to 2 years (2020: 1 to 2 years),
but may have termination option as describe below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices, machinery and equipment. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors
of an office premise provided rent concessions to
the Group through rent reductions of one month.
The reduction of the Group’s lease liabilities of
approximately HK$8,000 and a corresponding
adjustment of the same amount to the right-of-use
assets were recognised.

Termination option

The Group has termination option in a lease for
office (2020: one). It is used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The additional lease liabilities
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020
as a result of not exercising termination option that
the Group was reasonably certain not to exercise
amounted to approximately HK$90,000.

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain
not to exercise a termination option upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of
the lessee. During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, there is no such triggering event.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$506,000 (2020:
HK$1,023,000) are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$382,000 (2020:
HK$1,010,000). The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the rights to sublet the
leased assets. Leased assets may not be sublet to other
person.

17.

e B ERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_HA=+—HIEE
EREEE (B)
PREFE AABAHESEHEELE
MAE ST UHESHNNEEHRER—
EME CEIEFE . —EWMF) o EA
BEB TPt #% b EEIERE c BB R
iz ENEEGE NETHERRK
AN HHAENRER  NEBE
FEANERLETE SN THITIH
fi o

FEBTHMMAE MR REBT L
RPHE R —FRIZ°ZF
+ZA=+—H ' EHRHEGHEGE X
RENEHEERY RIEHEES
HEEBLo

fAEEE

REEZE-_ZEF+"H=+—HL
FEE > HBAZBBLRE—EBHEE
MAERRENRAEHEEBE - AEE
HEaBR /48,0008 T TEMDE
MR ERERB N F B E EFHE
FECHEE o

RIS

REBNWMAEROTHER R LEER
(ZE2EZZ2F -] HIPAREK
REMESEEFCEBEZRAREA
NWEENEZE LM -BE_T_TF
TTA=+—HLFE AXEEGE
BEMMTEZR I EEREMEENE
SME IEIE R4V 490,000 7T ©

REAEHRERERELLELRRE
RAEBANESHEERNE AEEFS
HIGHERET A EEIALNGITER
IEREE - HE S K _T"F
F+_B=+—HIEE WRBFEEI
EREEE (o

TSR $Ik 2%

BRI E & E4506,0008 T (ZEZ
T4 11,023,00085T) » BERAFER
WEEX382,00085 (CE_FF
1,010,000 70) - HEWZ W EE T
A2 WD REEEENEFRIRIN
MEEEFSBETHEMA L
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18.

Ch
An

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

year ended 31 December 2021
E_—HF+_A=1+—HLHEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
leases out various premises under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 3 years, with unilateral rights to
extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees
only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the
option to extend.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
does not lease out any premises under operating
leases.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

18.

KREWE
RBEEZ_ZEF+"/A=+—HI1
FEE > AEEUKLEREN A NERS
BYE HEESAZ N HENYIG
HARR — R &34 - 12 & A B i AT
REVIEHAR UMY B 5 EHREF) o K
DEEENHEETHESHER WR
AFAITEIERR SR o

HE_ZE_—F+_-_B=+—HLE
B AREETEHRBCSHEE MMM
P o

AERTERERNREEZHEERN
SMBEEE  ARPRABRNHOUERER
EENEERSE-HEGNIES
MR EERRKRABARBIRE
RETREYEREERE-

2021 2020
T CZTTEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January »—B—H 18,367 59,183
Disposals HE = (29,917)
Net decrease in fair value PiEm PSR ATE
recognised in profit or loss B FER (1,678) (11,673)
Exchange adjustment B R % 180 774
At 31 December BR+_A=+—H 16,869 18,367
Net unrealised loss on property STABmMIYEE(EREIR
revaluation included in profit or loss 51873 %8 (1,678) (1,701)
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of all of the Group's investment
properties as at 31 December 2021 has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the
respective dates by Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Valtech”) (2020: Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited (“Ravia Global”)), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties,
the Group engages third party qualified valuer to
perform the valuation. The Directors work closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of the investment properties as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used):

18.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE
KREME (@
AEBR _ZE-_—F+"A=+—H
ZIMEREMERTENREHET
EBERRAE (THBETE) Kk (AL
Hiﬁﬁﬁmﬁjéﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ

(CBoBE  HEERTEHBHER
AT (HBIRIR)) 315 B B HRATEST

Z{EEER -

REEHERYNENRTER  2EBE
BE=ZFoERLEMETHE-EF
HEERINEEMEZ YIS FEURTE
BENGESERERENBARE-

BEFEMRANGEED AL EES-
BEZIVEZRATER ZIVER
SREERRHHIFER AR

TREHREVER - —FKZ
TRFE+_HA=+—HAMAFEZ
BERENER (CEBGEET AR
FR8ASRE) :

Fair value Fair value as at
hierarchy 31 December 2021 Valuation technique and key inputs
RZBZ—-F+ZA=+-H
ATEER WATE HEALRIEBARE
Investment properties located in Level 2 HK$9,730,000 Direct comparison approach — Market unit rate,

Hong Kong (2020: HK$12,300,000)  taking into account the recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted for nature, location and
conditions of the property

IR EBORENE EZRA 9,730,000 ERLEE-THEUER CEERMENME
(CEZEF:12,300,00087w) fAIERKRFLFABNELNZNTRRZER
Investment properties located in PRC  Level 2 RMB5,830,000 Direct comparison approach — Market unit rate,
(Equivalent to approximately  taking into account the recent transaction prices for
HK$7,139,000)  similar properties adjusted for nature, location and
(2020: RMB5,090,000  conditions of the property
(Equivalent to approximately
HK$6,067,000))
IR PR EN = il AKH5,830,0000 BEREEE-—THEMUGER SZRFMENMLE
(1HE1497,139,00087) (B RARIELBENELMENTBRTZER
(C222F 1 ARK5,090,00070
(18 & 1:496,067,000%7T))
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
There was no transfer into and out of Level 3 during
the year.

The investment properties located in PRC with the
fair value of approximately RMB5,830,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7,139,000) as at 31 December
2021 (2020: approximately RMB5,090,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,067,000)) have been pledged
to a PRC company (“Entity A”) to secure a 3-year loan
of RMB13,000,000 (the “Loan B") granted to Gold
Wide Holdings Limited (“Gold Wide"), an associate of
the Group. Loan B is bearing an interest rate at 8%
per annum and repayable on 14 January 2022. The
term of pledge is from the grant date of Loan B to the
date falling three years after the due date (Note 21).
Gold Wide is the lender of the interest-free unsecured
other borrowing of RMB13,000,000 as detailed in
Note 35(b).

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties
located in Hong Kong with the fair value of
approximately HK$9,730,000 has been pledged to a
financial institution in Hong Kong to secure an other
borrowing granted to the Group. Details of the other
borrowing are set out in Note 35(d).

As at 31 December 2020, the investment properties
located in Hong Kong with the fair value of
approximately HK$12,300,000 has been pledged to a
financial institution in Hong Kong to secure an other
borrowing and a margin loan account of the Group.
Details of the other borrowing are set out in Note
35(d).

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R

18.

REME ()
RERI S = RAI 2 BAREH -

WN_E_—F+_-_BA=+—H'A¥F
B4 A AR 15,830,000 (HHERKH
7,139,000 7T) (Z2-_FF  HAR
#&5,090,0007T (18 E 146,067,000/
7)) MR FPENREYECIRFET
—XRFPELE (MERA)) UWEREE
ShEBBRAR (IEs5h) AEBZ —
BHMEAT) BEN=EHERARE
13,000,0007T (MFE#BJ) - EFBZFH
KAIK AN _E__4F—F+ImNH
BE HHBEABERNBRHBBERER
R B=FE2H (ME21) cmumk
FE35(b)FTEEat > oA A G BRI IR A
B AR #13,000,0007c 2 8 75 °

KRB —F+-A=+—8ATE
499,730,000 7T ML} B £ 914
WE BRI T EB N — R R
R4 5 I 5 4 0 B 530 o e
HO BB BB B M EE35(0)

N ZETEFEF+ZA=+—H AFE
#9712,300,000 B AN EEMNEKRE
MECIRBFEEN —KSREEL
ERAEENEMERKRFEEER
iR o M ETRBIEE 1B T HMIEE35(d) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

GOODWILL 19. F5&
2021 2020
B —ET_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
COST W
At 1 January and 31 December RW—B—HBAk+_BA=+—H 23,594 23,594
IMPAIRMENT HE
At 1 January w—A—H (22,869) (22,869)
Impairment loss recognised FAETRERSIE
during the year (725) -
At 31 December R+—_B=+—H (23,594) (22,869)
CARRYING VALUES IRmEE
At 31 December R+-_B=+—H - 725

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to the CGU which comprises
one subsidiary in the trading of consumables and
agricultural products. The carrying amounts of
goodwill as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 allocated

to the unit are as follows:

RHETREAR HECESEKRERS
EEEM SEREHERREERE
SH—ERBAB - N —F k=
ZTZFEF+"A=+—H ENkEZ

FEMUNBHERAEENT

2021 2020
T CZETIZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trading of consumables and HEMKREERES
agricultural products

— Inno-Bag Limited (Note) —FERERRECERRAT

(=) - 725
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A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued)

= A H
AR

19.

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
recoverable amount of Inno-Bag Limited has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.89% (2020:
15.87%). The cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2020: 2%)
growth rate. The growth rate is based on the general
inflation rate for the year 2021 and the management
of the Group believe that it is reasonable. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for Inno-Bag
Limited is also based on the budgeted sales and
expected gross margins of Inno-Bag Limited.

Based on the above basis and assumptions,
impairment loss of approximately HK$725,000
and HK$71,000 has been recognised in respect of
the goodwill and rights-of-use assets, respectively
to the extent that the carrying amounts exceeded
their recoverable amounts and the amounts were
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management of the Group determined that there
was no impairment on Inno-Bag Limited as the
recoverable amount of Inno-Bag Limited exceeded its
carrying amount by approximately HK$666,000

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2021, goodwill has
been fully impaired and thus no sensitivity analysis
has been performed.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to the pre-tax discount rate and terminal
growth rate, representing the key inputs to the
determination of the recoverable amount.
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EE (&)

My5E -

gz —H£+°"H=+—H
FFEE RERGAEECXBRAT
NR Bl SREETEHAEESEM
E TE o AT Ui [O] & BB ¥ BR A T 48 LU RS
BERL - FEEEBENAENLFERE
REEBF#ME AEHMBER
PNIRERETAR RERATITIRE
15.89% (ZZ"ZF : 15.87%) > M
BRALEHNRESRERBBTE
RE2% (ZZTZZTHF 1 2%) fEHE
H-REWERNLENR IS I —F
HN—RERE BAEESEBE
EEHBAE HERRARREPERR
NEREEHRNIRSREBAT
HERERFRECEERARDNTE

HIHERTBHER X
EREMBERBER  BDRHME
BREREEERD m@ﬁﬁﬁ

725,000 75 K& 71,0008 7T » 1 LLER
AEBHAETKEDHREAR BE
MEEREE_ST-_—F+_8
—t+—HIEFEENGEERREM
EEW R R

HEZZ-ZE+"HF=+—HLt
EE - AEFAEEBE TR ERRF
ROEEERAD L ERE FARK
EIRFRRCESRATH A E R
THiB H H R E {E49666,00078 7T ©

BRE D
BE_Z-_—HF+-RA=+—HL
FE> BHECTHRE Rl #E
TEURE Do

BE_Z_FF+_HA=+—AHL
FE - BREINTDRBERAITIR
KR A RE BVEE T W EIE R
REEANIEZESARE EE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)
Note: (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
19. HE @
MoEE © (48)
BRE DT (8

If the pre-tax discount rate had been 1% higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the headroom for the year ended 31 December
2020 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$147,000/HK$170,000.

If the terminal growth rate had been 1% higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the headroom for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease by approximately

HWRAITIRER EF T 1%  MFr
BHMEHER IS BIEE —2
—EFE+-AS+—ALEEBY
o B IN4£9147,0005 7T
/170,000 7% ©

ﬁéjj(ﬁi%wiﬂ/?ﬁé1% > T

BoEEi-A= - BLEEE
HED 53 1948 0, LD 4949, 00038 5T

HK$49,000/HK$86,000. /86,0003 7T ©
INTANGIBLE ASSET 200 BREE
Licence
i1
HK$'000
FET
COST 5%
At 1 January 2020 /\\:’v\—%;‘“ﬂz A—H -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 45) EBUEKHTE AR EITHWEEIE
(M$5E45) 758
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 A CE T —F+_A=+—HK
- —F#+"HA=+—H 758
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT B2itiRE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and N_Z2_ZTF—HF—H-
31 December 2021 :E_SEﬂL BA=+—HK
B —F#+”"HB=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2021 RN _E _—F+_A=+—H 758
At 31 December 2020 N _E_EF+_F=+—H 758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSET (continued)

The licence represents the licence plate which enable
the vehicle to travel and hang licence plate in both
PRC and Hong Kong. The licence is renewable every
year at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the licence continuously
and has the ability to do so.

As a result, the licence is considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to generate economic
benefit to the Group indefinitely. The licence will not
be amortised until its useful life is determined to be
finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Directors conducted a review of the carrying amount
of the licence and appointed an independent
professional valuer, Valtech (2020: Ravia Global), to
assist them to determine the recoverable amount of
the licence. The recoverable amount of the licence
has been determined based on its fair value less cost
to disposal. The Directors work closely with the valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value of the licence, the highest
and best use of the licence is to resale it.

Direct sales comparison approach under market
approach has been used to estimate the fair
value of the licence. The estimated fair value less
cost of disposal of the licence as at 31 December
2021 is approximated to HK$1,509,000 (2020:
HK$1,300,000).

Since the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying
amount, no impairment loss on the licence was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

21. RBEQARZEm

2021 2020
—EBE—F _T_ZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cost of unlisted investments in RBEABE ZIELMKREMA
associates 69,212 69,212

Share of post-acquisition loss and ML EEEEER

other comprehensive expense HEmemEmiEx (22,055) (22,302)
47,157 46,910
Less: Accumulated impairment B REHRE (3.474) (3,474)
43,683 43,436

Reclassification as assets classified as EHDEABEDEARZIELE
held for sale (Note 31) WEE FIsE31) (13,546) -
30,137 43,436

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had

interests in the following associates:

N TET-FERZEBTEF+TA
=+—H FAEER TIBE AT P HE

B
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
establishment/ interests or participating Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity operation Class of shares held ~ shares held by the Group voting power held Principal activity
BRI/ R/ FEEMREMARELT
ERAE gREp H-EES FisRin 2 ) BERRBZ A PR Rl IEER
2021 2020 2021 2020
“¥-F CECRF OZEC-F CBOER
Direct associates
EfEERE
FDC Limited (Note a) Limited liability Samoa Ordinary shares 49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
FDC Limited (Ffzka) BIRAFE EES LER BN
Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment Limited liability PRC Paid up capital 40% 40% 40% 40%  Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.** ("Bejing HX")
(Note b)
REE (b7 REFHERAT BRAA DE BRER K&k
(HEREE)) (Hh)
Gold Wide Holdings Limited ("Gold Wide") ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares 25% 25% 25% 25%  Investment holding
LIEEBRAF (&34 ERAE &2 Lak ek
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

17 g ==
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. RESAT i (@)
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
establishment/ interests or participating Proportion of
Name of entity Form of entity operation Class of shares held shares held by the Group voting power held Principal activity
HREL/ L/ FEBFHERERELS
e BiEmA e FisRir 28R BHRHZIA PR TR IEEK
2021 2020 2021 2020
Z§--F CEC%F EC-F CBIEf
Indirect associates
Eﬂ%ﬁﬁ&l\
Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) Investment Co.,  Limited liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 22% 2% 22%  Investment holding
Ltd.** ("Bejing XN") (Note b)
aiR b5 REBRAT ERAH " BREL ek
(bRl (Hh)

Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market Real Estate ~ Limited liability PRC Paid up capital 2% 22% 2% 22%  Properties development
Co, Ltd. ** ("Fuyu”) (Note b)

B AR REERRAT BRAT e BRER nERE
(Tx8)) (izth)

* English name for identification only * W TR R

" Sino-foreign joint venture A hINES B

* Wholly domestic owned enterprise T 2ERNE DY

Notes: s

(@) FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the (a) FDC Limited B 0 A8 37 LUAR G f 2
carrying amount attributable to the Group is not o mMAEEESERETARAE A
significant.

(b) At disclosed in Note 31, as at 31 December 2021, (b) MMsE31FFIRE R - —&F
Konson Global Investments Limited (“Konson”), a +-A=+—H EfE }Ri;jzhﬁﬁ
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its BRAE ((BE AN TEENE
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Konson NE BEEENWBATGIE EEE
Group”) was expected to be sold within twelve ) EHERN+ _EARNHEE FAiLL
months, therefore, assets and liabilities of the Konson EEEENBSELRSEEERIER
Group including the interest in Beijing HX and its EERERBAT (TItREEE
subsidiaries (the “Beijing HX Group”) was reclassified )i B BEESEATE
as assets classified as held for sales. HEWBE-

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ = —FF3R



21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_HA=1t—HLFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REEATZ G (@)
Summarised financial information of material TEME NG ZHEEREE
associates
Summarised financial information in respect of each of REEBETEBMS NI 2 EEREE
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The FH N T Y o FX Tt B B &R ETS
summarised financial information below represents HEBTBRRSENRENHES AT
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements B R R FRFT~SXE ©
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
All of these associates are accounted for using REZE i EMBREz  FTAZZSHE N
the equity method in these consolidated financial B E AR 2S£ D BR o
statements.
2021* 2020
Beijing HX Group ITRESEE —B_ 8+ “TETHF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Current assets MBEE 329,019 337,000
Non-current assets JERENEE 57 107
Current liabilities mEas (259,145) (248,897)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (3,223) (19,182)
Net assets BEFE 66,708 69,028
2021* 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue g - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4 EE5IE K& 2 HE B S 4R EE
for the year (2,320) (48,920)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.
Summarised financial information of material

associates (continued)

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial

REEQRZEE (8)
TEHEQRNZMBERME (B

J:Y%ﬁu MBENBEZRARBE AT

information to the carrying amount of the interests in HIREE WERFERUT ¢
associates are set out below:
2021~ 2020
—B_—fr EBEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Net assets of the Beijing HX Group ITREEBEENEEFE 66,708 69,028
Non-controlling interests of Beijing IERESRBATN
HX's subsidiaries IR R R (32,844) (33,658)
33,864 35,370
Proportion of the Group's 40% REENRIEREEEE 240%
ownership interest in P #E R = LL
Beijing HX Group 13,546 14,148
Goodwill S 855 855
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBRILRESER Y
interest in Beijing HX Group HmREE 14,401 15,003
Less: Accumulated impairment B REIRE (855) (855)
Carrying amount of the Group's FEERIIREEER
interest in Beijing HX Group AR EE 13,546 14,148

* From 1 January 2021 to 30 December 2021 (date of *
reclassified as assets classified as held for sale)
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of material
associates (continued)

REEQRZ#E (8)

TEHEQRNZMBERME (@)

2021 2020

Gold Wide £3h “E—8 ZIZ=TH
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Current assets MENE E 15,572 16,619
Non-current assets EREEE 125,322 119,011

Current liabilities mEN8E (20,348) (18,479)
Net assets BEFE 120,546 117,151

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, included in the
current liabilities is the Loan B (as defined in Note
18) of RMB13,000,000, which is bearing an interest
rate of 8% per annum, secured by the investment
properties of the Group located in PRC with the fair
value of approximately RMB5,830,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,139,000) (2020: approximately
RMB5,090,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,067,000)) (Note 18) and financial guarantee
provided by the Group (Note 38), and repayable on 14
January 2022. Since Gold Wide has breached the loan
covenants, the Loan B became repayable on demand
and was therefore classified as current liabilities.

R_E-_—FRZIZEZZEF+AH
=+—H BB (ExRK:E18) AR
#13,000,0007c5t AMBIBE BER
8%t B > HAFEA AKRS,830,000
7T (FBE 497,139,000 7T) (ZE
TE Y ARKES,090,0007T FHE A
6,067,000 7t)) (Fi5E18) Z I+ E
NAEEKREMERAERIRE I
BER (M5E38) (FIE#IF > BAR =
T TFE—BTHEEERE -BREAEE

RE™MAFE > BB AHRERELE >

FItDERREER

2021 2020

—E—F CE-ZEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Revenue & - -
Profit and total comprehensive income <4 E ) &

for the year 2EIWN T AEEE 3,395 6,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of material
associates (continued)

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information of the carrying amount of the interests in
associates are set out below:

REEQRZEE (8)
TEHEQRNZMBERME (B

PR EBE AT 2 B IREEN R
BEMBEHNERNT :

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net assets of the Gold Wide BN EEFE 120,546 117,151
Proportion of the Group’s 25% NEBPEILAZ25%FT B 1#E

ownership interest in Gold Wide % EE ) 30,137 29,288

Goodwill e 2,619 2,619
Carrying amount of the Group'’s FEBREAZ EHREE

interest in Gold Wide 32,756 31,907

Less: Accumulated impairment B REHRE (2,619) (2,619)
Carrying amount of the Group's KEEREAZ #HREE

interest in Gold Wide 30,137 29,288

22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22,

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BRATEFARMEEmAIE
@m=IHA

2021 2020
— B —F C"TEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Unlisted investments: FLEMEE:
Equity securities & A8 5 7,261 7,871

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB5,930,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,261,000) (2020: RMB6,604,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,871,000)) represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by one private entity
incorporated in the PRC.
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BAFEHAHMDEUKZEHRE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) BT H &)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the unlisted B FRIBE_EF+_A
equity securities were pledged to Entity A (as =+ —H IELFRAEATDIRIBETE
defined in Note 18) as to secure a 3-year loan of BN (EEBMEE18) » EAR—FFAA
RMB4,550,000 (“Loan A") granted to a private NI (TBHADEF—FEAH=FEM A
company (“Lender A"). Loan A is bearing an interest K 184,550,000t ER (TEFA ) B9
rate at 8% per annum and repayable on 14 January R -ERANEFER8%  HENRZ
2022. The term of pledge is from the grant date EC_F—A+HEZ EFREEA
of Loan A to the date falling three years after the EoASHHEEEEREBE=-F2
repayment date. Lender A is an independent third HeBHFAEBIE=H ' BINARE
party and is also the lender of the interest-free IR E M E R AR 4,550,0007CH
unsecured other borrowing of RMB4,550,000 as B BB HIEE35() 0
detailed in Note 35(a).
The above investments are not held for trading, M BT IEASEmMEE ME2EAE
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes. HiER IR BT A c B E D IBIR e
The Directors have elected to designate these TEIETABATEIAEMEER
instruments at FVTOCI as they believe that recognised H O AARERAZLHRENATER
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair BHNEIN O AT AL
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with AEHENEEZSHENERI S
the Group's strategy of holding these investments for HEHREBNWEWRES o
long-term purposes and realising their performance
potential in the long run.
DEPOSITS PAID 23. Bfiiwms
2021 2020
—E-— TETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 1 January »—EB—H 86,152 59,768
Additions NE 26,804 25,150
Derecognition upon completion of 72 52 Bl S B R A LR T 5%
acquisition - (1,000)
Impairment loss recognised PRI sl 2 B E k518
in profit or loss (5,445) -
Exchange adjustment e 0 5A B 1,485 2,234
108,996 86,152
2021 2020
BT —EBTEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Deposits paid for: mNARIEZMERE
— acquisition of further equity — B —FEIN B A B ERINR
interest in a subsidiary (Note a) (Mzxa) 44,240 44,240
— acquisition of properties (Note b)  — UxBE¥2E (fstb) 64,756 41,912
108,996 86,152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

= A H
ARE

23.

(a)

Deposit paid for additional acquisition of
further equity interests in a subsidiary

On 17 July 2017, Skyline Top Limited ("Skyline
Top"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Yardley Wealth Management
Limited (“Yardley”), the non-controlling
shareholder of Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Yardley had
agreed to sell and Skyline Top had agreed to
purchase 50 ordinary shares in Delightful Hope,
representing 50% of the entire issued share
capital of Delightful Hope, at a consideration
of HK$55,000,000 (the “DHL Acquisition”).
Upon the completion of the DHL Acquisition,
Delightful Hope will be wholly-owned by
Skyline Top and will become an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December
2018, Skyline Top and Yardley entered a
supplementary agreement pursuant to which
the balance payment of the DHL Acquisition
will accrued interest at 8% per annum. As at
31 December 2018, a non-refundable deposit
of approximately HK$35,250,000 has been paid
to Yardley.

On 19 March 2019, Skyline Top and Yardley
entered into another supplemental agreement,
pursuant to which the deadline of the
completion of the DHL Acquisition has been
extended from 17 January 2019 to 31 March
2020 and Skyline Top shall pay interest to
Yardley at 8% per annum on the remaining
balance payment during the period from 18
January 2018 to the date of completion. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, a further
non-refundable deposit of HK$8,990,000 has
been paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

(a)

Deposit paid for additional acquisition

of further equity interests in a subsidiary
(continued)

Since Yardley has agreed and has no right
to share the result of Delightful Hope and
its subsidiary during the transitional period
(i.,e. from 1 January 2019 to the date
of completion), the Group assessed the
impairment loss on the deposit paid based on
the carrying amount of the 50% of net assets
of Delightful Hope as at 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of the 50% of net assets of Delightful Hope
as at 31 December 2018 was higher than
the carrying amount of the deposits paid, no
impairment loss of has been recognised for
both years.

On 31 March 2020, Skyline Top and Yardley
entered into another supplemental agreement,
pursuant to which the deadline of the
completion of the DHL Acquisition has been
further extended from 31 March 2020 to 30
September 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the DHL Acquisition is yet to be
completed.

The details of the DHL Acquisition were
disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 17 July 2017, 31 July 2017, 17
January 2018, 14 January 2019 and 31 March
2020, respectively.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE
23. Bff#EsE @)
(a) WMEIMNKEBE—FEBATNE
ZREFRTIEE (@)

BER&EMNREERRE (BZ
—NF—B—HEZHK EI,HH)
B2 B &EED (5% R A E K
NEINESE AEERERCZ
E-NE+_BA=+—BFW
BEEFESOXWERAETGE
TRENBERE - R_2—AN
FE+ZHA=+—H FHRN_-Z
—N\NE+_A=+—HBKNEBE
FES0%MIRAmES N BT
SHREE - R EMEEEE
FESRRERIE -

RIBZEBEF=RB=+—H"X
KT:—Jf—ilﬁﬁﬂaT_L%—TﬁﬁﬁTfm

IR AR EIET A
ﬁ¢5%55_7_7¢ H
FAB=+H-

KB —E+-A=+—8
REEREEDH AHKBE
B SRR

FHRBEE Y HBRERE
AR RHA-S—tE+t A
+tE B tEtA=+—
B ZE—N\F—BA+tH =
T-NF-A+MERZZ=
TE=A=+—B2Afh-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

23.

DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(i) Deposit paid by Chengwang
Investment Consulting (Shenzshen)

Co., Ltd. (“Chengwang Investment”)
for acquisition of a property located

in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December
2019, Chengwang Investment, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, had
agreed to purchase and a debtor of the
Group had agreed to sell a property
located in the PRC at a consideration of
RMB13,000,000. The consideration has
been fully paid during the year ended 31

December 2019.

Due to the prolonged completion of
the acquisition, the Directors conducted
a review of the fair value less cost
of disposal of the property as at 31
December 2021 and appointed an
independent professional valuer, Valtech,
to assist them to determine the fair
value of the property. Since the fair value
less cost of disposal of the property
exceeded the carrying amount of the
deposits paid, no impairment loss on the
deposit paid was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021,
legal title of the property has not
been transferred to the Group,
RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15,918,000)
(2020: RMB13,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK15,494,000)) has been
recognised as deposit paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

(i)

Deposit paid by China AF Finance
Limited (“CAFFL”) for acquisition of
properties located in the PRC

During the year ended 31 December
2020, CAFFL agreed to purchase and
three loan debtors of CAFFL has agreed
to transfer 133 properties located in
the PRC as to settled the loan and
interest receivables due from those
three loan debtors, which amounted
to approximately RMB15,455,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$17,388,000). As at the date of
settlement, the legal title of those
properties have not been transferred
to the Group and the fair value of
those properties was approximately
to RMB18,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,350,000). Thus, a
gain on settlement of loan and interest
receivables of RMB3,521,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,962,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.

Due to the prolonged completion of
the acquisition, the Directors conducted
a review of the fair value less cost of
disposal of the properties as at 31
December 2021 and appointed an
independent professional valuer, Valtech,
to assist them to determine the fair value
of the properties. Since the fair value
less cost of disposal of the properties
exceeded the carrying amount of the
deposits paid, no impairment loss on
the deposits paid was recognised for the
years ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, as those
properties are still under construction
and the legal title of those properties
have not yet been transferred to the
Group, the amount paid was classified
as deposit paid and the carrying amount
of deposit paid was approximately
RMB18,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$23,237,000)
(2020: RMB18,976,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$22,618,000).

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

23. Bfigs @)
(b) HRUEMEZGZRE (@)

(i)

HEEIEHMFEERAE
(T EEI5F1#1) Btk
BB E R E TS5 (T
By E
REBEE_ZE_ZTE+_4
—t+—HIEEE FEHE
EVEREEEE+TRRE
EVEN=Z2EREEA
B =EZEARPEN133
BEYE UEERKR =4
EREBANERRE
WHE  EREOABARE
15,455,0007T (BHE R A
17,388,000 7T) o R4t E
BH ZEWERNLTEE
HEAEETAER B
ZEYENNFEENA A
R 1£18,976,0007% (*E“‘
7 #3921,350,0005 7T) ©
ItE > BT 12 & ﬁi%J\EW
18,976,0007¢ (FHE R A
21,350,000787T) » B4%
5 20 R FE IR £ 8 Wk A
R #3,521,0007% (*EE-?H\
#93,962,000/7T) B 4S
%E%EEEUO

HRWEERERE &
ERZE—F+=A8
=+ —HEYMENATFE
CRHEME) #1777 &
TN ERTBUEEMGE
R R LR R EREE
MERNRNFEB BHRYE
BAFE (R E ) B
BENEENREE &)
BHE_Z_—®+_A4
=+ —HIEFELBRER
BT ERERE

R_E_-_—%F+_A1
S—B o aREEnE
MERERZHEZSE
MEWNLITERES RE
BYAER BENEES
BAENRESAS TR
SHEREELNAARE
18,976,0007T (FHE R A
23,237,0007T) (Z&—
=T AR #18,976,0007T
(BE 1 %922,618,000%
70)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE
DEPOSITS PAID (continued)

4 A
1 O =

23.

(b)

Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

(iii)

Deposit paid by Shenzhen Shengshi
Fugiang Technology Co., Ltd.*
(“Shengshi Fuqgiang”) for acquisition
of properties located in the PRC
During the year ended 31 December
2020, Shengshi Fugiang, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,
agreed to purchase and Fuyu has
agreed to transfer a property located
in the PRC as to settle the loan and
interest receivables due from Fuyu,
which amounted to approximately
RMB3,307,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,720,000). As at
the date of settlement, the legal title
of those properties have not been
transferred to the Group and the fair
value of the property was approximately
to RMB3,188,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,800,000). Thus,
a loss on settlement of loans to
associates of RMB119,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$133,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.

During the year ended 31 December
2021, Shengshi Fugiang agreed to
further purchase and Fuyu has agreed
to transfer 18 properties and 23 car
parking space located in the PRC as to
settled the loan and interest receivables
due from Fuyu, which amounted
to approximately RMB27,465,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$33,107,000). As at the date of
settlement, the legal title of those
properties have not been transferred
to the Group and the fair value of
the properties was approximately
to RMB22,237,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$26,804,000).
Thus, a loss on settlement of loans to
associates of RMB5,228,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,303,000) was
recognised upon the settlement.
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of properties
(continued)

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

Bff#E (@
(b) FWBEBMEXFZzEE (@)

(iii)  Deposit paid by Shenzhen Shengshi (i) FYEHEEEEERL
Fugiang Technology Co., Ltd.* 7(f§ﬁ;§'5§_/)2§lln‘(ﬁ§{_z
(“Shengshi Fuqiang”) for acquisition R ABER Y 2 B 3 (1 8912
of properties located in the PRC Z(#)

(continued)
Due to the prolonged completion of ARl ERE &
the acquisition, the Directors conducted ER_E2E-_—F+_8
a review of the fair value less cost to =+—HEENAFE
disposal of the properties as at 31 R ERAN) ETT E
December 2021 and appointed an BoMEHE/IFTEMGE
independent professional valuer, Valtech, B AR GBI & E
to assist them to determine the fair value TEYENAFFE RN
of the properties. Since the aggregated = _—F+_HA=+—
fair value less cost to disposal of the BY =M AFE GEH
properties as at 31 December 2021 ERAN) BBEBHONAAR
was approximately to RMB20,908,000 #20,908,0007t (1HE R
(equivalent to approximately #925,601,000%87T) * K
HK$25,601,000), an impairment loss BHE_E-_—+_H1
on deposits paid of RMB4,517,000 =t+—HLIEFERIEMN
(equivalent to approximately RENBEEEAAR
HK$5,445,000) was recognised for the #%4,517,0007c (FBEE R A
year ended 31 December 2021. 5,445,000 7T) ©
As those properties are still under EEE\ ZEMEDNBRENE
construction and the legal title of " EHZEYWENZE
the properties have not yet been EEMEAREETRE
transferred to the Group, the amount B> BB EABEN
paid was classified as deposit paid and %& BENZESWEER
the carrying amount of deposit paid B4%A ANEK1&20,908,000
was approximated to RMB20,908,000 7t (B E 425,601,000
(equivalent to approximately B CE-EF AR
HK$25,601,000) (2020: RMB3,188,000 #£3,188,0007t (FEE R A
(equivalent to approximately 3,800,0007&7T)) ©
HK$3,800,000)).
INVENTORIES =8
2021 2020
—e_—F _—TEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Raw materials and consumables R4 1 B E FE G 1,378 -
Work in progress TR 530 -
Finished goods Ly 808 69
2,716 69
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIR £ L EHRATE 225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. PFEURBEZh R H fthPE W Zh 1S
2021 2020
B _—EZ_TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables arise from contracts BESAIELENE ZERIE
with customers (Note a) (fFsa) 24,539 11,722
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBEEE (1,474) (401)
23,065 11,321
Prepayments to suppliers mEE TR RIE 1,676 9,899
Deposits b 1,680 685
Other receivables (Note b) Hihrew s (ffstb) 21,545 26,105
23,225 26,790
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBEEE (8,825) (651)
14,400 26,139
39,141 47,359
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MERENDTA
Current asset RENEE 39,141 34,900
Non-current asset EREEE - 12,459
39,141 47,359
226 China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

25. FEURARR R H U RIE (B)
MI5E

(@) AT TEE—A—-H ERAEN

from contracts with customers amounted to EXNB S EIZIEAS, 272,000
HK$5,272,000. ITo

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables UTE2ENREZHRZS B’J%%F’E

net of allowance for credit losses presented based on WHRIBIRE E R IB B ENRE

the invoice dates: LT

2021 2020

—E—%F ZEIEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0ZE30H 3,847 6,917

31 to 90 days 31E90H 15,429 4,028

Over 90 days #B3890H 3,789 376

23,065 11,321

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's
trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$20,275,000 (2020: HK$8,243,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period. As at
31 December 2021, HK$2,550,000 (2020: HK$Nil)
outstanding trade receivable has been past due
90 days or more and are not considered as default
by considering the ongoing business relationship,
repayment history and expected future settlement.

Other receivables mainly comprise the followings:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has loaned to two individuals
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB 10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,919,000). The loans are unsecured
and bear interest rate of 8% per annum with
a term of two years.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB10,753,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,816,000) and an aggregated
allowance for credit losses amounted to
RMB300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$358,000) has been made.

N2 —F+ZA=+—H %4
IREI{E4920,275,00058 7T (ZB2 -2
£F 1 8,243,000/ 7T) 2 EHThEt AL
EEZERERGH ZBBERR
SR R IE—F+A4
=+—H>2,550,000 T (ZBE_=
F BT REEEWERRE B
90K M £ BHE EEIFHE X
FBRGL R R TERR G E ) W
RAEN-

(b) HMEWRIEFEaAEUTSIE:

0) REBEE_Z-_ZH5+_-8
_+ BIEFER > AEH
ERmaEAREASE%E
7 A BR110,000,0007T (HHE
[24911,919,000587T) E

RoZEERBEER #
FE8%WNF XS HiR A
M o

6:7_7¢+ BA=4+—
REREEERL®
%IJ ERENAARE
10,753,000t (MERL
12,816,000787T) » WL EEH
EEFBEEEEBEARE
300,0007t (18 & HL #9358,000
BT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

= A
AR

25.

(b)

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB10,353,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,677,000) and an aggregated
allowance for credit losses amounted to
RMB2,259,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,766,000) has been made.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group has loaned to five individuals
with an aggregated principal amount of
RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,840,000). The loans are unsecured and
bear interest rates of 12% per annum with a
term of six months.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB4,948,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,898,000) and an aggregated allowance
for credit losses amounted to RMB246,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$293,000)
has been made.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated
outstanding principal and interest of
these loans amounted to approximately
RMB4,948,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,059,000) has been past due 90 days
or more at the reporting date. The Directors
consider the credit risks of the balances have
increased significantly and are considered
as credit-impaired, and accordingly full
impairment of the amount of approximately
RMB4,948,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,059,000) has been made.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 42(b).

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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25.

FE UK BR AR B L Ath FE WX TR IR (KB)
MiET @ (&

-

(b)

N B —F+ZA=+—
H O ZEERMEKEER
ERANBHEBNAE AR
10,353,0007C (FHE R
12,677,000% 70) ¥ E1F
HEEBEBEERBEAR
#£2,259,000c (FBE R L
2,766,000 7T) ©

(ii) HEZ_Z_ZF+ A
Zt+—HILEFE AEEE
BRZBALTEEASLEEE
A AR 4,900,000 E
M (FBZE R 495,840,000
70) c BB R EER %
FEFZE12%HE BRAN
(EPSRS

RIB2ZZ2F+"HA=+—
B ZEXEBEERLS
ERAERBBNAAR
4,948,000t (lBE ML
5,898,000 7t) » W E1EH
EEBEBEEBREARKE
246,0007t (18 E 7 49293,000
BIT) °

W_E - —F+B=+—
H ZERkEBEREERLS
EFBHEEBHONA AR
4,948,0007% (B E R &
6,059,000% 7T) R#®EH
HEAE0HR U L-EE
RAEGEHNEERRKR AR
ENEERAEERER
R BHERBEOAR
14,948,000 (FBE R L
6,059,000 7T) ©

A AR R R L A WA R TR R 1 ST
B SFIBEE S P MY EE42(b)



25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set as
below:

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE
FEE Lt Bl R e LAt FE WA SRR IR (48)
AEBRARAEEBRINEG B LS
1Y & 8 518 7Y 8 UK IR =R B H M & UK
TREHIWTE

2021 2020
—E - T THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts denominated in: SHESEE
RMB AR 8,462 225
United States Dollar (“USD") 7t (M%&) 13,650 8,124
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 26. EHKREKFES
2021 2020
-8 CZEZ=H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables [&E FIZR M) & =i & FEULF] 2
— Secured — B K 7,278 8,542
— Unsecured — S 1,377 1,866
8,655 10,408
Less: Allowance for credit losses o EEBEEE (6.720) (7,532)
1,935 2,876
Analysed as: AWM
Current asset (within one year) MBEE (—FN) 1,935 2,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

26.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)
As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's
loan and interest receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate gross amount of approximately
HK$6,163,000 (2020: HK$1,866,000) which has been
past due 90 days or more at the reporting date and
HK$Nil (2020: approximately HK$6,060,000) which
has not been past due was considered as credit-
impaired. Among those past due more than 90 days,
the Directors consider the credit risks of the overdue
balance of approximately HK$6,163,000 (2020:
HK$1,377,000) have increased significantly and are
considered as credit-impaired. As at 31 December
2020, the Directors are in the view that there have
been no significant increase in credit risk nor default of
the remaining HK$489,000 based on the repayment
history and creditworthiness of that debtor.

Details of impairment assessment of loan and interest
receivables are set out in Note 42(b).

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate loan receivables
to interest rate risks and their contractual maturity
dates are as follows:

26.

BMmEEWHE (@)
RIE-—F+"F=+—H>&ct4a
S EEA%46,163,00087C (T 4F :
1,866,000 70) BIFEWERNGT AR EE
B E MK W F) B 4585 ZEUBRFR Y
RE BB AR0H M £y B
HAMZ BT (CT - © 496,060,000
BT BRABEEERE -THEA
HIQO R L2 FIEHR  EERA > B
4585496,163,000B T (ZE -2 F !
1,377,000/ 7T) 2 EER B EEEIE
TWHWRABEERE R _E_F+_
B=+—8 > REZEBEANERGCHE
REE ZEERAEERRKRIT EEEY
AN B % 489,000 TN EHE X IB T ©

BRI WA SR ET G EERIIN
IEE42(b)°

FEEESBWERFEENFXRER
B R & KRR &SI T

2021 2020
B —F EEfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivables: TEEEWER
Within 1 year or repayable on —FANERERER
demand 1,935 2,876
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 26.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal
to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s loan
receivables are as follows:

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
BMKREWRFE (&)

KEIF‘H T}\E/]Eﬁﬁ%uz( ZREN

2021 2020
B _—E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT

Effective interest rate: BRI
Fixed-rate loan receivables B EMN K EW SR

The secured loan and interest receivables are secured
by the unlisted shares and properties of the borrowers.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the fair value of
collaterals held by the Group is minimal.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the unsecured
loan of approximately HK$466,000 was a loan to the
non-controlling interests of the Group. The amount is
secured by personal guarantee and subject to a fixed
interest rate of 7% per annum. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the loan and interests receivables
have been fully settled.

8% —36% 7% — 36%

BIEMERRBWA B HBIFLEHRD
REFNDERBER - RS _TF
R—_ZB-_—F+"RB=+—0 &%HE
FAENERRATEEM-

RoECBETTAST—BHAR
AT R 49466,000% 75 5 A B JE 12
Rt 2 AR e B B A RIS
o ERERIEAT% BE_F—

F+A=+—BLEE BRENR

SEEMEE-

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES 7. [EEE ATV S
2021 2020
—E - —ZT-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unsecured fixed-rate loans EIKFEENEER 4,820 38,056
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBEEE (994) (1,145)
3,826 36,911
Analysed for reporting purpose as: DERS AR !
Current asset RENEE 3,826 29,836
Non-current asset FERIEE - 7,075
3,826 36,911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 O =

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

27.

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES (continued) 27. HEBEATIEHET (B)
The gross carrying amount of unsecured fixed-rate mABEQABRFENEEREENEXE
loans to associates comprise: MHAREREE ST
Interest
rate Notes 2021 2020
flE N ZEZI—F CEIETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Beijing HX IREE
— Loan | —E (a)
— Principal of —FrE AR
RMB2,400,000 2,400,0007T 12% 2,939 2,861
— Interest —FE 1,881 1,487
4,820 4,348
Fuyu #HER
—Loan Il —B3 (b)
— Principal of —KE AR
RMB 18,000,000 18,000,0007¢ 18% - 21,454
— Interest = = 5,070
- 26,524
— Loan Il —Ez (0)
— Principal of —KEARE
RMB5,500,000 5,500,0007¢ 10% - 6,556
— Interest —F 2 - 628
- 7,184
4,820 38,056
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. LOANS TO ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(a

As at 31 December 2021, Union World International
Group Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, had loaned to
Beijing HX a principal amount of RMB2,400,000
(2020: RMB2,400,000) (“Loan 1”) and the accrued
interest is approximately RMB1,536,000 (2020:
RMB1,248,000). The amount was unsecured, interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 12% (2020: 12%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2019, Shengshi Fugiang
had loaned to Fuyu a principal amount of
RMB18,000,000 (“Loan II") and the accrued interest
is approximately RMB7,560,000. The amount was
unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 18%
per annum and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the accrued interest of Loan Il amounted to
approximately RMB3,307,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,720,000) have been settled by
the deposit paid for acquisition of a property located
in the PRC. Details of the deposit paid for acquisition
of the properties are disclosed in Note 23(b)(iii).
Shengshi Fugiang and Fuyu are negotiating the
settlement arrangement and have mutually agreed to
revise the loan as interest-free with effective from 1
January 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding
principal of Loan Il amounted to approximately
RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$21,454,000) and the accrued interest amounted
to approximately RMB4,253,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,070,000), During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the balance has been
settled by the deposit paid for acquisition of
properties located in the PRC. Details of the deposit
paid for acquisition of the properties are disclosed in
Note 23(b)(iii).

in e BT ER R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
27. MBEATEHER (&)
BdEE -

(a) A ZE_—F+ZA=1+—HB XK
NEEBEEEW B B AR ZE
BRERADBILREEFHNER
KA ARKE2,400,0007T (&
—Z&E 0 AR#2,400,00070) (TE
1) > FEETFI B4 A AR 11,536,000
T (ZEZEF D ARM1,248,000
JT) o EARIATh B EIRIR  REEF
FZEN2% (CEZFE12%) 518
BEEEXREE-

(b) A _E-NE+_A=+—H8 &
HERARKBEERLTSEAAR
#18,000,0007¢ (TEFIIL) » BFEST
FBL A ANRET7,560,0007T © %X
HYBEER REE18%HNEE
MK B WEREREIE

BETTZTZF+_A=+—HLE
FERN BRINESFENOBAR
#&3,307,0007t (HHE £ 433,720,000
B BEEEAWETEYENEN
BE - WENENEMZEFBER
BRI EE23(b)(iii) o B T = 58 Ko bk B
EEELHETHEECHEER
EREREIAERER BZF

“EFE—-A—HEEM-

A B _EF+A=+—8"
BERINAEERASENAARE
18,000,0007T (HHE 12 43921,454,000
B BEANELOAARE
4,253,0007T (tHE 245,070,000
T O NBEBRE_ S _—F+
B=1+—BLFE ZEEHRES
RUEE AN PE N EETIREE
HoBRMMWBMESLEESHNE
ST EE23(b) (iR BB ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AL

1 O =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE S —F+_RA=1+—HIEE
LOANS TO ASSOCIATES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

27.

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Shengshi Fugiang had also advanced an amount
of RMB5,500,000 to Fuyu (“Loan Ill"”), which is
unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 10%
per annum and repayable in 2023.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding
principal of Loan Il amounted to approximately
RMB5,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,556,000) and the accrued interest amounted
to approximately RMB527,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$628,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
outstanding principal and accrued interest of Loan
[l amounted to approximately RMB6,050,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,293,000) have
been settled by the deposit paid for acquisition of
properties located in the PRC. Details of the deposit
paid for acquisition of the properties are disclosed in
Note 23(b)(iii).

Details of impairment assessment of loans to
associates are set out in Note 42(b).

The Group’s loans to associates that are denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the

relevant group entities is set out below:

27.

m g E AT EHER (@)
MisE o ()

(@ REEZZZZEF+ZHE=+—H
EFEER BHERITEMKEGRTE
45— AR #5,500,0007cHFUE
&z » ZERTBEER &
BEFEI0%NEEMNEFE BN
T FER

RZEZEF+ZB=+—8"
BERNNAREERSBENAARE
5,500,0007t (18 E #*#%96,556,000
B BEFAMNBELOAARE
527,0007c (18 &1 4628,000587T) ©

HE T —F+ZHB=+—HILt
FEE > BRNPKREER S RESH
B4A AR ¥6,050,0007T (FBE R
#J7,293,00087T) » BEB T UEAL
RARBENYEBLRESET B
MU BMEC RS BRI T
23(b)(iiii 25 o

CIF: - PNESIR(E
I EE42(b)

ERZBEFLFE

DHERAEEERIFIEEESEZR
EERBEARFHZEMFHIAT

RMB
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVTPL")

28.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
BATES ARG ZERMEE

(MRAFEABEZEMEE])

2021 2020
T ZZTTETH
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Listed securities: HsEs
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, —#Z2/AF{EFERZ
at fair value REB LW ZRAFES 8,780 20,243
As at 31 December 2021, the listed equity n_Z2-_—f#+Z“HA=+—H"

investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair value of
approximately HK$5,922,000 (2020: HK$13,986,000)
have been pledged to financial institutions to secure
an other borrowing and the margin loans payables
granted to the Group. Details of other borrowing and
margin loans payables are set out in Notes 35(e) and
36 respectively.

For the valuation method of the financial asset at
FVTPL, please refer to Note 42(c).

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, bank
accounts of Shengshi Fugiang have been frozen by the
Shenzhen Qianhai Cooperation Zone People’s Court
(the “Court”) as a former lessee of Shengshi Fugiang
has filed a statement of claim for compensation
for their loss against Shengshi Fugiang. As at 31
December 2021, those bank accounts remained
frozen. Details of the litigation has been disclosed in
Note 32(c).

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank
balance is set out in Note 42(b).

29.

REBLTHLELTREAKRE (AF
E#5,922,0008 . (ZE =% !
13,986,000/ 7t) EEIF T —E SR
B UBS —EERIERFRLERER
ERENRECEN HMERKE
NRFBEEERNFIB DRI MW sE
35(e) K Fff5E36 ©

MEBBRAFESAERZEREE
WEET % B2 R EE42(0) -

ZIRHIERITAEER

HE_ S ZFE+_B=+—HLE
B Rt EaniRTiRE RIIAES
E& AR AR (BT RAET RN
HERNAAEABERYEERIZESR
INEREBERENEL - RTE-—
+ZA=+—8B > ZFRITERL DR
4o SFEREF IR IR B MY EE32(0) °

52 PR Y 88 17 45 &R BU R E AT sF 1B E S
FgsE42(b) o
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HEZ

30.

31.

Ch
An

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

year ended 31 December 2021
E_—HF+_A=1+—HLHEE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balance are
set out in Note 42(b).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts which are subject to foreign exchange
control regulations or not freely transferrable:

30.

IRITHERKRRE
IRITHEBRF R IRIES BIRTTIEHER

517 4 B 10 L (8 BT 4 B 0 L RO I 2
42(b)°

BURRIRSt AIRTTAS SR 3R AR 2
SNEERDERBARIRN AR B HEE !

2021 2020
R C"TTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Amounts denominated in: MFF G sHENRIE !
RMB NS 70 732

Under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 30 December 2021, Skyline Top Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement with an independent third
party (the “Purchaser”), whereby the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to purchase and Skyline Top
Limited has conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Konson at the consideration
of HK$8,000,000 (the “Disposal”). The assets
attributable to the Konson Group, which is expected
to be sold within twelve months, have been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

As at 31 December 2021, no consideration has been
received and the disposal has not been completed.

ina Eco-Farming Limited FEIB¥£EEEFIRAT
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DEAFEIHEENEE
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31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 31.

(continued)

The assets of the Konson Group which are classified as

held for sale are as follows:

DESFEIHLENEE (@)

REEEVERFKFRENEENT !

2021

—E-—F

HK$’000

FET

Interest in associates =N 13,546

Bank balances and cash IRITHGAIRE 1

Total assets classified as held for sale  DiEAFEHENBEE 13,547
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. ﬁg{qﬁﬁ%’ﬂ&ﬂ{mﬁg1ﬂ'%’xlﬁ

2021 2020

-5 CIETIITHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables (Note a) B2 ERIE (fsFa) 14,985 9,054

Other payables (Notes b and ¢) HMEFRIE (MiEtbkzc) 27,216 21,803

42,201 30,857

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

TERANRBEPRRELZZAHREZR

Z B EIRBEZRE D

#r

2021 2020

T CZETIZTHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T FET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 3,541 6,636
31 to 90 days 31Z290H 5,252 2,288
Over 90 days Q0HM L 6,192 130
14,985 9,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

= A
AR

32.

Notes:

(a

(0

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranged
from 0 to 90 days (2020: 0 to 90 days). The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

As at 31 December 2021, included in other payables
is a professional fee payable of HK$614,000 (2020:
HK$1,212,000), which bears a default interest rate of
2% per month.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a
former lessee of Shengshi Fugiang (the “Plaintiff”)
commenced civil proceedings against Shengshi
Fugiang and filed a statement to the Court to claim
for compensation for their loss of approximately
RMB1,704,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,031,000) as they cannot retrieve the furniture
and equipment from the premises leased to
them by Shengshi Fugiang in which the aforesaid
premises has been sold out during the year ended
31 December 2020. Shengshi Fugiang has made a
counter-claim against the Plaintiff for outstanding
rent and delay in deliver vacant possession at the
sum of approximately RMB980,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,168,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Plaintiff raise the claims to RMB1,964,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,405,000).
According to the written judgement of the Court
issued on 30 December 2021, Shengshi Fugiang
will be responsible to compensate the Plaintiff
for an amount of approximately RMB594,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$727,000) for
damages and valuation fee and the Plaintiff will be
responsible to compensate Shengshi Fugiang an
amount of approximately RMB596,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$730,000) for claims and legal
expense. The Plaintiff has made an appeal to the
Court on 26 February 2022 and Shengshi Fugiang is
currently seeking legal advice for the appeal.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group made
a provision of RMB1,964,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,405,000) (2020: RMB1,704,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,031,000) for the
Plaintiff's claim for compensation.
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FE A3 BRI B ELth FE 7R IE (4B)

MIsE

(a

BEERZEEHRNFOEIOH (=
T T I 0FEOR) cAEERED
FhE B EIE B U RAT A (Y
RN EERRNGE S

R_EZ—F+ZA=+—H"
SFAEMENREBEAENERE
&EMH614,0008 T (2222 .
1,212,00087T) » EAENOFNEXSA
2%°

BHE_Z-ZTHF+_"_HF=+—HI
FE BRttERN—EBA (R
H) BRI ERIRERSEF A WHE
ARIERT —HER EXREER
FRIBERLHARKE1,704,0007T (18
E12492,031,000587T) » AAMMIE
AR ERAETHRENYWER
BHREARRKRE Hh LyEER
HE_Z-ZF+-"HF=+—HL
EEEL BRUEREMARZGHE
ERIEBEXNTETEEEHRERESIRE
H R BZRLARK980,0007T (FHE
2491,168,0005 7T) ©

HE_Z_—F+/A=+—
BEFE REEREBRREARKE
1,964,0007t (18 & 2#492,405,0008
TT) o MBEERENR B —F+
B=+HEZHNERH R RIS
BEAENEMEBESEREEERR
ERHENARIES4,0007T FEER
#9727,00087T) cMESHKESH
RRREZEHEREREERAOA
F#596,0007t (1HE K2 4730,000
B  REBN_ZE__F#_A
“t+BEmER LR B ER
BRIEMBMLFSREEZER -

W_E-_—F+ZB=+—8"
AEBRRESERRNREIRE
HAR®1,964,00070 (FBERK
2,405,000787m) (ZE2ZZEF . AR
#%1,704,0007t (FHE 52 492,031,000
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

P& BRI B EL At FE (7RI ()

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 32.

The Group’s trade and other payables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional

AEEUEAEEERY

FEEEZ 5

Y & 1 SHE BY R Y BR AR B EL At P& {1 =K

currencies of the relevant group entities are set out IBEHWMT :
below:
2021 2020
T CIZTIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT
RMB NG 5,075 3,266
usD ETT 13,630 9,684
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33. AHEaR
2021 2020
—E—F —ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current: BRHA :
One-stop value chain services —ih B E B ARTS 947 1,141
Trading of consumables and HREMREERES (M)
agricultural products (Note) 1,557 105
2,504 1,246

As at 1 January 2020, the Group had no contract

liabilities.

AZECTE-RB—H AEETES

WafEe

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBZ4XEH/RAF
Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

239



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B BT AR R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 33. %A’ @&
The following table shows how much of the revenue TR TSN AFERDEASELSHNE
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward EERMNWNEERNBTEERRBITHNE
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance HEFEABRAME o
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.
Trading of
consumables
One-stop and
value chain  agricultural
services products
—ih3 HEMR
BEERT REMES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
For the year ended 31 December BEZ_ZT”-—F
2021 +-B=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was included BEMERst AE SN EE
in the contract liability balance at the 45 &RAIURZE
beginning of the year 1,141 105

Note: The significant increase in contract liabilities in
the current year was mainly due to approximately
HK$1,518,000 advances received from customers
were arose from Seal Eco Advance Limited, which
commenced the business of recycling used plastic
products during the year ended 31 December 2021.

et : AEEGNEBERNBIEMEETH
R e Seal Eco Advance LimitedE 4
FEUL 2 B 8 70491,518,00058 7T &
EE—F+"HA=+—HIE
fESeal Eco Advance LimitedBi 4B
BEEE LB B G5 o

34. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 34. FE(TIFEERRRRRERIE
INTERESTS
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and BRAFIENEIRIFE - R ERBRENRE
repayable on demand. iR o
35. BORROWINGS 35. f&®™
2021 2020
—E—F E°EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other borrowings, unsecured HnER EAL 25,140 24,418
Other borrowings, secured HinER - 5 15,900 16,900
Total borrowings KRR 41,040 41,318

All the borrowings are repayable within one year.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

BORROWINGS (continued) 35. &= (&)
Borrowings comprise: EREFE
Effective
Maturity date interest rate 2021 2020
) S BRHE —EBE-_—F _E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Fixed-rate borrowings:
EEME™M .
Interest-free unsecured other 31 December 2021 Interest-free 5,571 5,423
borrowing of RMB4,550,000
(Note a)
BEZEIEIHEMER _EF—F BE
AR 4,550,0007 (FifzEa) +-BA=+—8H
Interest-free unsecured other 31 December 2021 Interest-free 15,919 15,495
borrowing of RMB13,000,000
(Note b)
BEZEILIHEMER _EF—F BE
AR 113,000,0007T (HizEb) +-BA=+—8H
15% unsecured other borrowing of 28 December 2019 15% 2,500 3,500
HK$21,500,000 (Note ¢)
FIEZ15% 2 BIRHEMER “E-hEF
21,500,000% 7t (i &Ec) +ZBZ+N\H
12% secured other borrowing of 7 January 2022 12% 9,000 10,000
HK$10,000,000 (Note d) (2020: 27 April 2021)
FEH12% 2 BIRHREMER 2 "&F—F+tH
10,000,00078 7t (FffzEd) (CBEZHF .
BT —F
mA—++H)
18% secured other borrowing of 11 August 2020 18% 6,900 6,900
HK$6,900,000 (Note e)
FZEB18% 2 BRI EAMMER “EZFENA+TH
6,900,00078 7T (Hizte)
10% unsecured other borrowing of 26 December 2021 10% 400 -
HK$400,000 (Note f)
FZEB10% 2 BIE R EAMMER _E_—F
400,000%8 7T (I 5Ef) +ZRAZ+H
Interest-free unsecured other 8 February 2022 Interest-free 750 -
borrowing of HK$750,000
(Note g)
REZEIEBEMER “E-"E”ANH BB
750,000% 7t (M5Eg)
41,040 41,318
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE
BORROWINGS (continued)

4 AL

1 O =

35.

Notes:

(a

The unsecured other borrowing was obtained from
Lender A as defined in Note 22. According to the
loan agreement, the Group has to reimburse Lender
A for its costs of financing, which includes the
interest rate of 8% per annum borne by Lender
A. Those reimbursements have been recognised as
financial costs of the Group (Note 8).

On 21 February 2022, the Group and Lender A
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which the deadline for repayment and discharge
of the principal and the reimbursement have been
extended to 31 December 2023.

The unsecured other borrowing was obtained from
Gold Wide, an associate of the Group. According
to the loan agreement, the Group has to reimburse
Gold Wide for its costs of financing, which includes
the interest rate of 8% per annum borne by Gold
Wide (Note 21). Those reimbursements have been
recognised as financial costs of the Group (Note 8).

Pursuant to the deed of settlement dated 31
December 2019, the Group and Gold Wide
canvassed amongst themselves that, instead of the
Group repaying this borrowing to Gold Wide, the
Group shall repay to Entity A (as defined in Note 18).
Any sums paid and/or to be paid by the Group to
Gold Wide pursuant to this borrowing shall be paid
and discharged in accordance therewith.

On 21 February 2022, the Group and Gold Wide
entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which the deadline for repayment and discharge
of the principal and the reimbursement have been
extended to 31 December 2023.

On 25 January 2019, other payable of
HK$21,500,000 was novated to a financial institution
and reclassified to borrowings. The amount is
unsecured, carries interest at 15% per annum and
repayable in 10 installments from 28 March 2019
to 28 December 2019. Up to 31 December 2021,
HK$19,000,000 (2020: HK$18,000,000) has been
paid to settle the principal.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d) The secured other borrowing is obtained from a
financial institution in Hong Kong and is secured by
an investment property of the Group located in Hong
Kong with fair value of approximately HK$9,730,000
(2020: HK$12,300,000) as disclosed in Note 18.

(e) The secured other borrowing is obtained from a
financial institution in Hong Kong and is secured
by equity securities listed in Hong Kong with fair
value of approximately HK$2,752,000 (2020:
HK$10,353,000) as disclosed in Note 28.

) The unsecured other borrowing is obtained from
Darkstone Investment Group Limited. Mr. So David
Tat Man is the common director of the Company and
Darkstone Investment Group Limited.

(9) The unsecured other borrowing is obtained from Nice
Wealth Limited, a minority shareholder of the Group.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

35. B (@@

MisE - ()

(d) AN EE18F N 0 sz A IR IR H At
BRI EBCRIEERS B
REBURETENLEMEIFILR
> HAF{EL 9,730,000 7T (&
=TT F]EF 112,300,000 7T) ©

(e) AN EE28FR I B 0 sz A IR IR HAt
BRI EBCRIEERS B
REBAURES ETNRAESME
B EAF(ELNA2,752,0008 7T
(ZZ =4 10,353,000 7T) ©

(f) Z IR R E M E TS5 BDarkstone
Investment Group Limited%#15 o &
FE S KeDarkstone Investment
Group LimitedA A AT L iEES o

(90 ZERBEMERDEERBELDH
REBHABRARER -

AEBDEBEEERNESE ZI
WERHEREREIIWT

2021 2020
B —F _ZT_ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

RMB AR 21,490 20,918

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has

RESHR AEBFARNARERES

the following undrawn credit facilities: EEWE
2021 2020
T ZTEZHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Fixed rate EhlES

— expiring within one year —R—FEANEIH 75,000 -
— expiring beyond one year ——F D EEH - 75,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AR

1 O =

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

36. MARGIN LOANS PAYABLES 36. I REEEM
As at 31 December 2021, the margin loans payables WMt 28Rk E N —_E - —F+_H
were secured by the listed equity securities placed in _—|— B EMEEBEEEFEREIN
financial institutions under the margin accounts as SR IENRESERMN EFIRAE
disclosed in Note 28, with fair value of approximately %?H[ﬂq& s NIEAEHY 5,922,000 5T ©
HK$5,922,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the margin loans payables N_ETEFEF_B=+—H EMER
were secured by the listed equity securities placed in B EFERERME28IREN SR
financial institutions under the margin accounts as 1;3%7%5’\]1%.53@%)5B’\]J;Fﬁﬁyzlxﬁ%{’ﬁ
disclosed in Note 28, with fair value of approximately LR AN T{EA13,986,0005 7 ©
HK$13,986,000.
The margin loans payables were repayable on demand HRENMNGRESEI LS ERE
as they were subject to margin call from the financial HRBSER  WEHEBEHEXREEZ B
institutions and interest rates at 10% per annum FHEE10% (CE_EBF . XS
(2020: 10% to 10.25% per annum). 10%%E10.25%) °
37.  LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HE&E
2021 2020
R C"TTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEEEE
Within one year —FRN 506 517
Within a period of more than one —FEMFHRER
year but not more than two years - 506
506 1,023
Less: Amount due for settlement with 38 : FARENEEE YR
12 months shown under current P4 Z1EA N EIERE
liabilities Z A (506) (517)
Amount due for settlement after E/‘\iEmL@JE\TEIE—F@J/T\
12 months shown under R+ZERBEMREE
non-current liabilities FIE — 506

The weighted average borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 10.87% to 12.53% (2020:

10.87% to 12.53%).
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group issued
financial guarantee to Entity A (as defined in Note
18) as to secure the Loan B granted to Gold Wide,
an associate of the Group. The term of the financial
guarantee contract is from the grant date of Loan
B to the date falling three years after the due date
(Note 21). Gold Wide is the lender of the interest-
free unsecured other borrowing of RMB13,000,000 as
detailed in Note 35(b).

If the guarantees were called upon in entirety, the
aggregate amounts that could be required to be paid
amounted to the principal amount of RMB13,000,000
plus the accrued interest. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the financial guarantee have not been
utilised by Gold Wide.

As at 31 December 2021, expected credit loss
of approximately RMB9,883,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,102,000) (2020: RMB8,647,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,306,000)) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Details of the loss allowance for
financial guarantee contract are set out in Note 42(b).

38.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

39.

DEFERRED TAXATION 39. IRIEFRIE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities L,(‘F:%$$E HAR R B R &S HARS =
recognised and movements thereon during the current SR L%Rlﬁgﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% :
and prior reporting periods:

Fair value
changes of
investment

properties
KREYERN
REEEF

HK$'000
FHB7T
At 1 January 2020 R_Z-ZFE—H—H 15,212
Credited to consolidated statement FEGEERK
of profit or loss and other Hha2mlmKxiEe
comprehensive income for the year (14,434)
Exchange differences arising from the B#EEREERNIERZEE
balances 156
At 31 December 2020 N_E_ZTF+_A=+—H 934
Debited to consolidated statement SIAFEEGREERK
of profit or loss and other Hh2mElm=R
comprehensive income for the year 423
Exchange differences arising from the B#EREERERZER
balances 33
At 31 December 2021 A _E_—H+”"A=+—H 1,390

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$229,160,000
(2020: HK$176,389,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses (2020: Nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$9,196,000 (2020: HK$8,762,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. HngS
Nominal
value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE BEAE &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT TET
Authorised ordinary shares: EEEBK
At 1 January 2020, 31 December RZEZEF—-F—H-
2020 and 1 January 2021 —$_$¢+ B=+—H
R_Z_—F—-A—H 0.01  18,260,869,570 182,609
Share consolidation (Note b (i)) B a6 (HEb () NATER  (16,434,782,613) -
Share sub-division (Note b (iif)) B4R (B =2h (i) NATER  16,434,782,613 -
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_-%+”A=+—H 0.01 18,260,869,570 182,609
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:  BETREHELER .
At 1 January 2020, 31 December RZE_Z&-F—H-
2020 and 1 January 2021 _E_ZE-I- B=+—-H
hR_Z_—-F—-HA—H 0.01 932,552,430 9,325
Placing of new shares (Note a) Fo &R (Mista) 0.01 127,000,000 1,270
Share consolidation (Note b (1)) BAn &0 (PHEED () N/A T8 (953,597,187) -
Capital reduction (Note b (i) HE (5D (i) N/A T8 - (9,535)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—-+”A=+—H 0.01 105,955,243 1,060
Authorised convertible preference FEABRELE
shares:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December R_E_TF—-F—A:
2020 and 31 December 2021 “_ZTEF+”°A=+—H
RZEZ-F
+-B=+—H 0.1 173,913,043 17,391
Issued and fully paid convertible BETREHEN
preference shares: ABRELR
At 1 January 2020, 31 December G_E_ZE A—a»
2020 and 31 December 2021 B -’DF-I- B=+—H
RZEZ-F
+ZA=+—-H 0.1 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

= A
AR

40.

Notes:

(@

On 2 September 2021, the Company and Cheong
Lee Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to allot and issue and
has appointed the Placing Agent to procure, on a
best effort basis, subscribe for placing shares up to
186,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
placing price of HK$0.034 per placing share (the
"Placing”).

The completion of the Placing took place on 28
September 2021 and 127,000,000 placing shares
have been allotted. The gross proceeds from the
Placing were approximately HK$4,318,000. The net
proceeds after deducting the placing commission
and other related expenses were approximately
HK$4,073,000. Further details of the Placing are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 2
September 2021 and 28 September 2021.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special
general meeting held on 20 October 2021, the
Company proceed with the capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving, among
others, the following:

(i) share consolidation whereby every ten shares
of the Company's issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.01 per share have
been consolidated into one share with par
value of HK$0.1 (the “Consolidation Share”).
The Consolidated Shares rank pari passu in all
respects with each other;

(ii) capital reduction whereby the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced
by cancelling the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each of the then issued Consolidated
Shares such that the par value of each
issued Consolidated Share will be reduced
from HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 (the "Capital
Reduction”);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(continued)

(iii) share sub-division whereby each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares
will be divided into ten adjusted shares of
HK$0.01 each;

(iv) share premium reduction whereby the entire
amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account will be reduced to nil;

(v) transfer of all the credits arising from the
capital reduction and the share premium
reduction to the contributed surplus account
of the Company; and

(vi) the credit arising from the capital reduction
and the share premium reduction be applied
to set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Further details of the Capital Reorganisation are set
out in the Company’s Circular dated 16 September
2021.

Implementation of the Capital Reorganisation will
not, of itself, alter the underlying assets, business
operations, management or financial position of
the Company or the proportionate interests of the
shareholders, except for the payment of the related
expenses.

On 20 October 2021, all the conditions precedent
of the implementation of the Capital Reorganisation
had been fulfilled and the Capital Reorganisation had
become effective on 22 October 2021.

All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.

in e MRS ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE
40. RR7s ()
MisE @ ()

(b) (“\E)

(i) ROTHE BRI SERE R
TaMROBFESTRE
0.0 8 RSB EE B 1D

(v,  ROBEERLD EILRO S
BERP AR 2B 2 287 R

=z -
:I:gﬁ

v) BB & e B 19 i R D T A
R BRIREHA QB ER
SRR &

(Vi) BRASHIR R B 1 i B AU R A
EZERBANKEAQT
ZREtEEE

BREAREHENBLHBENER
BAHBAEZ _—FhB+/"HY
P

ENEAEEEATBIEREERR
EIEREE  EHBEE BB
AR S A SR A A EE ) - 1 2R S 9 48
BRI

W_E_—F+HB_+H BHE
AEHABMELRREHEHEEEN
BEAXASHEWN _E_-_—EF+A4
—+ZBERM-

PREMKREMAETEHEAMEETR
PEBMEEMAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 O =

For the
HEZ

41.

42,

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

year ended 31 December 2021
E_—HF+_A=1+—HLHEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
interests, borrowings, margin loans payables and
lease liabilities as disclosed in Notes 34, 35, 36 and
37 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) Categories of financial instruments

41.

42,

BAREEERE
AEFREEHEEATSRFRAERE
BRASELE TAREHRERZ
BE BREBERERACF - AEEZ
BIRRE R FAELNET &

REBZERRED N HER FRE (B
ERBENIFERKRRERIRIE G
T ENREBEETURBESED R
MY EE34~ 35368 37FT 1 B ~ W AR 40
BRIRERIBESEURKATES A
FE(EHE D BIEERITTRARHEE

EETHRSEERRB - BB
HRh—HDRESEEESHET KA
BEESHEBAZ AR -REBEEFZ
HEER ~EERZBEITMREST
RAEER > JBRIIRAGEH M HE
BREARRB

TMITA
() E=WMIRZIEHEH

2021 2020
B —F EEfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Amortised cost A 46,781 80,208
Financial assets mandatorily RERAFEFABRITEZ
measured at FVTPL TRIEE
— held-for-trading —FEEE 8,780 20,243
Equity instruments at FVTOCl R AFEst AHMEERE 2
= 7,261 7,871
Financial liabilities ERBaE
Amortised cost 3 A AN 93,482 82,457
Financial guarantee contract TEIEREN 12,102 10,306
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instruments at FVTOCI, loans to
associates, trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL, restricted bank balance, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, borrowings,
margin loans payables, lease liabilities and
financial guarantee contract. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Directors manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
42. E£RTI A (&)
(b) Z=REMEEBERBE

AEENTESNRTHEER
AFESFAEMEE WD Z#E
m TR -mBEREF
FEUGERRU BRI~ &
R FEWH) B AT E A8
WERMEE ZRFIRITEER
RITHEER IR S BAIRRARE
N RIE B IFEERRR
BmMIE B BN RERE
PHEEERMBERSH
ERERITAENFFERENE
R -REzFEm T ARRZ
THRERSETERR (BEA
s R R E R E B ERR)
EERRARBESERE - AR
g0 Rl R B % F R e 2 LR E
TR -EFHZUFRBETER
B4 UM AR K By B U B i
BE i8N

o
B

f

/

G E R

() EBEEE
rEBEETHBATRN
PEKReEBEE M&F
PR e & 78 B LAY a8
NEZNEEBDRB/A
RERMEE ARER
FEEERRMAREMER -
PATT » AR TP P st (S BE
BEIRIRAG ) K (KR E 8
RUAEEERE)  &&E
E P BB REEIINE
FHZRITRARBRIA
B H A E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group have foreign currency bank
balances, loan and interest receivables,
loan to associates and borrowings which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary

42. EFIT A (48)
(b) SREKRSEEERBE @)

55 B (4)
()  EEEEE)

A 45 1 £ A1 30 4R SN M
B AT AEAER
BeEmiEAR LS
REBEHEZESHEA
SMIE LR o

AEBBIRITINELEER
B FE R B [ B
NEMFHBER KR ER
LCHREBMAZINER KR

AEBLOMNEREUNE
BEBEREEEERRN

assets and monetary liabilities at the end REHA R ZEE@mMMEWNT
of the reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
afE BE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E_—& “TTFTF B “T°ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FTHT TR
RMB ANE 26,565 24,184 12,288 4,427
usb ES 13,630 9,684 13,707 8,218
Australian dollar 87 (1R 7%))
("AUD") - - 20 340
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB, FEEFEEBARE

USD and AUD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(1)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) change
in HK$ against the respective foreign
currencies. 5% (2020: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2020:
5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates
a decrease in post-tax loss where
HK$ weaken against the respective
foreign currencies. For a 5% (2020:
5%) strengthening of HK$ against the
relevant currency, there would be an

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
ERTA (&)
(b) E=REMREEBFRKEE @&

5B fE ()

)  EEREE)
BRLE DT
TREFFIAEBHBTR
E B8 9 1Y B R EH5 %
(ZEZZHF 1 5%) I
RMEZ5% (ZE_-F
F15%) FEAERR
BN ETEEIEABERIN
R FRE AR EEE
TRREEBHINEEEX

o RE D MEEIEU
SMESHEZ BRI B
BB > W RS R AR R
SMNEEPE X EEN5% (ZFZ
TFE I 5%) FERFHE
TXEHHEFREETR
BRAMNESHER REES
BRI R o 8B TR A
REEHEERAE% (T
T_TE5%) BEgH
PRI B B 1B B AL E 5 KA
RESFZ > TN H SRR

equal and opposite impact on the post- EEHo

tax loss and the balances below would

be negative.
RMB impact USD impact AUD impact
AEBRE E-% BTHE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

g "Z°%F IEI-F “"Z°FTF IEI-H "Z°FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Decrease (increase)  FRiR& A58
in post-tax loss A (1) (596) (825) 3 61) 1 14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

= A H
ARE

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate other receivables, loan and
interest receivables, loans to associates,
borrowings, margin loan payables and
lease liabilities, as set out in Notes 25,
26, 27, 35, 36 and 37 respectively.
The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate restricted bank balance
and bank balances as detailed in Notes
29 and 30. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management
considers that the exposure of cash
flows interest rate risk arising from
variable rate balances is insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL and
FVTOCI. For equity securities measured
at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining the
investments with appropriate level.
In addition, the Group also invested
in certain unquoted equity securities
of which the investee is operating in
tourism industry sector for long-term
strategic purposes which has been
designated at FVTOCI. The Group
has monitored the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Other price risk(continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the reporting date.
Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in Note 42(c).

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10% (2020:
10%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$733,000 (2020:
HK$1,690,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held for trading
investments.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loan and interest receivables, loans
to associates, restricted bank balance, bank
balances and financial guarantee contract. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets and financial
guarantee contract, except that the credit risks
associated with loans and interest receivables
is mitigated because they are secured over
properties/securities.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
42. E£RTI A (&)
(b) E=REMREEBFRKEE @&

55 BBz ()
(i) AthEREE (&)
BRE D

BREDTEREKS BB
RAEBEREREE AT
BEFfERAS = RAVER
BRAEBFERKED N
REEIMIEEA2(c)°

WA iTHEEAER TR
B LR TFEE10% (Z
T_THFE10%) AR
FIEEBEREZATE
B2 WMAFERR
BEEB R LA
733,000t (ZE=F
£ 1 1,690,000587T) ©

15 B /m e R B E AT
FEERREAEERXZHFS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Hong Kong,
which accounted for 100% (2020: 99%) of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 23% (2020: 22%) and 90% (2020: 95%)
of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers respectively, all within trading of
consumables and agricultural products and
trading of grocery food products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers (continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances collectively based on provision
matrix. Trade receivables are grouped under
a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed
default rates adjusted by forward looking
estimates. Impairment loss, net of reversal,
of approximately HK$1,073,000 (2020:
HK$259,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Directors
make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Except
for amounts that the Directors believe there
are significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on lifetime ECL, the Directors believe
that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of other receivables since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. Impairment loss, net of reversal,
of approximately HK$8,030,000 (2020:
HK$640,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE
42. E£RTI A (&)
(b) E=REMREEBFRKEE @&

15 B /B2 R B B T (A7)

B SHELRE S BN

(&)

o REBERIETEHAE E R B
EAMERERAEREESD
P 1T EE BR R (B 5T 1t o B 5 FE UK
MEBERNSEEEERREER
BESRINENXZEBED
PEETT DA WA EH AT BE 1 {E
5o FARESIRERE (05RE
[@) 491,073,000t (ZE =&
£ 1 259,000/ 7T) c 2M1CIME
BEHRAWE T

R A EKE
mEEREMERRIEMS &
FEENBFEER T BELSR
REBNEEEENEEHER
MREZHFINREEER &
% & R HEMEWRIEETTE
& B 57 o PREE B A T VIIAHE
UK E R S ARG AN K A&
EEE2PATEREERBIR
BENEREN EFREHEME
WHIBEERE B BRI
el A HRIE N MAEB SR
B12ERBHEERETREA
BoRERN BRBERE (0%
#[3]) 498,030,000 T (ZE =
ZLF 640,000 7T) e BRIE1E
WEZHBHNAME T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loan and interest receivables

The Group’s management manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of their
new and existing borrowers before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. The
management assesses the collateral and credit
quality of each borrower based on borrower’s
background information, financial position, past
experience and relevant factors. The Group also
reviews from time to time the financial position
of the borrowers.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss
rates of loan and interest receivables based on
historical credit loss experience of the debtors
as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the borrowers to the loan and
interest receivables. Reversal of impairment
loss, net of impairment loss, of approximately
HK$812,000 (2020: impairment loss, net of
reversal, of approximately HK$543,000) was
recognised during the year. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
55% (2020: 58%) of the total loan and interest
receivables as at 31 December 2021 was due
from the Group's largest borrower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loans to associates

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates. The Group's
credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the value of the assets held by these
entities and the power to participate in the
relevant activities of these entities. Except for
loans to associates that the Directors believe
there are significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on
lifetime ECL, the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. Impairment loss, net of
reversal, of approximately HK$848,000 (2020:
HK$386,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set
out below in this note.

Restricted bank balance and bank balances
Credit risk on restricted bank balance and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The
Group assessed 12m ECL for restricted bank
balance and bank balances by reference to
information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external rating
agencies. The 12m ECL on restricted bank
balance and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance
was recognised.

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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KEFETHIRIF12E S TEHEE
BEFIRBE NFEAERY
848,000 IR E A 18 (0%
Bo) (ZE -4 : 386,000
7o) e B1CIRE 2 s IBEE N A
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A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Financial quarantee contract

For financial guarantee contract, the maximum
amount that the Group has guaranteed under
the guarantee contract was the principal
amount of RMB13,000,000 plus the accrued
interest. At the end of the reporting period,
the Directors have performed impairment
assessment, and concluded that there has
been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of the financial guarantee
contract. Accordingly, the loss allowance for
financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired). Impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,490,000 (2020:
HK$8,953,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the financial guarantee contract and
quantitative disclosures are set out in Note 38
and this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_HA=1t—HLFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

42. EFTH (@)

(b) =RMEMREEBZRRBE &)

15 B /B2 R B B T (A7)

AEBE R EIE SRR ST ARET
BEE TN :

rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
R E SR HEA FEER R HthEMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
AR REHFNENRRREALEXMAREE SHBEREERE 1ERRBEERAE
—EEERAER
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
settle in full credit-impaired
BERE EHEANCEAREN EREETHEN HBEREERE NERRMEERA
—EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
RER AEELIREMRENERBETEERREY 2HEHEEEE 2PRBEESEAE
¥ DB —EEERE —EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired impaired
B8 BRBEBTEECHREEAE LHBEREERE 2BRBEERSE
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written-off ~ Amount is written-off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
/6 FRBETNEFABAREMERERAEALS  SHEMB SEOMH

BRI EMER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_RA=1t—HLFE

42,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. EFITH (@)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) =RIEMBSEEEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERE R R EE (48)
(continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures TRFENAEEEETEBE
of the Group's financial assets and financial EEBIMZEHEERYF
guarantee contract, which are subject to ECL ERENZEERR-
assessment.
2021 2020
External Internal 12m or Gross carrying Gross carrying
Note ~Credit rating Credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
. s . ToEAN2H “EC-F “ECEF
s SMBEEIFR  ANEETR  BRREEESR IREA(E SREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TExT FTErR TEx  TExR
Financial assets at
amortised costs
B A SBR K
SRMEE
Restricted bank 29  Baa3 N/A 12m ECL 705 10
balance
RIREIRITE R 29 Baa3 AEA RERBREERE
Bank balances 30 Aa2-Baa3 N/A 12m ECL 2,811 2,928
HRITHER 30 Aa2-Baa3 AiEH EREHEERSE
Trade receivables 25  NA (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (Provision 24,539 11,722
matrix)
B S RWHIE 25 AEA (Hiz2) 2HEREERE
(BtE1Em)
Deposits and other 25 NA Low risk 12m ECL 4,489 26,790
receivables
ReRHEMERZIE 25 TEA BER 2MERBAEERE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit- 12,677 - - -
impaired)
) 2EHREERE
(BEEHE)
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit- 6,059 23,225 - 26,790
impaired)
i %H)ﬁﬁﬁm S8
(E&HE)
Loan and interest 26 NA Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit- 2,492 2,971
receivables impaired)
EXREWF S 26 FEA R %E(ﬂf?ﬂi ;;{E*i?a
Loss Lifetime EC/L credit- 6,163 8,655 7,437 10,408
impaired
B %HH?EHJM gEE
—EERE
Loans to associates 27 NIA Watch list 12m ECL - 7,184
RHEARELHER 27 FEA Bres 12MEREHEERSE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit- 4,820 4,820 30,872 38,056
impaired)
25 2HRBEAEE
(BEEHE)
Other item
HitEE
Financial guarantee 38 NA Loss Lifetime ECL (credit- 19,672 17,909
contracts (Note 1) |mpa|red)
IBEREN 38 TEA B 2ENEERE
(FizE1) (E&5E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes:

1) For financial guarantee contract, the gross
carrying amount represents the maximum
amount the Group has guaranteed under the
guarantee contract.

2) For trade receivables, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL on
these items on a collective basis by using a
provision matrix, grouped based on past due
status.

in e MRS ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE
42. TRMIA (@
(b) =RMEMREEBZRRBE &)

EERER BTG (B)
MI5E -

1 MY HBERGAMES > B
HEEFAERRERGAT
BRI RS-

2) MEBZEWRIEMS &~ &
BMERAEBMBREER
BIFZBEH EFEERH
R EERIECBIEERE -
FERZEREEEHER
EEEEZFEEZABRE
BBE REAMKRET

PaN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

2)

(continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk
management, the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers in
relation to its businesses of one-stop value
chain services, trading of consumables and
agricultural products, trading of grocery food
products and provision of financial services
operation. Their customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms.
The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

HE_Z_—F+_B=+—HIt

42. EFTH (@)

FE

(b) EREAMREZEERRBER (&

15 B /B2 R B B T (A7)

MiEE © (48)

2) (continued) 2) (48)
Gross carrying amount IR 4 (A
2021 2020
—¥_—F —2T2F
Estimated Trade Estimated Trade
loss rate  receivables loss rate receivables
fhst Bo K {5t BSEK
F5EE FRIE BEx HIB
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET
Trading of consumables and HERKEERE R
agricultural product
Current to 30 days past due BRIE@H30H 1.71% 12,418 3.22% 5,973
31 to 90 days past due BH31HE90H 9.33% 4,498 8.97% 23
Over 90 days past due BB £ 23.15% 3,306 16.77% 2
Trading of grocery food BHERES
products
Current to 30 days past due BRIE@H30H 1.71% 4,299 3.22% 5,349
31 to 90 days past due BHA31HE90H 9.33% 6 8.97% 375
Over 90 days past due FEHA90R M £ 23.15% 12 - -
24,539 11,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= =
i B BT AR R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

policies (continued)

42. EFITH (@)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

2) (continued)

TRAREEERREBUR (&)

15 B E B2 R B B 5T (A7)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates (2020:
industry credit benchmarking studies on the
industry-wide probability of default term
structure) over the expected life with forward
looking adjustment that is available without
undue cost or effort and empirical study on
loss given default rate.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
provided approximately HK$ 1,474,000 (2020:
HK$401,000) impairment allowance for trade
receivables based on the provision matrix.

The following table shows the reconciliation

e EBEENES T ERE
HEHRBRTEEBBRZMA
HENEN AT AR ESEBLAX
(ZE2Z2F  27FEN
HRMENTEEEREN
%) (FHATREILEREE) RE
HEERENEEMRE -

B —F+°"HR=+—
B A&EBERERELR
MEZBEBHREBELD
1,474,000 70 (CT2Z24F
401,000/ 7T) BV BB o

TR E B U IBRER

of loss allowance that has been recognised for R ENE
trade receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
2 HATEHR
E8EHE
(RIEEAME)
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2020 NZZEZEF—HF—H 142
Changes due to financial instruments RN_ZE_ZTF—H—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: mREmM T AmE IR
— Impairment losses reversed — B EIREEE (142)
New financial assets originated BRENHEMEE 401
As at 31 December 2020 A TETEF+"HA=+—H 401
Changes due to financial instruments RW_Z2_—F—HF—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: BWREMTAEMEBIRES :
— Impairment losses reversed — B EIREESE (401)
New financial assets originated BRENHEMEE 1,474
As at 31 December 2021 WZE&E-_—%+”"RA=+—H 1,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

42,
(b)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and

42.
(b)

£FT A (8)
REAMEEREZEREE (B

15 B /B2 R B B T (A7)

(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for deposits and e R HahrE U S I8 0 s 18 B
other receivables are mainly due to: EEE T ERR
2021 2020
g TZTTETHF
(Decrease) (Decrease)
increase in increase in
lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired)
2 HATEHA 2 HATEHA
EEEE E8EE
GRb) sgon Csisl) 18
(BEERAEBE EEERDB
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Settlement in full of trade Y EEE ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ 1,722,000
debtors with a gross carrying BT (TEITZE4 15,414,000
amount of HK$11,722,000 #7t) NE ZER™M
(2020: HK$5,414,000) (401) (142)
New trade receivables with 4 HEETE/"%’;Z4,539,OOO‘}%T_D
gross carrying amount of —ET"FHF 111,722,000
HK$24,539,000 (2020: FTT) HYRTFEULBR R
HK$11,722,000) 1,474 401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

17 g ==
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

268

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERITH (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) =ZREAMESEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERER B EFE (&)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of T A B R EME
loss allowances that has been recognised for IR IEFE SRR R E B BE
deposits and other receivables:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit-  ECL (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
£ L ES L
12{8 A TaHA FEBR 5=
CEBE (BEEAE (EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FTET TET
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-Z£—-HA—H 11 111 - 122
Changes due to financial F_v_gﬁ A—H
instruments recognised RERTAMER
as at 1 January 2020: 23 .
~ Impairment losses —EEHESE
reversed (11) - - (11)
- Write-offs — s - (111) - (111)
New financial assets BRENTEHEE
originated 651 - - 651
As at 31 December 2020  RZZE_ZEF+_H
=+—H 651 - - 651
Changes due to financial ~ RZZEZ—F—F—H
instruments recognised RERTAMER
as at 1 January 2021: 23 .
- Transfer to lifetime ECL. ~ — BRE2HBHEE
(not credit-impaired) B8 EEERGB) (358) 358 - -
- Transfer to lifetime ECL ~ — BRE2HBHEE
(credit-impaired) B (EERGE) (293) - 293 -
— Impairment losses —HERAERE
recognised - 2,361 5,669 8,030
Exchange adjustments (R A - 47 97 144
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-H
=t+—-H - 2,766 6,059 8,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for deposits and

42,

THMIA (@

(b) EREAMREZEERRBER (&

15 B /B2 R B B T (A7)

BERHEMBUWRIREGEERF

other receivables are mainly due to: SBETETLRP
2021
—T-—F

Increase in Increase in
lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2 HATAHA & HATEHA
E8mHE E8EE
®m(®EE BmUEE
AAE) VEREY
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Change in parameters 2 EH 2,361 5,669
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e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42,

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for loan

and interest receivables:

TMIA (@

TRAREEERREBUR (&)

15 B /a7 R B (B e (A7)

TERATAMERRERF S

PSRRI AR B R AR

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit-  ECL (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HEH 2N
28R FH BEHE BEFR
FERE (®EEAB  (GEABE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT THET
As at 1 January 2020 “E°FE-A-H 195 9% 6,696 6,989
Changes due to financial instruments K- -FF—F—H Tﬁm
recognised as at 1 January 2020: %m@lﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
- Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit- -BRELIRBEERE
impaired) (EERE) (173) - 173 -
- Transfer to lifetime ECL (not -BRELXIRBEERE
credit-impaired) (BEERE) (22) 22 - -
~ Impairment losses reversed —HEHEEE - (75) (6,696) (6,771)
~ Impairment losses recognised —ERAEER - 50 5,887 5,937
New financial assets originated RENTEHER - - 1377 1377
As at 31 December 2020 \—$—7¢+ A=1+-H - 95 7437 7532
Changes due to financial instruments i ~ &~ —&—HF—HE:R
recognised as at 1 January 2021: TRIAMERES
~ Impairment losses reversed —ﬁé‘@ﬁﬁﬁﬂé - (23) (1,274) (1,297)
- Impairment losses recognised —RRAEER - 485 - 485
As at 31 December 2021 RZE_-%+-R=t+-H - 557 6,163 6,720
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERIT A (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) =ZFREAMESEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERER B EFE ()
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for loan and EHREWR BRE B E S E
interest receivables are mainly due to: TEEHN
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEHF
(Decrease)
Decrease in increase in
lifetime ECL  lifetime ECL
S HATEHA S HATREA
EEEE EEEE
A G 1Em
(credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
(EERE) (EERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TF#ET
Settlement of loan and interest EEER R ERF]E
receivables (1,274) (6,696)
Change in parameters 2 EY - 5,887
Advance of a new loan receivable B —£HEWE™R - 1,377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

42.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERITH (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ZFRIEAMETEHERBEE &)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEER R EFE (8)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TERATATE a1
allowances that has been recognised for loans EAED T EEREEHEE
to associates:
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total
£ L
128 5 &R FEER
FERE  (REEAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET
As at 1 January 2020 R_E_ZF—-H—H - 759 759
Changes due to financial instruments K -ZZE-ZFF—F—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: BRAEMIE
TR
— Impairment losses recognised —HEDRERE - 277 277
New financial assets originated RENHEHEE 109 - 109
As at 31 December 2020 A2
=+—H 109 1,036 1,145
Changes due to financial instruments RZZE-—&—F—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: EREmMIA
TR :
- Write-offs —1isH (109) (901) (1,010
— Impairment losses recognised —HSDRERE - 848 848
Exchange adjustments R B - 11 11
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+ZA=+—-H - 994 994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERIT A (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) =ZFREAMESEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERER B EFE ()
(continued)
Changes in the loss allowance for loans to EBMENTIRHE SN EIE &
associates are mainly due to: BEETE LR
2021
T —F
(Decrease)
increase in
lifetime ECL
Decrease in (not credit-
12m ECL Impaired)

S

12{E A T HA EEHE
FEEE G Em
MY (BEERE

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET
No realistic prospect of recovery lfr Wit [o] E th & U FUIE Y
of other receivables REFS (109) (901)
Change in parameters S EF) - 848
2020
“BOEF
Increase in
lifetime ECL
Increase in (not credit-
12m ECL Impaired)
(PAEIEREEE] ZHAEE
EEEBE B8 10
2 (mEERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Advance of new loan to M EABTEZEM
associate 109 -
Change in parameters 2HEE) - 277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

42,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERITH (8
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) =ZREAMESEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERER B EFE (&)
(continued)
The following tables show reconciliation of TEFFTADMBMBIEERSAL
loss allowances that has been recognised for R IE R E R HER ¢
financial guarantee contract:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH g ChEL
FEBR FEER
(BIEEHE) (EERE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
As at 1 January 2020 R_E_ZF—-H—H 727 - 727
Changes due to financial instruments RZZEZZF—F—H
recognised as at 1 January 2020: BRAEMIE
MHEED
— Transfer to lifetime ECL (credit- —BEREHEHN
impaired) 8518
(EERE) (727) 727 -
— Impairment losses recognised —-BARESE - 8,953 8,953
Exchange adjustments fE R AR - 626 626
As at 31 December 2020 A_E-TE
+ZA=+—H - 10,306 10,306
Changes due to financial instruments R ZZEZ—F—F—H
recognised as at 1 January 2021: BRAEMIE
MHEED
— Impairment losses recognised - RESE - 1,490 1,490
Exchange adjustments BB - 306 306
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ—
+ZA=+—-H - 12,102 12,102
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for financial

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

42. EFIT A (8)
(b) LREKRSEEERBE @)
=B m R EFE ()

MHERFRENNEREFEET

guarantee contract are mainly due to: TEEHN
2021 2020
TEZI—F CEIEF
Increase Increase
in lifetime in lifetime
ECL (credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2HEE ZHEE
SRl ES1EIE 0
(EERE) (E&HRE)
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Change in parameters 28 1,490 8,953
Liquidity risk BB & E R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
Directors to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of
the Group’s undrawn credit facilities which are
set out in Note 35.

ERPETRAREE E £F
EEERMEEEIARBEE
ZRERBEFEKF URTE
EEEERHEES  WHEKHRE
RN 2 o

AR AEREFERSEEER
WAEEHERRBES AR A
EENRBEE T BEURNK
RAIFHNETURKTEERE
HRNETHMHBEENEI B
BAEEERENNEEREN
EAE AN R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

4 A
1 O =

42,

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERITH (8
Financial risk management objectives and (b) ZREAMEBEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REIBETRE (B)
The following table details the Group's T AEBESHEABE &G
remaining contractual maturity for its financial TE4HR o E L IRESmE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based BZIEARBERENLKTEER
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial PREBTYTUSZSNZEE BEH
liabilities based on the earliest date on which o BEmME  EGMERED
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, B ENRZESEHIIE A
margin loans payables with a repayment on EERNEEE M TmorikiE
demand clause are included in the earliest I (EEBER BRI EE M o Hth
time band regardless of the probability of ETEsRadEnIEgBaLE
the financial institutions choosing to exercise R EEE -
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal ZEBEFBEEBEhENAS
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows FHo (iR B raiRZastE g
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is RITRESBEIGHESE R Z A X
derived from interest rate curve at the end of HHE e
the reporting period.
More than ~ More than
Weighted Within oneyear  two years Total
average 1yearor butless than but less than undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  ondemand  twoyears  fiveyears  cash flows amounts
mE  —FAf  SR-E  SHEE E337]
THHE RERBE @OREE BOREE RETEE IREfE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FHERT F#w F#w FHERT F#w
2021 ZEI-F
Trade and other payables FEMIRFR EMEIFIE - 42,201 - - 42,201 42,201
Amounts due to non-controlling interests F& {4 FEERR IR R E R IE - 3,645 - - 3,645 3,645
Borrowings R 7% 41,058 - - 41,058 41,040
Margin loans payables ERREEER 10% 6,090 - - 6,090 6,090
Leases liabilities HERE 1% 527 - - 527 506
Financial guarantee contracts HMBEREN - 19,672 - - 19,672 12,102
113,193 - - 113,193 105,584
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contract are the maximum amounts
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount
if that amount is claimed by the counterparty
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the
end of the reporting period, the management
of the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments are subject to change
if changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERIT A (8
Financial risk management objectives and (b) =ZFREAMESEHEREE (@)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEE TR (B)
More than More than
Weighted Within one year two years Total
average Tyearor butlessthan  but less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand two years five years cash flows amounts
i —FER SR—F SRmE FEREIR
THRE REREE EIRWE EIREFE REREE REE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEr TAn TER TEr
2020 Z22%%
Trade and other payables ERRIREMENTTE - 30,857 - - 30,857 30,857
Amounts due to non-controlling interests F&{3 JE¥ IR EEZ B - 2,745 - - 2,745 2,745
Borrowings & 7% 41,703 - - 41,703 41318
Margin loans payables EIRESEN 10% 6,514 - - 6,514 6,514
Leases labilities HE&E 1% 602 527 - 1,129 1,023
Financial guarantee contracts HHERGH - 17,909 - - 17,909 10,306
100,330 527 - 100,857 92,763

UEMMHBREENFANE
BIORHEFHHRRERERAR
AEBERBZHAEBNEEE
REENERS TR -BBENRS
HIRETEE AEBEEEER R
RAI e B BRFELZ I EM
EER A > LMEEHRRTH
FHRBEEFREL AR
MEMmAE > MiEH R RPN
AIBURI S F 5 i B R R
BRERRRBEHREEGEENT

BENE

H+ oy

EFR2REE
ARG BEEZRE U EMER
TEFFARNEEERSERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

4 A
1 O =

42,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERITH (8
() Fair value measurements of financial () SHTEMNAFEESSE
instruments

Some of the Group's financial instruments are AEEWNY ST B

measured at fair value for financial reporting HEAWNIRAT B BEE=Y

purposes. The Board is responsible to determine EEEBET AT ES2ZEEDN

the appropriate valuation technique and inputs EE AR E DN 6

for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses Pt AE(ER > KEFERAR

market-observable data to the extent it is AN THEERHIE - HRNE=

available. For instruments with significant RIBFEAALERHG ABZTR
unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group NTE > xnEFEEREE=-F5E
engages third party qualified valuers to perform WL EmEThE EEeHS
the valuation. The Board works closely with BRI (LB R E BT

the qualified external valuers to establish the BEEAEAEIEELNE A

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to o

the model.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) I EEF AR B 5
assets and financial liabilities that FEHAEZEHEERS
are measured at fair value on a BB ELNFEE
recurring basis
Some of the Group's financial assets NEENSDSHEER
and financial liabilities are measured at SRBENRNEREERLL
fair value at the end of each reporting TR ATEFZ T&
period. The following table gives B eETBAE%ES
information about how the fair values of HEEZATE (EFR
these financial assets are determined (in P B~ (S E T & A
particular, the valuation technical(s) and i) 2Bkl
inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy LN (E AR
Level 1 Level 3 Total
4 =R st
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
¥ CTZC%f S TTFE BT-F CBIER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER FHR Thn THT TEr
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABEN
SHEE 8,780 20,243 - = 8,780 20,243
Equity instruments at VTOCI R APEAEM2E
WEMEETA - - 7,261 7,871 7,261 7871
8,780 20,43 7,261 7.871 16,041 28,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

42. R IT A (&)
() Fair value measurements of financial () SRTENAFETE @)
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) I F AR B L5

assets and financial liabilities that FEAEZEHEERT

are measured at fair value on a BB ELNTFE (E)

recurring basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) RN EEAR ()

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial assets 31 December 2021 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
R-BE--%&
SREE +ZR=t+-BZATH ATEERR BRI RERAA S BATUREBARE
Hold for trading non-derivative financial assets HK$8,780,000 Level 1 Quoted closing prices in N/A
(2020: HK$20,243,000) an active market
RERBHTEEREE 8,780,000/ 7T B4 EETRRRTHRE TER
(ZEZEE120,243,00087)
Private equity investments at FVTOCI HK$7,261,000 Level 3 Market approach ~ Price-to-book value
(2020: HK$7,871,000) multiple (Note)
BRATE AAMR2ERGZRERARE  7,261,00087 5= HEE —THEREAEY (D)
(T2 17,871,000870)
- Discount for lack of
marketability (Note)
—HzmERELTE
()

Note: An increase in price-to-book value M. BEBERANHEX
multiple used in isolation would FH LA ST
result in an increase in fair value NEEFAHEME
measurement of the private equity E G RN N
investments at FVTOCI, and vice KENRAFESFE
versa. For the year ended 31 B RZINR B
December 2021, a 10% increase/ EFE - —F+C
decrease in price-to-book value B=+—BLtEE>
multiple and holding all other MIREMGEH EFA T

variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of
the private equity investments at
FVTOCI HK$726,000/HK$726,000
(2020: HK$787,000/HK$787,000)
respectively.

[£10% » M A Hfth
BEHEFAE AR
NFEEFAEMEE
WEHRWFAE R AR E
B BR E & 9 B 18
/0 726,0008 7T
/726,000 7T (ZZ
—Z4E 1 787,000 70
/787,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 AR

1 O =

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+_RB=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0) Fair value measurements of financial

42,

instruments (continued)

(i) Fair

value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that

are

measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Note:

(continued)

An increase in discount for lack
of marketability used in isolation
would result in a decrease in fair
value measurement of the private
equity investments at FVTOCI, and
vice versa. For the year ended 31
December 2021, a 1% increase/
decrease in discount for lack of
marketability and holding all other
variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of
the private equity investments at
FVTOCI HK$116,000/HK$116,000
(2020: by HK$123,000/HK$123,000)
respectively.

There were no transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ =

—FER

42,

EMIA @@
SMIANATENE (B

(o)

()

FEEBEE B ELL
FEFAEZZHEELF
& (%)

RFEER B
MIEE © (48)

EBREANMRZTIE
BTN E
BN TFE AHAM
2ERENMLERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—S+°FB=1+—HILEE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. ERIT A (8
() Fair value measurements of financial SRTENAFETE @)
instruments (continued)
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) SARNTEFEZHE
measurements
Assets — Private equity
securities at FVTOCI
BE-RAFESFAHMEZE
WmZz B RAES
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 A ZETEF—A—H 9,571
Fair value changes NF(EE (2,206)
Exchange adjustment PE R A% 506
At 31 December 2020 R _ETF
+—-HA=+—H 7,871
Fair value changes NEEED (812)
Exchange adjustment bE 0 FR AL 202
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%F
+-B=+—8H 7,261
Included in other comprehensive RABRERKRIEEDES
income is an amount of approximately WA ESFAEMEE W
HK$812,000 (2020: HK$2,206,000) fair EHFAERE AL Y AT
value loss relating to the private equity {EE1E49812,0008 T (=
securities classified as equity instruments TTF ;2,206,000 ,%71;)
at FVTOCI held at the end of the current HAEMEEWE T2
reporting period and is reported as AT EEMEE 28
changes of “investment revaluation & o
reserve”.
The Directors consider that the carrying BEDA WESBBREDIR

amounts of other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate

their values.

BIERAIIRNEMEMEE
kz@MafNERmELEEEE
BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

43.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
6 May 2011 (the “Scheme 2011"). Under the Scheme
2011, the Company may grant share options to the
Directors or any person who is an employee of the
Group, any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests and to reward other selected participants for
their contributions to the Group.

The purpose of the Scheme 2011 is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected employees to
subscribe for shares of the Company as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. The
Board may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or part-
time employees of the Company or any member of
the Group, including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company, advisors and consultants
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme 2011 was initially
10% of the issued share capital as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2011 (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. An option
may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Board to each
participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of granting of the options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares on the GEM as stated on the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020,
55,800,000 share options had been granted under the
Scheme 2011. No share options was granted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020

43. fEheiE (8)

BE_E-_ZEF+_A=+—HLHE
E RE_S——FT2 B HERRE

55,800,000 e B E _ B _—F+_H

=+—HLEFE RATWERBER

Rt

BRENSEERFRNT -

HE_S-_—FR-ZE-_EH+_-H

=+—HLEE
Exercise price
Date of grant Vesting period  Exercise period (Note)
RHAMH REHRRE T IfEER
HK$
BT
Scheme 2011 7/12/2020 - 7/12/2020-6/12/2025 0.5540
] “ZZZF+ZRtH - “E_ZET”_RERE 0.5540
“ZCRF+ZAKAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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43.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

43,

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’s share options held by a Director and
consultants during the year ended 31 December 2021:

Outstanding at

fEhctE (&)
TREBESKBERBE_S _—F
+TZA=+—HLEFEFBENART
Bk

Adjustment

due to share
consolidation

Outstanding at

Exercised 31 December

Grantees Option grant date 1 January 2021 during the year (Note) 2021
RZEZ—& MR  RIEZ-F
—B—H aftmEE +-A=+—H
EEA BRERHAD W R1TE RERTT (Pt %) i R 1T
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T
Director 7 December 2020 9,300 - (8,370) 930
BE _E_ZF+°AtH
Consultants 7 December 2020 46,500 - (41,850) 4,650
Ef “E2CBF+"A+TA
Total 55,800 - (50,220) 5,580
ezt
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,580
RERAITE
Weighted average
exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.0554 N/A 7R N/A RiEHR 0.5540
IEFHTEE
EreR)
Note: Following the Capital Reorganisation on 22 Wer: -2 —+B -+ _HKEAX

October 2021, the exercise price of the outstanding
share options was adjusted from HK$0.0554 to
HK$0.5540. The numbers of outstanding share
options were also adjusted from 55,800,000 share

options to 5,580,000 share options as a result of the

Capital Reorganisation.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 43.

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’s share options held by a Director and

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
fBRHE (48)
TRERESF - BEREREEBREZT
EFE+_A=+—HILEFEFANX

consultants during the year ended 31 December 2020. NEIBERSRE S B F o
Outstanding Outstanding at
at 1 January Granted Exercised 31 December
Grantees Option grant date 2020 during the year  during the year 2020
\ _ 7 —_— 7 ﬂz —_— 7 _— 7 E
—H—H ‘I'_}ﬂ =+—H
EEA BRERDBS BARITRE RERE S RERTTE BARITE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
¥ ¥ T T
Director 7 December 2020 - 9,300 - 9,300
5% —ZE_ZF+”°AtH
Consultants 7 December 2020 - 46,500 - 46,500
B “ZTEE+"/tH
Total - 55,800 - 55,800
st
Exercisable at the end of the year 55,800
RERDITE
Weighted average
exercise price
(HKS per share) N/A F5BH 0.0554 N/A i 0.0554
IEFHTEE
(ErsR)

Share options granted on 7 December 2020

On 7 December 2020, 55,800,000 share options
were granted. The estimated fair value of the
options granted on this grant date is approximately
HK$1,800,000. The fair value was calculated using the
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Weighted average share price MREEH B
Exercise price 1T1EE

Expected volatility TRHAR 18
Expected life TEHAEE AR
Risk-free rate i P ) =
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B X

AZEZEF+ AL HIRUNERE
R _E_FTEFE+ "5+ H 55800000
HEREERE RELBHTZEN
FBRGHE 2 (5t AT B4 #1,800,00078
TN FENDZZBEBREXE 2
NEABEAT !

HK$0.05547 7T
HK$0.05547%& 75
97.4%

5 years &

0.306%
Nil =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
1 O =

For the
HEZ

43.

44,

Ch
An

R #5 ¥R AR P 5E

year ended 31 December 2021

T —F+A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 5 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$1,800,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 in relations to share options granted
by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the Directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs capped at HK$1,500
(2020: HK$1,500) per month to MPF, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

Pursuant to the regulation of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this
country participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the
eligible employees. Contribution made to the Schemes
is calculated based on the certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the
Schemes.
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fEhctE (&)
REREDIRAARARENBER
FZRFPRBTUBE ZERNEABZ
BRI ERFHEREEEBZRE
5T 3 FEA BT BB ~ 1T EPR B & 1T 7%
REZHEFLERE.

AEEFAEEDR VB RERIDE
EEEFA+"B=+—HIEE
BY RS2 48%8491,800,00078 7T ©

“EARACERAFEGEREZ
AFE-FTEBREATEMENES
REBRIBERESFHREMS - BRE
WEEERETEIRRKRNIEEH
MmAEFPARE

IRIREFIEHE

AEBAMENEENEEREER
EREE ZEENEETVHTEA
EHNES BAEEEESRIFA
A B AERE T & R A5 % R T4
Be ERASH1,50087T (CE-Z
£ 11,5005 7m) > MEE N EHAEE

e

BEFREERER RO ZEBRZ
BERZWERE2 RSB RKE
FEtE (MZEE))  BILARNE R
BIAMZEF B AHR LEMEGE
BEEZBINEH Mz FEFHZ
RS ¥ B3 o B R B PR 5T BR 48 AR %7
RAEZETADLEAE -FEEHAER
BEMAERKEESX RN Z 2RI
B - xERUZSFAEZEEERR
BZES A ESIP MR



44.

45,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continued)
Under the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan, Employees
may choose a scheme where the rate of contribution
by an employer should not be less than 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and the employees may
also voluntarily contribute up to 6% of the monthly
salaries to the provision fund account under the
Labour Pension Act of Taiwan.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$822,000 (2020:
HK$485,000) represents contribution payable to
MPF and the Schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 5 November 2019, Fantastic Alliance Investments
Limited (“Fantastic Alliance”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Topmass Trading
Limited (“Topmass”) entered into a sales and purchase
agreement pursuant to which Topmass had agreed to
sell and Fantastic Alliance had agreed to purchase the
entire issued share capital of L & T Development (HK)
Limited ("L&T Development”) at a consideration of
HK$1,000,000 (“L&T Acquisition”).

Upon the completion of the L&T Acquisition on 20
March 2020, L&T Development became a wholly-
subsidiary of Fantastic Alliance and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

L&T Development is a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is holding a motor vehicle equipped
with a Mainland licence plate.

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration
test in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations and concluded that the motor vehicle
equipped with a Mainland licence plate is considered a
single identifiable asset.

44,

45,

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
BRIKEF R (B
RIBEGES TRARZIRA EERERE
B EMRERARDIEE A#6% 25t
2> RO IRIE B &S TR INE R G B FE
MHEREBTRFERESERHZ
6% °

RizaBEanREME2EW S REEE
L 4BEEZ822,0008 T (B T F .
485,000/87T) IE R EB R A M BUFE
FE(TBIsafE S (R o

ERBERBATWREEE

S ZE—NHF+—HHAH > Fantastic
Alliance Investments Limited (I Fantastic
Alliance ) » AR ABI2EM B A ) &
Topmass Trading Limited (T Topmass 1) 57
Y EEWZ EitTopmassAI EHE R
Fantastic AllianceFEEEE B £E %
BERAR (NEEXER)) NE2EE %
FTR&A > 0{8B71,000,0005 7T (DEE IR
FBEEIE)) °

BEZRRWENR_ZZF=A"+
HEmm%E  ZEZREMKAFantastic
AllianceN 2 E M B A B R A2 B R
BEE2BIE AR

EEERDNEBEAMALNERR
B WHRERHE A ERIKS R
0 o

AEREERBEI BV HRSERES
MEESHEREEEER AR I
B HEAE MBI KB ERER
PHE—TIHAEE-

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIEZ4EHR AT

Annual Report 2021 ZZ =~ —FF3R

287



288

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

45.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 45, FEBINEEMMEBATIWEEE (48)
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Consequently, the Group determined that substantially Fih NEBREREABESEN AT
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is BEAEE2EEFRR—BHBUN A H
concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets AEEFR WD AFEAN—ZY )5S
and concluded that the acquired set of activities and REEWIE—IEE
assets is not a business.
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RUKE R ERIEEREE
acquisition:
HK$'000
FAET
Plant and equipment (Note 16) S Kes5 1 (Fd5E16) 250
Intangible asset (Note 20) mEE (isE20) 758
Other payables Hh (TR (8)
Fair value of net assets acquired FTEE R EE A TFE 1,000
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: NP EAMIRES M FEE
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration paid in cash MREZMHARE 1,000
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46.

(a)

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 46. Hj% MiEB AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (@ BEE-_—F+-H=+—
BHIEEE
(i) Ease Chance Investment Limited () EEREERAE (TE
("Ease Chance”) and Sky Success ) R X E H B
International Investments Limited BERAE (FTXiZ&y)
(“Sky Success”)
On 31 December 2021, the Group wW-Z=®&2-——%+2="A1
disposed of the entire issued share =+—B XxEEDHIU
capital of Ease Chance and Sky Success, HWERBIETRIETH
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, to — B UE=HFHEER
an independent third party, at cash ErENBRAEEENR
consideration of HK$1 and HK$1 RENZIEBITIRA -
respectively. The disposal was completed HESEERN _ - —F
on 31 December 2021. Ease Chance +ZB=+—HZ=mM &
and Sky Success were engaged in the BRRKERBEREIZG
investment holding and in aggregately TEHRBEEREREYE
owned the entire issued share capital RERIE R MHERE AT
of Taiwan Eco-Farming Technology (TEEEBELERERNEH
Development Co., Ltd. ("TETD"), which B ) I B TR A
was engaged in trading of agricultural ZNTINEEEREZ
products.
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received: BUARE :

Cash received BIRE -
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEZEFENEERER
which control was lost: S

HK$'000
FET
Other receivables Hth W RIE 411
Bank balances and cash IRITHEERRIRE 41
Other payables HAhFE(IRIB (1,616)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBBFHE (1,164)
& Amount less than HK$1,000 e & E8/DFY1,0008 7T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. HEMB AT (&)
(@) For the year ended 31 December 2021 (a BE-_E-_—F+-H=1+—

(continued) HIEEE (&)

()  Ease Chance Investment Limited () ZEREBBEMRAE (M
(“Ease Chance”) and Sky Success F|)BXEZEFERLE
International Investments Limited ERAE (TX#Zy) (&)
(“Sky Success”) (continued)

Gain on disposal of Ease Chance and Sky HEET L KENKRZ
Success:
HK$'000
FET
Cash received BWIRE —*
Net liabilities disposed of HE&SRFHRE 1,164
Reclassification of cumulative RHENB AR R ERFERE
translation reserve upon disposal of EF D IEEEH
subsidiaries to profit or loss (1,043)
Gain on disposal HE W= 121
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEFREERNIESRAEEE :
Cash consideration received BWIRERE —*
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTTHERKRIRE 41)
41)
* Amount less than HK$1,000 * Ei1,0008 2%

EE

290 China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020

(@)

Sino Eco Green Limited

On 29 May 2020, the Group disposed
of the entire issued share capital of Sino
Eco Green Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, to Ms. So Wai Yee
Betty, a connected party with a director
of the Company, at a cash consideration
of HK$1,000,000 and assigned the
amount due from Sino Eco Green
Limited to Ms. So Wai Yee Betty at a
consideration of HK$1. The disposal was
completed on 29 May 2020. Sino Eco
Green Limited was inactive.

in e MRS ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
46. HEMEATE (&)
(b) BE_ZE-_TH+-_A=+—
HIEFE

(i) ARIRIRE R &
RIZBZE2EFRB -+
H>ZA&&%EL1,000,000
AR ERS Wai
Yee BettyZ = (KAABE
EMRAER) HEHEBE
EENBRAEFEIRFEE
RAINE2MWEEITR
A WL ATHRER
So Wai Yee Bettyx T-#5:%
FEW R AIRRB IR ATN
ME-ZHEBER _ZZZ

N — = —

EERB-_+HABEEMR
PIBERE T BER

HK$'000
FET

Consideration received: BUWRE :
Cash received S eiER 1,000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over

REEFIRNEERER

which control was lost: DT
HK$'000
FAET
Plant and equipment 5B K58 1 325
Other receivables Hh eI 4
Other payables H (TR (7)
Amount due to the Group FE(T AR E BRI (669)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFEE (347)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

= A H
ARE

46.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. HEMBAT (B)
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2020 by BHEE-EHF+-H=+1+—

(continued) HIEFEE (48)

(i) Sino Eco Green Limited (continued) (i) HARIR R B RN E] (48)
Gain on disposal of Sino Eco Green HEFZIRFEBERATN
Limited: &

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration received BEWARE 1,000

Net liabilities disposed of HE&SRFHRE 347

Assignment of shareholder’s loan  #EERREER (669)

Gain on disposal HE s 678
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFREENIRER

Cash consideration received BWRENE 1,000

(i)  Ever Chance Management Limited (i) [EEESHEERAE (ME
(“Ever Chance”) #Zl)

On 7 July 2020, the Group disposed RZE_ZEFELHAtH>
of the entire issued share capital AEBMUBRSAEB1E T
of Ever Chance, an indirect wholly- I E=FHEHBEE
owned subsidiary, to an independent L EMBEABIBENEES
third party, at a cash consideration of B 81T hE 4> 1 12£10,000
HK$1 and assigned the amount due BITHREBE S 5 EEE
from Ever Chance to the purchaser at WIEEBHEHIE ZHED
a consideration of HK$10,000. The RWIE-EFt+tHB+tHR
disposal was completed on 7 July 2020. B o 1B1E A1 5 B A B i it
Ever Chance engaged in the provision BIEARTS o
of management services to the group
companies.
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received: BARE:
Cash received BUWIRE 10

China Eco-Farming Limited FEERELXEF R AT
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46.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

(i)

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE
46. HEMEBATE (4
(b) BE_ZE-_TH+-_A=+—

BLILEE (&)
Ever Chance Management Limited (il EEESEERAE (ME
(“Ever Chance”) (continued) &) (48)
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KEZHENEERER
which control was lost: DT
HK$'000
FET
Plant and equipment 55 K55 1 318
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,857
Other receivables Hh W IE 1,800
Bank balances and cash IRTTHERRIRE 174
Other payables HERIE (4,626)
Amount due to the Group FE A B RIB (40,158)
Lease liabilities HMESRE (3,162)
Net liabilities disposed of HEASBFHE (42,797)
Gain on disposal of Ever Chance: HEIBEENW S
HK$'000
TFET
Cash received BIIRE 10
Net liabilities disposed of HEBBFHE 42,797
Assignment of shareholder's loan ~ EERREBER (40,158)
Gain on disposal HE W= 2,649
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HE&FFEERIIRE R P8 :
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 10
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTTHERRIRE (174)
(164)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

47.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 47. MEBASIERE RS
SUBSIDIARY
Deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries RIEHETEZESESEF 2B AT
without change of control Ry EES
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—E-—fFF+ - H=+—HIE
Z

Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and its Seal Eco Advance Limited (T Seal EcoJ)
subsidiary (collectively referred as the “Seal Eco BB NG 8 Seal ECEE))
Group”)
On 18 January 2021, Seal Eco issued and allotted SZE " —F—H+/\H>Seal Ecold
1,000,000 ordinary shares for HK$3,000,000. 750,000 3,000,0008 02 (T A2 2% 1,000,000
ordinary shares of Seal Eco was subscribed by the B% 5@ A% o Seal EcoRY750,0000% & 5@ f%
Group and 250,000 ordinary shares of Seal Eco AR E 58S > 250,000/ & 48 iz BB 1&
was subscribed by an independent third party. This 5= R o IE R E R ARE B R Seal
resulted in a decrease in the Group's equity interest in EcoEEBRIIRMER100% T REET5% o K
the Seal Eco Group from 100% to 75%. The Group EF IR E ¥ Seal EcoFEBAYIEHIHE
still retains its control over Seal Eco Group, which is HEWARIE—IEEIFIZREZN
then accounted for an equity transaction with non- REZR AT 5 ° #94,555,00078 75 (& Seal
controlling interest. Approximately HK$4,555,000 Eco GrouptEi z 81%8) BN Hith#E e
representing the amounts of the interest of Seal Eco B
Group being diluted was recognised in other reserve.
Assets and liabilities at the date of deemed disposal of PAREH ESeal EcoEEEEZH#Ez HEA
partial interest in Seal Eco Group were as follows: WEEKEEIUT .

HK$'000

FHET

Bank balances and cash IRITE R RIRE 3,012
Amount due from ultimate holding company FEWRR R A BB 11,804
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FEWE R M B AR FIE 6,603
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ANIEE N EVNCIE/ 3)
Other payables Hh (I8 (196)
Net assets after subscription REBREETE 21,220
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47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries

without change of control (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Seal Eco Advance Limited (“Seal Eco”) and its
subsidiary (collectively referred as the “Seal Eco
Group”) (continued)

A schedule of the effect of deemed disposal of partial

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BEZT—F+A=+—HIFE
47. MIBRAEIHERIEESE (&)
RIEHE R EITFIEEST B AR
gD (B8
BE_E_—F{_F=+—HIF
E (48)
Seal Eco Advance Limited (I Seal Eco_)
REWE ARG (##E Seal EcCEEE)) (&

%ﬁf’ﬁ&’ijtﬁ?ﬁﬂ?f&sﬁiﬂzwgﬂﬁ

interest in subsidiaries without change of control is as IMAENEE—SEXNT .
follow:
HK$'000
FExT
Net assets shared by non-controlling interests FFERI R N E EFE 5,305
Less: Consideration paid by non-controlling A IR EEMAE
interests (750)
Difference recognised in other reserves R EMEE PR ELR 4,555
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREENIRES M AFEEE .
Cash consideration received BWIREMRE 750

Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary without
change of control
For the year ended 31 December 2020

) Supreme Fine Food Group Limited (“SFFGL”)

(formerly known as “Ever Rich International
Trading Limited”)
On 12 June 2020, the Group acquired

ordinary shares of SFFGL from Mr. Ng Man,
the non-controlling shareholder of SFFGL, at
a consolidation of HK$49. This resulted in an
increase in the Group’s equity interest in SFFGL
from 51% to 100%. Approximately HK$7,000
representing the amounts of the interest
acquired in SFFGL was recognised in other

reserve.

e gtz Sk A NG

BE _E_TFf _H=+—HIFE

) Supreme Fine Food Group Limited
(ISFFGLJ) (FiFE* & EFE
SHERAE)
N_E_EFERA+H K&
E 2 B49/8 7T BSFFGLZ JEIE
fZ IR BENg Manift A W BBSFFGL
ZAIREBER - ILEHAER
FSFFGLAY B # HRS51%IB M E
100% ° #97,0007%8 7t (FHE H Uk
FESFFGLIE @ 2 80 %R) TH 1 E At
RS

49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in B MRS ERaR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE
47. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 47.
SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary without
change of control (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

() Supreme Fine Food Group Limited (“SFFGL”)
(formerly known as “Ever Rich International
Trading Limited”) (continued)

A schedule of the effect of acquisition of
interest is in a subsidiary without change of

MEBAREAEEE (8)

Wil mIERI S B AR
(48)

BE_FE-_TFAF_HA=+—HIEF

E (#)

) Supreme Fine Food Group Limited
(TSFFGL ) (Fi#g K &R E
ZHERAE]) (&)
WiE—RENB AR 2 Em 2 &

(MR EEHI#) N —8 R

control is as follow: T
HK$'000
FAET
Carrying amount of non-controlling BRI R AR EE
interests acquired 7
Less: Consideration paid A BaRE -
Difference recognised in other reserves P EMEE P EERELR 7

(i) Glory Luck Holdings Limited (“Glory Luck”)

On 27 August 2020, the Group acquired 4,900
ordinary shares of Glory Luck from Ms. So Ka
Wai Amy, the non-controlling shareholder of
Glory Luck, at a consolidation of HK$1. This
resulted in an increase in the Group's equity
interest in Glory Luck from 51% to 100%.
Approximately HK$1,013,000 representing the
amounts of the interest acquired in Glory Luck
was recognised in other reserve.

A schedule of the effect of acquisition of
interest is in a subsidiary without change of

(i)  BHEEEERAE (FFE))

A ZEIEFNAZHEH K
EEERAEIBTBRAENIEE
& B&ERSo Ka Wai Amy% LU B
4,900/ PRE ~ ZiBAR o LB 5]
REBNRRENRKEES %I
ANZE100% ° %91,013,00058 7T (18
ENRWERRE R D 2 B8R Th i
HAEEER o

WE—RHNBAR I E
(I FE AR EEFIE) B —BER

control is as follow: T
HK$'000
FAET
Carrying amount of non-controlling B EIFEREDIREE
interests acquired 1,013
Less: Consideration paid BB E =
Difference recognised in other reserves REMEE PRSI ELR 1,013
* Amount less than HK$1,000 % {EF21,00088 T2 £ 48
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

48. FAEANLIXRH

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (a) G S BRRERMBTREE
financial statements, the Group has entered N AREBENEREE AT
into the following significant transactions with MTEKRZS
related parties during the year:
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2021 2020
RIEANLTSTE REME —EBE—F _T_ZHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Beijing HX (Note i) Loan interest income 352 324
IERES (&) BRFIEUWA
Fuyu (Note i) Loan interest income 28 593
KeR (5D =/ SUISY PN
Loss on settlement of loans (6,303) (133)
to associates
EERBEEABEHERNEIE
Gold Wide (Note i) Reimbursement of finance (3,753) (2,414)
costs borne by lenders
&5h (MF5E) BNEHMAEZRER K
Darkstone Investment Group  Interest on borrowings (11) -
Limited (Note ii)
Darkstone Investment Group ~ f&FF &
Limited (Pfd5%ii)
Bright Kingdom International ~ Consultancy fee expense - (800)
Limited (Note iii) EEERRX
EEREEERAE FYEEi)
Refund of consultancy fee expense 150 -
FEEAMAZER
Topmass (Note iii) Consideration paid for acquisition - (1,000)
of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 45)
Topmass (Ff&Eii) AEBRENBASIWEEE
FRZ (T BE (F5E45)
Chan Kee Holdings Limited Purchases of grocery food products (2,209) (3,327)
("Chan Kee") (Note iv) FERHE S
e EEB R AT
(TBR=2)) (BI5Eiv) Consultancy fee expense (120) (360)
EEERRX
Interest income 25 104
ISV N
So Wai Yee Betty (Note v) Consideration received for disposal - 1,000

So Wai Yee Betty (fiztv)

of a subsidiary (Note 46(b)(i))
H & M B 2 Bl T AR B
(fFEE46(b)G))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 ER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4 A
1 O =

48.

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Beijing HX, Fuyu and Gold Wide are
associates of the Group.

So David Tat Man is the common director of
Darkstone Investment Group Limited and the
Company.

Bright Kingdom International Limited and
Topmass are connected with a director of the
Company.

On 4 February 2016, Maxford Wealth
Limited ("Maxford Wealth”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, formed an entity
named Right Ocean Asia Limited ("Right
Ocean”) with an independent third party, Ms.
Yoo (the spouse of Mr. Chan), of which Mr.
Chan is the substantial shareholder of Chan
Kee. Pursuant to the agreements entered into
by Right Ocean and Mr. Chan, Ms. Yoo and
Mr. Chan shall procure Chan Kee to enter
into the trademark licence agreement and
the sole distributorship agreement with Right
Ocean, for the sole and exclusive sale and
distribution of the grocery food products and
right to use the trademark granted by Chan
Kee at nil consideration within Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan for the period from 4
February 2016 to 31 December 2018.

On 25 March 2019, the trademark licence
agreement and the sole distributorship
agreement have been renewed for a period
of 3 years.

Details of the trademark licence agreement
and the sole distributorship agreement with
Right Ocean are set out in the announcement
of the Company’s announcements dated 4
February 2016 and 25 March 2019.
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MEALRS (@

(a)

(48&)
MI5E -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

IREE -HKBERELBE
EEZBEAL

BRE XS ADarkstone
Investment Group Limited/z

RABMHFESE-

EEEBEAERR2ARK
TopmassEl KA Bl EEH
3 o

RZE—XREZBMIAE"
Maxford Wealth Limited
("Maxford Wealth]) (=2
BEENBAR) BEILE
=Haxt (BREEZER
(FREEABREHNEZRR)
RiABAEEEMNER
~E) (TEE)) NERE BRIk
BB RBRAEIT LN HE
ATE—RNE_BEOBEC
T—-N\EFE+_B=+—HH
B et RRuEEBRSE
PRECEAE /B 5] 1L AR AT
HERE—DHERRENZ
ZRENREAVRMIKRAE
B-RERIEE kD HEER
BmkBEEERREAESY
B 1R o

R_E-AE=RZ+1
B BRSFEHERE—
NIRRT EER=F-

EARight OceanBIF R 5T 12
ik R B — D S ek 2 5F
BHEREAABDHBEAZE
—R"EFEZAMNHERZZ—A
F=ZB-+HHBZ R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

Upon the formation of Right Ocean, the
equity of Right Ocean is held as to 51%
by Maxford Wealth and 49% by Ms. Yoo.
Therefore, Right Ocean became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a
shareholder loan agreement was entered into
between Maxford Wealth and Right Ocean,
pursuant to which Maxford Wealth has
agreed to lend a loan of HK$11,000,000 to
Right Ocean, with a fixed interest rate of 5%
per annum and repayable on demand.

Another loan agreement was entered
into between Right Ocean and Chan Kee,
pursuant to which Right Ocean has agreed
to lend a loan of HK$6,000,000 to Chan
Kee, with Mr, Chan’s personal guarantee,
a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum,
repayable within 36 months after the date
of drawdown for business operation. As at
31 December 2021, the loan and interest
receivables due from Chan Kee has been
fully settled (2020: HK$466,000). Details are
disclosed in Note 26.

So Wai Yee Betty is a connected party of a
director of the Company.

48. E A :t 'S % (:I\E)

(a) (#8)
Mzt (48)
(iv) (&

HHERESE BBz ER
FMaxford Wealth%5E51%
FHEETZ LRBE49% o ALk
EBRABRATIEEENB

AR

BHE_Z-—XR"E+ZA
=+—HLEFE > Maxford
Wealth£2 B8] L IREBE R
Tf?%%% ¥ tEMaxford Wealth
REOHESRHEE
11,000 00077t E/EEE%IJ
BEREREER-

KH5%

BB EME LS — 1 Em
W BILEEER BB K
50 (APRSC BV EAIER) &
H—Z8 186,000,000 73

BEFHNERT%N B

%mﬁ%?mﬁzE%é%
BEREEZE R_Z_
+ZB=+—8"> ﬁ&ﬁ%

BY & 7R FE W) B

BCEIEFE 466,000%
7o) c BRI B IR B 5

26°

(v) So Wai Yee BettyBZAR/ARE

EHRARETT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

1 O =

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

48.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 48.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other

MEALRS (@

(b)

FTEEEASHM

FREAFDEFTRTEEERE

members of key management during the year Hthp Bz s T -
was as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET THET
Short-term benefits AR 2,940 2,940
Share-based payments ISP EE=SRANEN - 300
Post-employment benefits B AHERER 36 36
2,976 3,276

The remuneration of the Directors and other
members of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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49.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

f= A
177 g |

A #5 SR AR P 51

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—SF+-A=1+—HIFE
49. TATHMBRAR

2021 2020
T —F E°ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET

Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE - 135
Plant and equipment = k5 3 4
3 139

Current assets MENEE
Loan to an associate REFHE AT ZER 3,826 -
Other receivables HAh g z1a 282 74
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEW I B A S FRIE 173,313 273,959
Bank balances and cash RITEGNRIES 23 10
177,444 274,043
Current liabilities Pk =R

Other payables HAEI RIE 9,343 7,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfS I B AR FIE 91,286 119,037
Borrowings EEs 23,990 24,418
124,619 151,395
Net current assets MENEESRE 52,825 122,648
Net assets EEFE 52,828 122,787

Capital and reserves B Rf#E
Share capital & 7 1,060 9,325
Reserves EX (a) 51,768 113,462
Total equity s 52,828 122,787

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 6 May 2022 and are signed on its behalf
by:

So David Tat Man
BIEX
Director

EZE

EEER__FnABfERKR
TERABMBRRE LHTIES

RERAB/EE

Ng Cheuk Fan,

28R
Director

4

Keith
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

49, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49, Zkﬁﬁ]ﬂj}%ﬂf‘;ﬂ?ﬁ (,i,ié)
COMPANY (continued)
(@) Reserves (a) A
Share
Share  Contributed options Special Other  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RiFEE AR  BRERE BRI Hittikts FHER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-%5-F-H 6,909 650,298 - 28,769 (764) (535,885) 149,327
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ REEEEREH
for the year BEieE - - - - - (37,665) (37,665)
Recognition of equity-settled share BRNEREERURNARRN
based payments (R - - 1,800 - - 1,800
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZF=+-H 6,909 650,298 1,800 28,769 (764) (573,550) 113,462
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ AEEBER2AE LR
for the year - - - - - (74,032) (74,032)
Placing of new shares REHR 3,048 - - - - - 3,048
Transaction costs attributable to placing  EREHREERZHE
of new shares (245) - - - - - (245)
Capital reorganisation ERER (9,712) - - - - 19,47 9,535
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+ZA=1+-H - 650,298 1,800 28769 (764) (628,335) 51,768
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50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held
by the Company at the end of the reporting period are

set out below:

Place of Incorporation/

Paid-up issued/

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

50. MIBAEFE

ERARBNRESHRERREEZEF
BB ARFEHRIINTX

Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
WEAR ERitERD AL/ ERAE  AR/BEAERRE AARREMARLILE IEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
2021 2020 2021 2020
Zg--f C5%f  CEI-F CEI%
Kama Business Holdings Limited Limited lability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Kama Business Holdings Limited BRELAR ZERLES [E3A3:l K&k
Goodlink Corporation Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  One-stop value chain
services
BEERLT ERERLT 3 VoAl — U BEERS
Anson Development Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100% - - Inactive
HK$100
ZBEEERAD ERERLT 3 10082 BER LB
Grand Protection Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
TRERERAR BRERAT ZBEUES EnZERR KEZR
Kaley Development Limited Limited liability BVl Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
EELRERAD ERERLT HBELES Eywassil LB
Hoi Fan Investment Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§ 1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
ANRERRAZ BRERAT ZBEUES EnZERR B2l
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Securities holding
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited BRELAR ZERLES [E3A3:l F5RE
Cyberpress Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$100
2RERLT ERERLT 3 10082 R LB
Treasure Yield Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
EEREERAT BRERAT &# BT ERR B2l
Joy Gold Tracing Enterprises Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Joy Gold Trading Enterprses Limited BB EAAR ZERLES [E3A3:l &gk
King Health International Holdings Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Trading of grocery
Limited food products and
consumables
REERERERAT BRERAT &# BT ERR BHRRRAERES
Udog Petechnology Company Limited ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
EREEHEERAT ERERLT 3 VoAl LB
Luster Shine Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§ 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Luster Shine Limited ARERAR ABRUEE Al REER
All Ready Holdings Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary shares of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Al Ready Holdings Limited BREMRAR HERLEHE 157 BER RERR
Ease Chance (Note d) Limited liability Hong Kong N/A (2020: Ordinary - - - 100%  Investment holding
shares of HK$10,000)
EE (k) ERERLT B TER(CEIZE: RELR
10000872 88R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

. — =
50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. MiBREFE (@
Place of Incorporation/ Paid-up issued/
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
HELFRE BiREErS SRR/ ERME  8R/CEGERRE LYNSECETER Sl IREH
Directly Indirectly
Ef R
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-f -2 &% _31%%
Sky Success (Note d) Limited liability Hong Kong N/A (2020: Ordinary - - - 100%  Investment holding
shares of HK$100)
X3 () ARERAR ) TER(CEZE: REER
10082 B8R
TETD (Note d) Limited liabilty Taiwan N/A (2020: Paid - - - 100%  Trading of agricultural
up capital of products
NTD10,000,000)
BEBLLRHERE (k) ARERAR = TER(CEZE: RERRA
$15%10,00,000752
BAERS)
Skyline Top Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§ 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
FREERAF ARERAR HERIEE 1Enz 8k REER
Wise Success Holdings Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
550,000
Wise Success Holdings Limited BRELAR HERIEE 5000052 £B% REER
On Good Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
RZZEBRAA ARERAR & 100003702 588 REER
Ye Lei Investment Consulting (Shenzhen)  Limited liability PRC Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co,, Ltd.* RMB100,000 (Note a)
BEREER (R BRATx ARERAR i AR 100,007 REER
B (Hzta)
Shenzhen Shanglei Agricultural Products — Limited liability PRC Registered capital of - - 80% 80%  Inactive
Investment Co., Ltd.** RMB10,000,000 (Note a)
MTHERERRERRAT*  BREEAR HE AEH10,000,000702 BEH
s (ska)
Fujian Seton Investment Co, Ltd** Limited liabilty PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
RMB50,000,000
EREFREERAA ARERAR i AE50,000000702 ENE
HRER
King Noble Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
U5§50,000
King Noble Holdings Limited EREMRLE ARRLHE 50000272 B8R REER
Seal Eco (Note 47) Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 5% 100%  Trading of consumables and
HK$3,000,100 agricultural products
(2020: HK$100)
BR7E (&) BRERLR B 3,000,100 7 HERRREERER
(CEZEF 0080
ZEBR
Shenzhen Dehao Trading Co., Ltd** Limited liability PRC Registered capital of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$100,000 (Note )
HMInERBLERAT ARERAR HE 10000072 s REER
liE2)
Fine Champion Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
U5§50,000
Fine Champion Holdings Limited EREfRLH ZBRUEE 50000%7c2 B8R REER
& English name for identification only * BN IEEHHR]
# Wholly foreign owned enterprise i NEBEERE
* Wholly domestic owned enterprise & SERERE
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50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. MIBATEE (@
Place of Incorporation/ Paid-up issued/
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
WEBLFRHE ERiERL ML/ S ME/BEAEMEL AARFERERLILA IREE
Directly Indirectly
E# i3
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-f -t g% “3C%%
Total Famous Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
EXREERAT BRERAT By 10,0007 B8R REZR
Chengwang Investment* Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB100,000
KERE ARERAR HE AEH100,000752 BEH
HRER
Shenzhen Chuanshi Shengbank Limited liability PRC Registered capital of - - 80% 80%  Inactive
Investment Co., Ltd.** RMB10,000,000 (Note a)
HMInELESREERAT ERERLT HE AE10,0000002 BB
SR (ita)
Konson (Note b) Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$50,000
B (Hf3kh) BRERAT ZERUEE 50000% 72 2B REZR
Union World International Group Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited (Note b) HK$10,000
BRERERERLA () BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R REZR
Delightful Hope Limited (Note ¢) Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 50% 50%  Investment holding
US§100
#EERAE (Ko BRERAT ZERUEE 100802 B8R REZR
China Smart Asia Limited (Note ¢) Limited liability HK Ordinary share of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Investment holding
ZRTHERAR (o) ERERLT &% 1B ERR REZR
Shengshi Fugiang* (Note ¢) Limited liability PRC Ordinary share of - - 50% 50%  Property holding
5§5,000,000
B ER (Had) ERERLT HE 50000005702 E88% EEZEIES
Guangxi Southwest Alliance Wood Limited liability PRC N/A (2020: - - - 255%  Inactive
Industry Co., Ltd.** (Note ¢) (Note d) Registered capital
of RMB10,000,000
(Note a))
FEASREAMEZERAT~  BAREAAT HE TER(CEC3E: BB
(k) (k) \E#10,000,0007E2
s (ata))
Skyline Best Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
XEERRAE ARERAR ZERUEE 1EnZEER REZR
Top Yield Properties Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HmE2ERAR AREAAR e 1B ERR REZR
Hongkong Shangligao Properties Co.,,  Limited liability Taiwan Paid up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property holding
Ltd. Taibei Branch NTD1,000,000
EABNRELERARNELNAT  AREALR = AH1,000,00072 FENE
BHRRE
(Great Hero Global Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
RIERMERAR BRERAT ZREYES 1EnZERR REZR
J English name for identification only i RN IBEHRBR]
# Wholly foreign owned enterprise E NEEERE
* Wholly domestic owned enterprise g SERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e M HRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLEFE
50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Incorporation/

Paid-up issued/

50.

B ABFHE (8

Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
HELAR R RN SRR/ ERME  8R/CEGERRE AARFERERLLS IERH
Directly Indirectly
B R
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-f -2 &% _31%%
Global Brands Management Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary share of - - 51% 5%  Inactive
HK$500,000
RHRAEERRAT BRERAT &t 50000072 2B 2%
Splendor Health Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
FRERERLA ARERAR HERIEE 1Enz 8k REER
Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited EREfRLE ARRLHE £ BER REER
Kingtop Asia Investment Limited! Limited liability HK Ordinary share of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Group administration
BDRERRAZ BRERLT &% 1B ERR £EER
CEF Renewable Energy Limited (Formerly  Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Trading of agricultural
known as Glory Luck Holdings HK$10,000 products
Limited) (Note ¢)
PREZEFHEARAT BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R RERLR
(EIEAEEEARAT) (He)
Gold Goal International Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Gold Goal International Limited EREfRLE ARRLHE [Ewass ] REER
Success Royal Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property holding
EXREERAT ARERAR &% 1B ERR EETE/ES
Fantastic Alliance Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Fantastic Allance EREfRLE ARRLHE [Ewass ] REER
YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of - - 0% 70%  Investment holding
U5§50,000
BAtEERARAT BRERAT ZERUEE 50000%72 2B REER
Huge Famous Corporation Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 0% 70%  Trading of grocery food
HK$10,000 products
#ERRAT BRERAT ) 10,0007 B8R BHRRER
L & T Development (Note ) Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$10,000
HEER (W) BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R 2%
Maxford Wealth Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Maxford Wealth Limited BREAAR HERIEE 1EnEER REER
Right Ocean Asia Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary share of - - 51% 51%  Trading of grocery food
HK$10,000 products
HETNERAA ARERAR & 10,0003 702 588 Bhrags
Seal Eco Recydling Limited (formerly Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
known as Supreme Fine Food Group HK$100
Limited ("SFFGL")) (Note ¢)
XEEBESERAF(SFrCL)  BREAAA &t 10022 B8R 2%

(3te)
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50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. MiBREFE (@
Place of Incorporation/ Paid-up issued/
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
HELAR R ERiERL ML/ S ME/BEAEMEL AARFERERLILA IEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# i3
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-f -t g% “3C%%
Kingview Master Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Kingview Master Limited BRERAT ZRELES 1EnEER REZR
Wider Profit Investment Limited (Note g)  Limited liability HK Ordinary share of HK$1 - - 50% 50%  Investment holding
BEREERAR (i) BRERAT &t 1B ERR REZR
Glory Delights Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 50% 50%  Investment holding
(Note g) HK$10,000
KAREERAR (M) BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R REZR
Shenzhen Xuyao Corporate Consultancy  Limited liability PRC Paid up capital of - - 50% 50%  Property holding
and Management Co., Ltd.# (Note g) RMB100,000
AITEELERHEE BRERAT e AEH10000072 EEEERIES
BIRRE (o) HRRA
Shenzhen Intelligent Future Investment  Limited liability PRC Registered capital of - - 40% 0% Inactive
Co., Ltd. **(Note g) RMB10,000,000 (Note a)
HITERFRREBRAT ERERLT HE AE10,0000002 BB
(Hztg) R (Hzta)
Supreme Faith Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% - - Securities holding
{ERRERRAR ERERLT &% 1B ERR FEEE
Treasure Max Investment Holdings Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited
EXRELRARAT ERERLT ZRELES 1EnERR REZR
Inno-Bag Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 60% 60%  Trading of consumables
HK$2,000
AERRECEERLT ERERLT e 2000872 R R RRRER
Alied Realty Limited Limited liability BvI Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Alied Reatty Limited BRERAAT ERRYEE [ESiva-1:1 RERR
China Agricultural Finance Group Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited
TEREEREERRAT BRERAT ZERUEE 1EnZEER REZR
Powerline Gain Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Poweriine Gain Limited BRERAT ABRUEE 1ErEER REER
Luxury Regal Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Luxury Regal Limited EREfRLE AERLHE £ BER K2R
China AF Asset Management Limited ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Asset management
("CAFML") (Note h) HK$6,450,000 (2020:
HK$6,330,000
TEREEEERARAT ARERAR e 6,450,007 BEER
(EREEE)) (Hih) (Z3IzfE!
6,330000%7)
ZERER
Award Fortune Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Award Fortune Limited BRERLAT ABRUEE ErEER REER
& English name for identification only * R GLBEHEHD]
# Wholly foreign owned enterprise E NEEERE
* Wholly domestic owned enterprise g SERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. MiBATHE (@
Place of Incorporation/ Paid-up issued/
Name of subsidiary Legal form of entity ~ operations registered capital Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company Principal activities
HELAR R RN SRR/ ERME  8R/CEGERRE AARFERERLLS IERH
Directly Indirectly
B it
2021 2020 2021 2020

“g-f T3 B CECER

China AF Corporate Finance Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$2,000,000
PEREHBEHARAT BRERAT &t 200000082 EBR 2%
Success Future Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Success Future Holdings Limited ERERLE HERIEE 1Enz 8k REER
China AF Capital Limited Limited liabilty HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Financial consultancy
HK$1,000,000
HEREEAARAT BRERLT e 1,000,000 702 588 b
Main Supreme Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary share of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
#ERRLAT BRERAT ZERUEE 1EnZERR RERR
CAFFL Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Money lending services
HK$10,000
PEREHE BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R HERE
Deluxe Noble Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Deluxe Noble Holdings Limited BRELAR HERIEE £z 88k REER
China AF Investment Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$10,000
PERERERRAT BRERLT & 100003702 588 REZR
Philippines Investment Holdings Limited  Limited liability BvI Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Phiippines Investment Holdings Limited ~ BREEAT ARRLHE £ BER REER
China-Philippines Human Resources Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 51% 51%  Inactive
Services Limited HK$10,000
PEATRRERRAE BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R 2%
Allied Wisdom Investment Holdings Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
RERELERARAT BRERAT ZERUEE 1EnZERR 2%
Hong Kong Grain and Oil Manufacturing ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
Company Limited HK$10,000
ERERRRLERRAR BRERAT &t 10,0007 B8R 2%
Cheer Up Global Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary share of US§1 100% 100% - - Securities holding
Cheer Up Global Limited EREMAR EERUEE 1T BER FEES
None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities PREEER ZEWB A EET
at the end of both years. ERIEFFE S o
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50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a

()

(e)

The registered capital has not been paid up at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

These subsidiaries are expected to be sold within
twelve months after the year ended 31 December
2021. Details are disclosed in Note 31.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Delightful
Hope Limited, China Smart Asia Limited and
Shengshi Fugiang respectively, and Shengshi Fugiang
owns 51% equity interest in Guangxi Southwest
Alliance Wood Industry Co., Ltd. (collectively
the “Delightful Hope Group”).
shareholder’s agreement between the Group and
other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
2 out of 3 directors of the board of directors of the

Based on the

Delightful Hope Group. Since the relevant activities of
the Group are determined by the board of directors
of the Delightful Hope Group based on simple
majority votes. Therefore, the Director concluded
that the Group has control over the Delightful
Hope Group and accordingly, they are classified as
subsidiaries.

These subsidiaries were disposed of during the year
ended 31 December 2021. Details are disclosed in
Note 46.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has acquired additional 49% of the share
capital of Glory Luck and SFFGL from the non-
controlling interests and therefore Glory Luck
Holdings Limited and SFFGL have become indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.

in e MRS ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE
50. MiBABFE (&)
5T

(a) N E - FR_BE_ZF+_
=+—H EMERERET

) ZEWBRAERAKBE_T_—
F+RB=+—HLtFERT_E
BRHE - FIBRMEE314REE

© FERRBWMARAT ERZM
BERABKRBEHERDFERS0%
et > M Bt =50 A0 & 7 78 g B 22
AMEEXEBRRE B THEE
B) RS %R AR - B A S E B
HMREEZBORRGZE &%
EEREEAMEREFET =4
EFTHMBEF HNAEEE
FEBHARERESgENHEE
REBREFNEE - HIL EFEH
FEBCENARER MERE
EDEAWBAF -

d ZFHRBRENBEE_T-—F
+TZA=+—HLEFEHE-FE
PRI EE464 B

(e) BE_Z_ZFE+_HB=+—HI
FEC-AEECAFERERNE
BIEEE AR A B RSFFGLAYEE SN
49% P A > (A ItLFRE M SFFGLE B %
NEEBEEENRB A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BT F+-B=1+—HIFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(f)

It was acquired during the year ended 31 December
2020. Details are disclosed in Note 45.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Wider
Profit Investment Limited, Excelso Limited and
Balini Limited, Glory Delights Investment Limited
and Shenzhen Xuyao Corporate Consultancy
and Management Co., Ltd. (“Xuyao Corporate”)
respectively and Xuyao Corporate owns 80% equity
interest in Shenzhen Intelligent Future Investment
Co., Ltd. (collectively the “Wider Profit Group”)
Based on the shareholder’s agreement between
the Group and other investors, the Group has the
power to appoint 3 out of 5 directors of the board
of directors of the Wider Profit Group. Since the
relevant activities of the Group are determined by
the board of directors of the Wider Profit Group
based on simple majority votes, the Directors
concluded that the Group has control over the Wider
Profit Group and accordingly, they are classified as
subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CAFML
has passed several resolutions to allot 1,360,000
ordinary shares in total to its immediate holding
company, Luxury Regal Limited and the share capital
increased from HK$4,970,000 to HK$6,330,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, CAFML
has passed several resolutions to allot 120,000
ordinary shares in total to its immediate holding
company, Luxury Regal Limited and the share capital
increased from HK$6,330,000 to HK$6,450,000.

51. MAIJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group entered into two new lease
arrangements for the use of leased properties
for 2 years. On the lease commencement, the
Group recognised approximately HK$1,111,000
as right-of-use asset and HK$1,094,000 as
lease liability.
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50. MBABFE (&)

M5E -

(f)

(&)

HRBEZ"TF+"H=+—
B FE U - 57 5P M FEASIEE -

AEBREBHERERERAS
Excelso Limited ~ Balini Limited ~ Glory
Delights Investment Limited 5z %I 73
BEGEBAESEARAR (MMBE
©2) DRIEAS0%RERBFE R
EEBRNDTEEREREFTRA

E180% M (AtE A T HER)) -
ERAEEEEMKEEZRER
HAEEEREZEIREEEZE
EFENHEREFPHN=_REE-H
RAEEEAESRBEEREZE
FERBERSUEEE-FFHE
Lt AEEHGHERERE
HHE > MEAMEEDERMERS

HE_Z”_ZH+_"-A=+—H
LtFE EF'IEFQ BEEEIE
ARERZ > MHEBEER QB Luxury
Legal Limited& £ FC2$1,360,0000% &
B M A E H4,970,000%4 718
%6,330,00058 75 ©

HE_Z2”-_—&H+°-HFB=+—H
LtFE FEREEEERBEZE
REE FEHEE?&?"H“”TLUXury
Legal Limited& HAC85120,0004% &
%EHQ’ﬁ'ﬁHQZI:B%,BO,OOO%mEI
6,450,000 7T °

51. FEFREXRH

(a)

BE_Z”ZF+-A=1+—
BLEFE AEBEREEY
¥ UMBAIENIHEER
BE- T ERBR AEBERIRN
1,111,008 A EREEE &
H581,094,0008 tATHES B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
CAFFL agreed to purchase and three loan
debtors of CAFFL has agreed to transfer 133
properties located in the PRC as to settled
the loan and interest receivables due from
those three loan debtors, which amounted to
approximately RMB15,455,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,388,000). As at the date
of settlement, as the ownership certificate had
not been obtained by the Group, the balance
of approximately RMB18,976,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$21,350,000) has been
recognised as deposits paid. Details of the
deposit paid for acquisition of the properties
are disclosed in Note 23(b)(ii).

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Shengshi Fugiang agreed to purchase and
Fuyu has agreed to transfer a property located
in the PRC as to settle the loan and interest
receivables due from Fuyu, which amounted
to approximately RMB3,307,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,720,000). As at the date
of settlement, as the ownership certificate had
not been obtained by the Group, the balance
of approximately RMB3,188,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,800,000) has been
recognised as deposits paid. Details of the
deposit paid for acquisition of the property are
disclosed in Note 23(b)(iii).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Shengshi Fugiang agreed to further purchase
and Fuyu has agreed to transfer 18 properties
and 23 car parking space located in the PRC as
to settle the loan and interest receivables due
from Fuyu, which amounted to approximately
RMB27,465,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,107,000). As at the date of settlement,
as the ownership certificate had not been
obtained by the Group, the balance of
approximately RMB22,237,0000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$26,804,000) has been
recognised as deposits paid. Details of the
deposit paid for acquisition of the properties
are disclosed in Note 23(b)(iii).

mE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ T —F+_A=1+—HLEE
51. XEIFRERS (@)
by MRBEE_Z_ZTF+_A4
=t HIEFER FHEE
MHRREBRERETREEHM
BENW=Z%EREBEARRHE
EBUNTEMI33EYE U
SFERK=Z2Z2EREBAN
ERKRERFE  BHAUAA
E#15,455,0007tc (BHERH
17,388,000/ 70) - RAAEHER
HRAEBREESHMBERES
,Eﬁ%“ﬁkﬁmﬂs 976,0007T (48
EH4921,350,000%8 7T) EREER
AHENET WEYMENETZ
B E R M 5E23(b)ii)

o MREBEE_Z_ZZ£+_H
=+—BLEFEER BitERA
REEBEBVGRRAEREZUNF
B — B % > WA E IEW L BR
NEMKERAE  EAA
AR 13,307,000 (FHE AT
3,720,000/ 7T) - RAEEHHE
HRAEBARESMAREE
EERK AR 3,188,000 (B E
12 #93,800,0005& 7T) EERAE
THE WEZMENSTEE
EE - NGEYEODE

RBEE_Z-Z_—F+ZA
:+—EIJJ:¢FEW’EWJE§§@

EEE—FTEEHKGRREE
a%éT_Lﬁ’:\EPIE’J1SIE%¥E’223
BiEER UEEEWRKGN

ERKRERFE  EBAUAA
R 27,465,000t (FHERH
33,107,000 7T) - R&EEBHR
HRAEBERNESHMBERES
%ﬁﬁﬁ)\%”ﬂzz 237,00007T (8
24926,804,00078 7T) B HESR
AHENET WEZMENEN
HEF BB EE23(b)iii) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

g

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HLEFE

52.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 52. miEEEESENEEHEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TR AEEREIHELENEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, both e IEESNIFRESEFH BT
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from FESAHNEEARSREPRXREKIRS
financing activities are those which cash flows were, REMEENEGE BN AEREES
of future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HeneRxRbhEYEARST ITHWE
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flow che .
from financing activities:
Amounts due Finance costs
to payable
non- (included
controlling Margin loans Lease in other
interests  Borrowings payables liabilities payables) Total
fEft
FEft ‘ EEGES
FrERiE FEfiREE (FtARM
WA R B HEaE  ERE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2-%5-F-H 2,995 62,978 6,012 3,743 4,096 79,824
Changes from cash flows: e Rl .
New borrowings raised HERRER - 6,900 - - - 6,900
Repayment of borrowings BERER - (30,045) - - - (30,045)
New margin loans raised BERESEN - - 502 - - 502
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREERE - - - (966) - (966)
Interest paid BRAFE - - (123) - (3,277) (4,000)
- (23,145) (221) (966) (3,277) (27,609)
Non-cash changes: FReEE !
Foreign exchange movement SNEEE - 1,485 - - 99 1,584
New leases entered/lease modified S /REBY - - - 1,086 - 1,086
Finance cost RERE - - 73 3 7,410 8,455
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - (3,162) - (3,162)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary KRB AR R (250) - - - - (250)
(250) 1,485 723 (1,754) 7,509 7,713
At 31 December 2020 RZ2ZFF+-A=1+—H 2,745 41,318 6,514 1,023 8,328 59,928
Changes from cash flows: BEnegs.
New borrowings raised WERER - 1,150 - - - 1,150
Repayment of borrowings BERR - (2,000) - - - (2,000
Repayment of margin loans ERNRERER - - (424 - - (d24)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE - - - (602) - (602)
Interest paid BRAFIE - - (590) - (4,144) (4,734)
Advance from non-controlling interests REFERERNEN 900 - - - - 900
900 (850) (1,014) (602) (4,144) (5,710)
Non-cash changes: FRTEE
Foreign exchange movement SNEZE) - 572 - - 85 657
Finance cost HEME = = 590 85 5,604 6,279
- 572 590 85 5,689 6,936
At 31 December 2021 RZE-Z-%+ZB=+-H 3,645 41,040 6,090 506 9,873 61,154
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53.

54.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_Z_—HF+"_A=t+—HLEFE

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 53. KEHELHE
The Group as lessor TEBEFEAHEAA

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
a motor vehicle held by the Group has committed a
lease for one year.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are
as follows:

HE_BE_—GFR_ZBEZZEF+_A
=+ —HIEFEE  "REBMFAEDE]
YAH—FENHEE-

PAERUCKREIRBENRAT !

2021 2020
- ZTETHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within one year —F RN - 40
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 54. BEXRKIE
2021 2020
T8 CZTIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Contracted for but not provided in the BJ&IBHRANiFEHMFERE
consolidated financial statements: FRETIEEE
Unpaid registered capital for R B AR EMELR
subsidiaries (Note 50(a)) (M45E50(a)) 36,868 47,806
Capital expenditure in respect of the LUK EE— M B A B AYEESH
acquisition of further equity interests ~ JREME ABISZ (HI5E23(a))
in a subsidiary (Note 23(a)) 10,760 10,760
47,628 58,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z_—HF+-A=1+—HIFE

55.

56.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) On 14 February 2022 and 14 March 2022,
Skyline Top and the Purchaser entered into a
supplemental agreements, pursuant to which
the deadline of the completion of the Disposal,
as disclosed in Note 31, has been further
extended to 14 April 2022. The Disposal has
been completed on 22 April 2022.

The detail of the variation to terms was
disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 February 2022 and 14
March 2022, respectively.

(b) On 14 February 2022, Fujian Seton Investment
Co., Ltd, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, to dispose
of its two investment properties located in
the PRC at RMB900,000. As at 31 December
2021, the aggregated carrying amount of
those investment properties amounted to
approximately RMB1,380,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,690,000).

(c) Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Group proposed to raise up to approximately
HK$8,476,000 before expenses, by way of
rights issue by issuing up to 52,977,621 rights
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.16 per
rights share on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares on the record date.
The detail of the rights issue was disclosed in
the prospectus of the Company dated 25 April
2022.

LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Up to the date of this report, the litigation against
Shengshi Fugiang as detailed in Note 32(c) is under
appeal sought by the Plaintiff and Shengshi Fugiang is
currently seeking for legal advice for the appeal.
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55.

56.

REHERSEE

(@ WWEIREE R
FE_BAtHEHE_E-__fF£=
B+MHB > XESHE HETIIME
Tt Bt HESBETR
HIEHAHEE ST EREZT
T TENA+EA - HEFIER
RIZEZZFEOBZ+IHE

EZO
HEHRA BN ARE AL

AT "F_B+HEAKRC
e = A= YN

o

(b) ATE T TFA+HWEH AR
EEZEEENBABEBRERER
EBRABDEHBIE=FH
it U AR 900,000t
HEMURPENMIBLEYZE -
W2 —F+"H=+—8"
ZEREMENREBRBELNS
AR#1,380,0007T (FBERL
1,690,000 7T) °

© RIZEZ—F+ZB=+—H
B> AEERZESBERNEHEE
HAEREMRIRERMHELE —
RERKRMDHUEELDREES
RRERRNOIGETHETES
52,977,621 B B A% 15 217 AR
DB EE%498,476,0005 7T (0
BrFAZ AT - BRAEREFER
ERARBHHEAZZS
MBZ+HBMNHKEER.

AR AR
EERBRS A W32 FH
HEMERIEENHAHRSREL
i Bt =R B AT ES K EFRBIAR
B



The following is a summary of the published results and
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

T A TN &S EERFEROAERR
ThEMREEZENEXEREELER
AR EE o

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B Z-THE —T-Hf E-)\& T—+tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT FTET AT FTET
Continuing operations FHEREER
Turnover =E2] 73,267 35,196 31,836 51,417 63,028
Loss before taxation BIREIEE (52,120) (73,412) (106,147) (59,522) (77,347)
Taxation 18 (500) 14,528 6,669 (984) (365)
Loss after tax from continuing R B ELEE £HH
operations BrinaEs B (52,620) (58,884) (99,478) (60,506) (77,112)
Discontinued operations BARIRELHR
Loss after tax from discontinued 2K B B4R I X
operations BRiteEE = - - - -
Loss for the year AEERE (52,620) (58,884) (99,478) (60,506) (77,112)
Non-controlling interests R RS 1,350 39 67 7,922 6,064
Loss attributable to ANEERFEE AEGEE
equity shareholders of
the Company (51,270) (58,845) (99,411) (68,428) (71,648)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BEE -BERIFERRRER
INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=t+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
g _"Z"%FE _—ZT-HE ZT-)\FE T+tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FhET AR FET
Total asset mEE 238,713 270,125 354,864 449,419 490,881
Total liabilities =l (109,533) (94,990) (132,273) (112,446) (170,648)
Non-controlling interest R RS (40,906) (36,560) (36,474) (36,616) (35,582)
Equity attributable to KAREB NEGER
owners of the Company 88,274 138,575 186,117 300,357 284,651

The summary above does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

N EBEL SEREEZHFREN—ED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
REVE

At 31 December 2021
R_E_—F+"H=+—H

Location

HhRE

Type
B

Lease Term

HERA

Effective held
BEREE

Hong Kong
TE

Unit 8D, TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BHENAZEBREIFTMLESSDE

PRC
FE

Fulong Garden, Houhai Village,
Baigi Country, Quanzhou
Taiwanese Impediment Zone,
Fujian Province comprising
flats 3008 of

commercial and

residential building

No.1 and flat 2905

of commercial and

residential building No.3
FEEEERMNAERER
BIE @ ENEREEE SRR
30085/% B8 1il &%

35 E 1829055k BB {iI

Unit 104, Block 4, Shijimingzhu, No.245
Hualin Road, Chayuan Sub-district, Jin"an
District, Fuzhou City,Fujian Province, PRC.

TEEZEEMHEZE
REHBEMR24558
tACBATRAE 10488 ¢
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Industrial

T

Commercial and
Residential

Residential

(G

medium-term lease

thER

long-term lease

R

long-term

=2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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